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he KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority, trading 

as Tourism KwaZulu-Natal, was established in 

terms of the KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Act, 1996, 

as amended by Act No.2 of 2002. Accountable 

to the provincial Department of Economic 

Development and Tourism, Tourism KwaZulu-

Natal is responsible, directly and indirectly for the 

development, promotion and marketing of tourism into 

and within the province.   

Vision

To position the province of KwaZulu-Natal as Africa’s leading 

tourism destination nationally and internationally.

Mission

To initiate, facilitate, co-ordinate and implement:

• Strategic tourism marketing; and

• Demand-driven tourism development programmes 

which will grow tourism, thereby serving to achieve:

• The transformation of the tourism sector within  

 the province; and

• The provision of economic benefi ts to all   

 stakeholders and the province.

 

Objectives

• Increase foreign arrivals;

• Increase share of domestic visitors;

• Increase tourism expenditure (spend);

• Reduce foreign seasonality;

• Increase geographic spread;

• Improve destination image and service excellence;

• Promote responsible and demand-driven tourism 

development and accessibility;

• Foster strategic leadership;

• Promote transformation; and

• Provide an enabling environment.

Values

• We value the contribution of our people by 

recognising their performance and appreciating 

them as people;

• We all strive for superior delivery of customer 

service, both internally and externally;

• We are committed to making KwaZulu-Natal the top 

destination in Africa;

• In performing our duties, we will trust each other to 

be honest and reliable;

• In all our dealings we will act with integrity, so that 

people trust us;

• Through our professionalism, people will value 

dealing with us; and

• Team spirit is what will make Tourism KwaZulu-Natal 

a great place to work!

KwaZulu-Natal - the Zulu Kingdom

This is an enticing, spectacular and fascinating multi-

cultural showpiece destination located on the east 

coast of South Africa. Flanked by the warm waters 

of the Indian Ocean in the east and the towering 

peaks of the Drakensberg mountains in the west, the 

Zulu Kingdom is South Africa’s most popular tourism 

destination, a destination of choice amongst visitors 

from Africa and, increasingly, a ‘must-see, must-do’ 

destination for discerning international travellers 

seeking a unique blend of sophistication, cultural 

diversity and adventure – all in the most breath-taking 

natural setting imaginable.
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waZulu-Natal’s tourism sector is – and remains – a 

critically important driver of both domestic consumer 

spending and foreign exchange earnings and is a key 

contributor to the provincial economy.

The Provincial Department of Economic Development 

and Tourism, as the custodian of KwaZulu-Natal’s economy – 

providing policy and strategic direction – has mandated Tourism 

KwaZulu-Natal to robustly market the province locally and 

internationally as a region boasting tremendous potential for 

tourism growth and development.  

Given such potential, coupled with the existence of labour-

intensive activities and relatively low barriers to entry by 

entrepreneurs, there is a clear and current need now to rapidly 

accelerate the development of our tourism sector. This will give 

effect to the further diversifi cation of the local and national 

economies, while playing a signifi cant role in the ongoing 

and noble quest to create new and sustainable employment 

opportunities.   

In the face of burgeoning tourism growth and wonderful 

investment opportunities, revised market segmentation and 

the identifi cation of new tourism source markets, tourism must 

become our province’s focus for the foreseeable future. 

KwaZulu-Natal is home to some of the most breathtaking tourist 

treasures in South Africa; areas which have, to date, remained 

largely under-exploited. Our purpose is, therefore, clear. We 

must aim to promote public-private partnerships for projects 

and leverage vital private sector investment, while always 

guaranteeing the conservation of our ecological habitats and 

Foreword

        miChael mabuyaKhulu (mpp)

meC for eCoNomiC developmeNt 
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giving due consideration to broad community interests. 

We must give grave consideration to environmental 

matters and instil a culture of service excellence as a 

way of life in KwaZulu-Natal. 

Our attractions are wider than and easily surpass 

the national norm in so many ways and we must 

also, therefore, utilise this advantage to the hilt, 

implementing aggressive and innovative marketing 

initiatives to secure an increased segment of the 

world-wide tourism marketplace, so broadly sharing 

the secret that is KwaZulu-Natal.

KwaZulu-Natal’s tourism is founded on four pillars. 

These include our striking coastal holiday areas, with 

their golden beaches and extensive aquatic activities, 

a host of top-quality game reserves and wilderness 

areas, the uKhahlamba-Drakensberg mountain range, 

the highest in Southern Africa and stretching hundreds 

of kilometres, providing incredible natural beauty, a 

wealth of recreational pursuits and the most wonderful 

vistas, and, lastly, our historic battlefi elds. 

Importantly, too, our province is blessed with no fewer 

than two World Heritage Sites, the ecologically sensitive 

iSimangaliso Wetland Park and the uKhahlamba-

Drakensberg Park. Our unique selling point is that of 

accessibility as all of these experiences are within a 

mere two-hour commute of Durban and its new King 

Shaka International Airport.

The challenge may be daunting, the competition 

within the global tourism market intense, but with the 

active support of the private sector and, especially, big 

business in KwaZulu-Natal, we collectively have the 

opportunity to ensure that our province fully realises 

its true tourism potential, not only maintaining its 

standing as South Africa’s undisputed domestic tourism 

leader, but also becoming a preferred destination 

internationally.

In KwaZulu-Natal, we have a remarkably diverse and 

strikingly beautiful destination, an awesome climate 

and great, fi rst-world infrastructure. In Tourism 

KwaZulu-Natal we have an organisation capable of 

and geared to interaction with the world’s tourism 

decision-makers, trade role-players and industry 

insiders, convincing them of our province’s importance 

as a leading holiday destination.

We all have a vital role to play in ensuring that every 

aspect of KwaZulu-Natal becomes and remains tourist-

friendly. I am confi dent that by working together we 

are more than capable of meeting and beating the 

challenge. 

Michael Mabuyakhulu (MPP)

MEC for Economic Development and Tourism

  we all have a vital role to play iN eNsuriNg that every 

aspeCt of Kwazulu-Natal beComes aNd remaiNs tourist-

frieNdly. i am CoNfideNt that by worKiNg together we are 

more thaN Capable of meetiNg aNd beatiNg the ChalleNge. 
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he KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority, trading as Tourism 

KwaZulu-Natal, is responsible for the development, 

promotion and marketing of tourism into and within 

South Africa’s east coast province of KwaZulu-Natal.

This is South Africa’s leading domestic holiday 

destination and one with growing international appeal and 

Tourism KwaZulu-Natal is therefore equipped to actively 

promote the region’s tourist potential and undeniable 

competitive advantages in both the local and international 

arenas. Mandated by the KwaZulu-Natal Provincial Government, 

Tourism KwaZulu-Natal sets out to take responsibility for both 

tourism product development and the marketing of the region 

domestically and internationally. Its vision is to position the 

province as Africa’s leading tourism destination. 

KwaZulu-Natal, popularly known as the Zulu Kingdom, is a 

region of great natural beauty and diversity, cultural riches, 

adventure and mystery. A hot sub-tropical climate, great 

holiday activities and excellent travel and accommodation 

infrastructure, together with warm and welcoming hospitality, 

combine to make this a true destination of choice. The coastal 

belt, lapped by the Indian Ocean, gives way to rolling hills 

and the towering peaks of the Drakensberg Mountains – snow-

capped in winter. The region has two World Heritage Sites, 

the iSimangaliso Wetland Park, which is a vast wilderness area 

which incorporates a pristine marine reserve, lakes and coastal 

dune forest, and the uKhahlamba-Drakensberg Park, which 

forms part of dramatic Drakensberg Mountain range, soaring to 

more than 3 000 metres in altitude, with numerous sandstone 

caves adorned with the rock art of the ancient San people.

Durban, a bustling, sophisticated cosmopolitan port city and 

top holiday destination is famed for its beaches and eclectic 

mix of cultures which form a unique pot-pourri of eastern, 

western and African infl uences. Close by is the historic city of 

Pietermaritzburg and the Midlands Meander, a fascinating arts 

and craft route. Then a series of battlefi elds and museums echo 

epic struggles of more than a century ago. 

Corporate Profi le
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his is an area of outdoor adventure, game 

viewing, thundering rivers and cool indigenous 

forests. Zululand is a melting pot of vibrant, 

colourful Zulu culture, expressed through 

traditional rituals, ceremonies, energetic 

tribal dancing and exquisite hand-made crafts. 

The province’s diversity…modern and traditional 

lifestyles, the tranquillity of natural beauty and 

adrenalin-pumping adventure, warm waters of the 

Indian Ocean and snow-capped mountains of the 

Drakensberg, a marine paradise and Africa’s Big-5… 

makes this destination unique.

In line with this, Tourism KwaZulu-Natal remains 

committed to the creation of an enabling environment, 

designed for tourism development and the active 

and widespread promotion of the region’s array of 

attractions to local and international tourist markets, 

as well as trade representatives. 

Indeed, Tourism KwaZulu-Natal was the fi rst Destination 

Management Organisation (DMO) in Africa to be accredited 

as a United Nations World Tourism Organisation (UNWTO) 

S’Best DMO and to receive the prestigious UNWTO Ulysses 

Award for Innovation in Tourism Governance. The award 

was presented as a result of the authority’s Knowledge 

Management Programme.

Tourism KwaZulu-Natal is an associate member of the 

UNWTO and a member of its Destination Council.

 tourism Kwazulu-Natal was the first destiNatioN maNagemeNt 

orgaNisatioN (dmo) iN afriCa to be aCCredited as a uNited NatioNs world 

tourism orgaNisatioN (uNwto) s’best dmo aNd to reCeive the prestigious 

uNwto ulysses award for iNNovatioN iN tourism goverNaNCe.

Corporate Profi le
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ourism is an extremely wide-ranging and 

complex economic sector, affected at different 

levels by a range of factors, some internal and 

many external.

The macro goals and targets detailed in the 

table overleaf are based on historical trends and on 

information obtained from global benchmarking bodies, 

such as the United Nations World Tourism Organisation, 

the World Travel and Tourism Council and the Travel and 

Tourism Research Organisation. 

Tourism is a very volatile and also fragile economic 

sector, with a propensity to be strongly affected by 

global occurrences, such as the recent economic crisis. 

A provincial marketing and promotion body, such as 

Tourism KwaZulu-Natal can only report on the macro 

indicators, having a negligible ability to affect such 

indicators. Its strength lies in reporting on the state in 

which local tourism operates and to infl uence tourism 

at a micro level.

Domestic and Foreign Tourism 
In the time period described here, more domestic 

tourists took a trip in 2011 than ever before, even 

though domestic tourism trips decreased in number 

and the spend per trip increased over 2010 and even 

more substantially over the 2009 numbers. 

The year 2009 was used as a base year with regard to 

foreign tourists as 2010 was something of an anomaly 

due to tourists from unexpected and somewhat 

artifi cial markets increasing the totals during that year 

and, largely, as a once-off event, due to the 2010 FIFA 

World Cup. This also caused a displacement with regard 

to domestic tourism during the peak June-July season. 

This has since shown recovery, as refl ected in the 2011 fi gures. 

The main drivers of ‘spikes’ originated from non-traditional 

tourism source markets, such as Portugal, Japan, Serbia 

and others.

State of Tourism Economy 
– Macro Goals and Targets: 
KwaZulu-Natal

Nevertheless, KwaZulu-Natal’s share and number of foreign bed-

nights increased in 2011 compared with 2010, in spite of the 

World Cup effect and the overall decline in foreign bed-nights 

in South Africa. 

This was due to the re-establishment of the domestic market, 

displaced during the World Cup, and of retained traditional 

markets, together with an increase in the share of foreign bed-

nights in 2011, in spite of continued economic upheavals in 

Europe. 

Contribution to GDP
Tourism also continued to be a signifi cant contributor to provincial 

GDP, increasing the contribution it made. It also continued to be 

a signifi cant job creating sector linked to GDP contribution and, 

to some degree, to increasing hotel occupancies. 

Geographic spread remained at its traditional level with regard 

to foreign tourists, with each tourist visiting a little more than 

one sub-destination within the province.

Hotel occupancies throughout the province have shown 

reasonable recoveries since the global economic crisis and are 

again edging closer to pre-World Cup levels. 

Air passenger movements into and out of the King Shaka 

International Airport also continued to increase, though at 

a slower rate. Overall, these indicators provide evidence of a 

positive trend in the tourism sector for KwaZulu-Natal.

KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority
Annual Report 2011/12 7



State of Tourism Economy
– Macro Goals and Targets: 
KwaZulu-Natal

2009 2010 2011 2012 T

Domestic trips (mn) 8,8 8,3 8,38 8,46

Foreign tourists (mn) 862 458 952 679 905 582 950  861

Domestic spend per trip (R) R730 R710 R766 R804

Foreign spend per trip (R) R7 215 R9 300 R7 575 R7 954

Direct contribution to GGP (Rbn) R22 R24 R25 R26

Total contribution to GGP (Rbn) R32 R34 R36 R37,5

Total employment 133 000 153 000 158 814 164 626

Geographic spread (foreign) 1,3 1,3 1,3 1,3 =

International to Battlefields, Pietermaritzburg and South Coast +1,0% +1,0% +1,0% +1,0% =

Domestic to Battlefields, Zululand and Elephant Coast +1,0% +1,0% +1,0% +1,0% =

KwaZulu-Natal hotel occupancy 59,4% 53,5% 58,3% 59,0%

Air passenger movements - 10,6% inc. 6% inc. 4% inc.

 = Targets; T = Trends

Disclaimer and assumptions for targets

Underlying Assumptions for Targets
• Figures assume South African Tourism, United Nations 

World Tourism Organisation and World Travel and Tourism 

Council projections are reasonable;

• Tourism KwaZulu-Natal has negligible control over the 

number of foreign arrivals, foreign spend or foreign 

geographic spread;

• 2009 was used as the base year as this was the year in which 

South African Tourism changed its methodology to be more 

in line with global standards and reported only tourists. Day 

visitors were no longer included in the total;

• 2010 was used as the baseline for domestic trips;

• A 1,0% increase was applied to domestic trips, based on 

historical increases from 2006; 

• A 5,0% increase was applied to foreign arrivals, based 

on historical increases from 2006;

• A 5,0% increase was applied to domestic and foreign 

spend per person per trip, based on historical increases 

from 2006;

• A 5,0% increase was applied to GGP growth, based on 

historical growth rates from 2006;

• The global economic situation remains stable; and 

• In calculating the total employment, 2010 was used 

as the baseline. The percentage increase, applied to 

subsequent years from 2011, was 3,8%, 3,6%, 3,4%, 3,2% 

and 3,0%. 
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The Tourism KwaZulu-Natal Board of Directors comprised the following members during

 the 2011/12 financial year.

Board of Directors

Ms T Dlamini 
Chairperson
Term of office ended 
30 June 2012

Mr S Adam

Mr S Naidoo 
Deputy Chairperson 
Term of office ended 
30 June 2012 
Re-appointed 
Chairperson on 1 July 
2012

Ms S Nhlumayo  
Deputy Chairperson
Appointed 1 July 2012

Ms Y Bacus 
Term of office ended 
30 June 2012

Ms Z Msimang
Appointed 1 July 2012

Mr Z Gwala 
Term of office ended 
30 June 2012

Mr M Mzimela 
Appointed 1 July 2012

Ms N Freysen-
Pretorius
Resigned 16 January 2012

Ms B Pityi
Appointed 1 July 2012

Mr K Harie 
Term of office ended 
30 June 2012

Mr M Jackson 
Appointed 1 July 2012

Mr N Khoza 
Chief Executive Officer 
(ex officio)

Ms N Kheswa
Term of office ended 
30 June 2012

Prof AT Nzama 

Ms P Lebenya
Appointed 1 July 2012

Ms S Maharaj 
Term of office ended 
30 June 2012

Mr T Mzileni Mr S Mshengu
Term of office ended 
30 June 2012

Ms NZ Qunta
Term of office ended 
30 June 2012

Mr K Pretorius
Term of office ended 
30 June 2012

KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority
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Membership and Attendance: Board Meetings in 2011/12

√ = Attendance  A = Apology  R = Resigned

Board of Directors

Member 10 June 2011 09 September 2011 29 November 2011 30 March 2012

Ms T Dlamini (Chairperson) √ A √ √

Mr S Naidoo (Deputy Chairperson) √ √ √ √

Mr S Adam √ √ A A

Ms Y Bacus √ √ A √

Ms N Freysen-Pretorius A A A R

Mr Z Gwala A √ √ A

Mr K Harie √ √ √ A

Ms NS Kheswa √ √ √ A

Ms S Maharaj √ √ A √

Mr S Mshengu √ √ √ √

Mr T Mzileni √ √ √ √

Prof AT Nzama √ √ √ √

Mr K Pretorius A √ √ √

Ms NZ Qunta √ √ √ √

KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority
Annual Report 2011/1210



Membership and Attendance: Marketing and Tourism Development Committee in 2011/12

Membership and Attendance: Human Resource and Compensation Committee in 2011/12

√ = Attendance  A = Apology  R = Resigned  NCM = Not Committee Member

* - Appointed Deputy Chairperson of the Committee with effect from 29 February 2012

** - Appointed Chairperson of the Committee with effect from 29 February 2012

√ = Attendance  A = Apology

Member 14 April 2011 14 July 2011 13 October 2011 29 February 2012

Ms N Freysen-Pretorius
(Chairperson) √ √ √ R

Mr K Harie √ A √ √

Mr T Mzileni NCM √ √ √

Prof AT Nzama * NCM √ √ √

Mr K Pretorius ** A √ √ √

Member 20 April 2011 18 July 2011 09 September 2011
(Special Meeting) 20 October 2011 02 March 2012

Mr S Naidoo (Chairperson) √ √ √ √ √

Ms S Maharaj √ √ √ A √

Mr S Mshengu √ √ √ √ √
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ourism KwaZulu-Natal is strategically important to 

KwaZulu-Natal’s continued economic growth and 

development, given that it is charged with and is 

responsible for positioning this province as the leading 

tourism destination on the African continent.

This business entity of the KwaZulu-Natal Provincial Government 

is, in essence, a destination management organisation. 

Accordingly, it facilitates co-ordinated management and 

strategic linkages within destination KwaZulu-Natal, inclusive 

of such elements as its competitiveness, attractions, amenities, 

access, entrepreneurial opportunity identifi cation and support 

and marketing. 

In terms of its mandate, Tourism KwaZulu-Natal actively 

promotes markets and develops tourism within the province of 

KwaZulu-Natal in a concerted effort to establish and maintain 

this province as Africa’s leading tourism destination, nationally 

and internationally.  

Globally, the tourism sector has emerged as a tremendously 

competitive business environment in which to operate and 

is becoming ever more so as a consequence of continued 

globalisation and travel affordability and as a result of tourism 

competition increasingly centring on the destination.   

Clearly tourist destinations have become central elements of 

the global tourism structure and Tourism KwaZulu-Natal is, 

therefore, intent on playing an ever more signifi cant role in 

the broad policy framework, creating an enabling environment 

for effective policy alignment, inter-organisational unity and 

private sector investment in tourism.   

Chairperson’s Statement 

        sadha Naidoo

ChairpersoN

KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority
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    historiCally, tourism has played a vital role iN Kwazulu-Natal’s eCoNomy, 

a role whiCh is most CertaiNly poised to grow rapidly goiNg forward, 

espeCially iN view of the faCt that tourism aNd tourism developmeNt feature 

stroNgly iN the proviNCial growth aNd developmeNt strategy.  

Chairperson’s Statement 

owever, it is recognised that, as a destination 

management organisation, Tourism KwaZulu-

Natal must, itself, remain competitive in 

order to strategically grow the province’s 

market share.

It is regarded as necessary to continuously assess 

strategic factors which determine destination 

competitiveness and their impact on the destination’s 

performance, while creating and implementing 

innovative mechanisms geared specifi cally to effectively 

dealing with issues relating to competitiveness.

Against this backdrop, Tourism KwaZulu-Natal is 

constantly reinventing itself and continuously evolving 

to meet the challenges of an ever-changing business 

sector, so ensuring its ability to provide its partners and 

related role-players with strategic interventions and 

guidance in pursuit of the sustainable competitiveness 

of destination KwaZulu-Natal.        

Historically, tourism has played a vital role in KwaZulu-

Natal’s economy, a role which is most certainly poised 

to grow rapidly going forward, especially in view of the 

fact that tourism and tourism development feature 

strongly in the Provincial Growth and Development 

Strategy. 

Critically, this province’s tourism assets are well-

developed, provide for variety of choice and are 

tremendously popular with visitors, local and 

international. However, there is a need to continue 

growing these assets, whilst simultaneously developing 

new markets.  

Such an approach, coupled with the benefi ts associated 

with the extensive strategic alliances and partnerships 

the organisation enjoys with sector role-players here, 

will do much in terms of guiding the work which it 

does and the choices it makes in promoting provincial 

tourism initiatives into the future and which will 

allow the organisation to make a sterling contribution 

towards poverty alleviation and employment creation 

in KwaZulu-Natal.

Looking ahead, a primary focus for Tourism KwaZulu-

Natal is to build on the solid foundation created as a 

result of South Africa’s successful hosting of the 2010 

FIFA World Cup football tournament and other major 

events held here since. As a consequence of the huge 

international exposure afforded this province through 

such events, the world’s tourist market has come to 

know KwaZulu-Natal as a year-round destination and 

a wonderful spot for niche tourism opportunities, 

inclusive of cruising, golf holidays, educational 

experiences and business tourism, amongst many 

others.

This undoubtedly places the province in an exceptionally 

strong position as Tourism KwaZulu-Natal prepares for 

its next phase of strategic planning, scheduled for 

April 2013, which will see growth and development 

KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority
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of the tourism sector here, thus stimulating the local 

economy and strengthening our destination’s position 

within the global tourism arena.   

The year 2011/12 was particularly challenging with the 

expected world economic recovery not having been 

realised at the rate anticipated. This impacted on our 

sector insofar as the disposable income of consumers 

shrank because of the increased cost of living. The 

tourism sector relies to a very large extent on disposable 

income and, thus, is the first sector to feel pressure. 

Businesses within the tourism value chain also faced 

pressure, the most affected of which included airlines 

because of rising oil prices.  Fortunately, KwaZulu-Natal 

was able to maintain its strong domestic tourism base, 

which performed satisfactorily and even succeeded 

in surpassing previous occupancy levels during the 

2011 summer holidays. The many events hosted in 

the province during the financial year also assisted in 

cushioning the effects of the global economic slow-

down in our sector. Going forward, Tourism KwaZulu-

Natal will continue to invest in the promotion of 

domestic and regional tourism, as well as supporting 

the excellent work being done by the Durban KZN 

Convention Bureau.

As a public entity, Tourism KwaZulu-Natal clearly 

recognises the need for a sound governance framework; 

a framework which provides for the efficient use 

of resources and for accountability regarding the 

utilisation of such resources. This goes beyond merely 

adhering to rules and regulations, centring on the 

need for intellectual honesty. In working towards the 

fulfillment of the organisation’s mandate, members 

of the Board remain cognisant of the fact that good 

governance is – and must remain – central to the day-

to-day business activities of Tourism KwaZulu-Natal. 

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for 

accountability to its shareholder, the Provincial 

Government of KwaZulu-Natal and its strategic 

partners, together with tourism role-players and 

stakeholders throughout the province.

The integrity of Tourism KwaZulu-Natal is mirrored 

in its transparency of action, while every effort is 

made to further strengthen the good governance ideal 

throughout the organisation.

The Board’s business focus, its dedication to providing 

effective strategic direction and its commitment to 

the expression of such direction in accomplishing its 

mandate has led to the term of office of its members 

being extended, so providing for consistent leadership 

of an organ of the province which is required to play 

a key role in the growth and development of the local 

economy and, indeed, in the upliftment of its people.   

In closing, it would be remiss of me not to extend my 

most grateful thanks and appreciation to all those who 

have contributed to the successes Tourism KwaZulu-Natal has 

achieved during the course of the 2011/12 financial year.

KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority
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Chairperson’s Statement 

I am particularly grateful to the Provincial Government 

of KwaZulu-Natal and, especially, Mr Michael 

Mabuyakhulu, the MEC for Economic Development and 

Tourism, for the ongoing support provided to Tourism 

KwaZulu-Natal. We are most appreciative of the belief 

the Provincial Government and Mr Mabuyakhulu have 

shown in our organisation and the tourism promotion 

work we undertake for the benefit of KwaZulu-Natal’s 

economy and people.

In addition, I am greatly indebted to my former 

Board colleagues for the individual business skills and 

collective experience they provided in giving effect 

to the development and implementation of a sound 

strategic direction to the tourism authority. I wish 

the outgoing members every success in their future 

endeavours and take this opportunity to welcome new 

members to the Board. I look forward to a close and 

fruitful working relationship with each of you. 

Last, but by no means least, I take this opportunity to 

acknowledge, with my most sincere thanks, the role 

played by our Chief Executive Officer, Mr Ndabo Khoza, 

members of his Executive Management team and all 

our members of staff. We are indeed fortunate to have 

within our ranks a group of high-calibre individuals 

who daily display their dedication to ensuring that 

destination KwaZulu-Natal continuously remains 

a top-of-mind holiday destination amongst all our 

stakeholders, locally, nationally and internationally.     

Finally, Tourism KwaZulu-Natal has enjoyed a profitable 

financial year, overcoming a range of business 

challenges and successfully dealing with barriers to 

tourism development.

The organisation stands ready now to redouble its 

efforts to actively and robustly promote tourism within 

and outside KwaZulu-Natal in the quest to make this 

province a preferred destination and a household name 

around the world. 

Sadha Naidoo

Chairperson
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Global Tourism Perspective

Growth in global tourism slowed significantly during the 

2011/12 financial year, with the sector being markedly affected 

by such aspects as slow post-recession economic recovery, the 

advent of the Euro crisis and its effect on a number of European 

countries, together with soaring fuel prices. This conspired to 

impact appreciably on travel costs.

In spite of such negative sentiment, however, tourism world-wide 

showed growth of a little more than 4% during the review period, 

indicative of the importance of this sector in the world economy.

From a South African perspective, the country also registered 

limited growth in tourism during the period, bolstered by 

our hosting of a number of mega-events, new infrastructural 

investment and the refurbishment of existing infrastructure, 

so enhancing the attractiveness of the country as a destination 

of choice.

Meeting the Challenges

The 2011/12 financial year proved a challenging period for 

Tourism KwaZulu-Natal, given the prevailing sluggish economy, 

difficult market conditions and rising travel costs.

The cost of travel appeared to impact negatively on overseas 

travel, but concurrently acted to increase the level of domestic 

tourism. This served to intensify the focus on a range of significant 

events and development opportunities in KwaZulu-Natal.

The year 2010, best remembered for the FIFA World Cup, 

proved to be a watershed year for KwaZulu-Natal tourism 

awareness creation and development opportunities. We, 

therefore, worked industriously to overcome the challenges of 

the contracted economy and associated difficult business and 

trading conditions to ensure that our 2011/12 financial year 

became a year of consolidation; a period in which we actively 

set about building on the legacy of widespread destination 

Chief Executive
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 reCogNisiNg the sigNifiCaNt growth iN iNterest iN Kwazulu-Natal 

as aN emergeNt jewel iN south afriCa’s tourism CrowN, we at tourism 

Kwazulu-Natal worKed diligeNtly through the period uNder review to 

maiNtaiN the momeNtum.
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knowledge and understanding left by this sporting 

event. Importantly, the FIFA World Cup and a host of 

significant subsequent events and activities, which 

drew international interest in our province, combined 

to inspire a new-found sense of confidence in our 

destination world-wide, while instilling a great sense 

of enthusiasm and positivity regarding KwaZulu-Natal 

as a preferred holiday destination.

Building on the FIFA World Cup Legacy

Recognising the significant growth in interest in 

KwaZulu-Natal as an emergent jewel in South Africa’s 

tourism crown, we at Tourism KwaZulu-Natal worked 

diligently through the period under review to maintain 

the momentum, generated by the advent of the World 

Cup and other events, in both our traditional and new 

markets throughout the world. This we achieved by way 

of our own intensive marketing efforts and by working 

in close conjunction with a range of strategic alliance 

partners active within the tourism sector. There can be 

no doubt that the legacy of the World Cup tournament 

here has generated high levels of excitement and 

destination profiling, leading to invaluable extended 

overseas exposure for the province and heralding a 

paradigm shift in focus by local tourism role-players. 

We were particularly encouraged by the sheer intensity 

which bodies such as the new Durban KwaZulu-

Natal Convention Bureau, the Comrades Marathon 

Association and others, brought to bear during this 

time, winning and securing events or using existing 

international platforms to vigorously promote local 

sports, conferences and a range of tourism-related 

activities for the direct benefit of KwaZulu-Natal and, 

especially our broad tourism sector. 

International marketing by the Comrades Marathon 

Association in the wake of the FIFA World Cup saw 

increased numbers of foreign runners taking part in 

the epic ultra-marathon between KwaZulu-Natal’s two 

primary cities, Durban and Pietermaritzburg, last year 

and this approach needs to be increasingly adopted in 

the global promotion of the other great sporting events 

which have their home in KwaZulu-Natal, namely the 

Midmar Mile open water swimming event, the three-

day Pietermaritzburg to Durban Duzi Canoe Marathon 

and the Amashova Durban Classic cycle race, run 

between the same two cities.

In addition, the 17th Amateur World Golfers 

Championship was held in KwaZulu-Natal for the first 

time, drawing international acclaim for our top-class 

hosting of the event. More than 200 golfers from 32 

countries enjoyed our province’s traditional warm 

hospitality, while competing for the world amateur 

golfing title, playing four of the province’s numerous 

first-class courses, including Zimbali Country Club, 

Umhlali Country Club, Prince’s Grant and Durban Country 

Club. The tournament is well supported by foreign 

business and sports personalities of stature; individuals 

who are hugely influential in their own right. 
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mportantly, our province has secured the right 

to host this event for a three-year period, so 

enabling us to create a sound platform for the 

wider promotion of golf tourism, a growth market 

world-wide, and affording us the opportunity to 

showcase the many fi ne golf courses with which 

KwaZulu-Natal is blessed. We at Tourism KwaZulu-Natal 

were also able to leverage off the Vodacom Durban July, 

the greatest horse race in Africa and the continent’s 

richest, by hosting a range of prominent international 

decision-makers – including executives of the International 

Olympics Committee – to widely promote our province’s 

numerous tourism attributes. 

Indeed, securing the bid to host the International 

Olympics Committee Congress at which the country 

selected to host the next Winter Olympics was 

announced, was a major coup for our province, as 

was the 17th Conference of the Parties (COP17) to 

the United Nations Framework Convention on Climate 

Change. This global conference attracted more than 

13 000 delegates and some 1 266 media organisation 

representatives to our shores.

There can be no doubt that our hosting of such important 

and environmentally responsible conferences, events 

and sporting activities positions Durban and KwaZulu-

Natal as a highly innovative and globally competitive 

events and business tourism destination. Critically, 

role-players in this province have ably demonstrated 

their ability to successfully host sizeable, world-

class events, meeting the standards the international 

community expects and demands. Our commitment 

now is to ensure that the economic benefi ts of such 

events are effectively felt throughout the economy 

and that we imbue a culture of responsible behaviour 

amongst our people in order to further capitalise on 

our tourism successes, growing tourist numbers by way 

of return visits and attracting fi rst-time tourists.

Cruise tourism, too, continues to show great potential 

for our region as cruise organisations continue scouring 

the globe for new destinations. Having undertaken a 

tremendous amount of ground-work in this sector of 

the tourism industry during the 2010/11 fi nancial 

year, Tourism KwaZulu-Natal used the 2011/12 review 

period to consolidate our involvement. We hosted the 

inaugural Seatrade Africa Cruise Forum, which was 

attended by 20 cruise line executives at Zimbali to 

showcase KwaZulu-Natal with its two major harbours, 

idyllic year-round weather and greatly varied, but 

closely located tourism attributes. Members of the 

group who attended the forum are instrumental in 

fl eet deployment and are constantly on the hunt for 

interesting new routes and destinations.

With some 120 000 people having taken a cruise from, 

especially, Durban – many of them from outside South 

Africa – during the 2011/12 fi nancial year and the 

success of the Durban Rock the Boat cruise concept, 

we have been greatly encouraged by the Provincial 

Government’s recognition of the tremendous potential 
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of cruise tourism. This is a niche market sector of 

growing importance to KwaZulu-Natal’s tourism drive 

and is set to achieve an all-new level, with Durban – 

fast assuming the mantle of entertainment hub of 

South Africa – likely to soon become the home-base 

of a new cruise liner. We are encouraged by Transnet 

Port Authority’s intention to develop proper passenger 

terminal facilities in Durban, which will add to the 

positive experience of taking a cruise.

Accordingly, we intend to step-up our promotion in 

South and Southern Africa, as well as internationally, of 

KwaZulu-Natal as Africa’s preferred cruise destination. 

Investment 

he need for investment in tourism infrastructural 

projects is, and remains, a critical component of the 

overall tourism mix in KwaZulu-Natal. The rapid 

growth in tourism in the province presents 

a wide variety of investment opportunities, 

opening the door for prospective investors – 

local and foreign – to explore the province’s investment 

potential, especially in view of the improving economic 

outlook.

KwaZulu-Natal boasts some of the most breathtaking 

coastal, scenic, historic, mountain and wilderness 

areas in South Africa, much of which has remained 

largely under-developed. 

The Provincial Government energetically encourages 

and endorses the establishment of public-private 

partnerships within the tourism sector which give 

effect to the stimulation of economic growth and 

employment creation, leveraging private sector 

investment and related benefi ts, while simultaneously 

ensuring development occurs in an environmentally 

responsible manner, ecological habitats are conserved 

and broad community interests are satisfi ed. 

Accordingly, Tourism KwaZulu-Natal has worked closely 

with role-players involved in promoting investment and 

utilised every available opportunity during the review 

period to strengthen existing relationships so as to play 

a meaningful role in assisting in the facilitation of ‘win-

win’ investment solutions for the mutual benefi t of 

investors and KwaZulu-Natal, its people and its economy. 

It is for this reason that Tourism KwaZulu-Natal and 

Trade & Investment KwaZulu-Natal partnered with the 

Tourism Business Council of South Africa to host the Hotel 

Investment Conference Africa in May 2011, around the 

time of the annual Tourism Indaba. Further, we have 

packaged a number of investment concepts which target 

specifi c market gaps.

 Tourism Indaba

The Tourism Indaba, established in 1979, is Africa’s 

biggest tourism trade exhibition.

KwaZulu-Natal has hosted this internationally-

acclaimed trade show 22 times since its inception 

and having recently won a hosting rights bid – jointly 

prepared by Tourism KwaZulu-Natal, the ICC Durban, 

the Department of Economic Development and Tourism  

and Durban Tourism – the event will continue being 

hosted in the province for the next four years, up to 

and including 2015.

Given that tourism is a relationship-driven business 

environment, we acknowledge the need to further 

improve the exhibitor-buyer ratio within the show’s 

make-up and to fl ank the Tourism Indaba with other 

relevant and appropriate events to ensure ever greater 

value for money and to improve business opportunities. 

We regard the long-term hosting of Tourism Indaba as a 

noteworthy advantage because it provides participants 

the opportunity for immediate and meaningful 

engagement with our destination and its experiences 

well beyond the confi nes of the exhibition. 

This is an especially important competitive advantage 

because courting and persuading tourism-related 

decision-makers is, by necessity, a slow process, with 

decisions about the acceptance of a new market taking 

anything from 18 months to three years to come to 
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fruition. As a result, we utilise Tourism Indaba and 

other opportunities to interact with role-players in our 

core markets to the full, developing a major footprint 

in such areas in order to ensure that our destination 

continuously remains top-of-mind. 

In maximising available financial resources, we employ 

market mapping techniques to gain and exploit every 

insight to hand in a determined effort to accurately 

and effectively ensure viable market segmentation. 

Thus, our common objective should be for KwaZulu-

Natal to become the permanent host province for 

Tourism Indaba into the future.

Transformation

We regard the continued transformation of this 

province’s tourism sector as a business imperative 

and accordingly, place great store in efforts to make 

certain of the achievement of this goal.

We look to creating an operating environment conducive 

to the increased inclusion of historically disadvantaged 

entrepreneurs in the tourism sector here, facilitating access 

to a range of small and medium-sized business opportunities. 

In addition, we work towards equipping existing 

emergent entrepreneurs with comprehensive business 

information and advice, so arming them with the skills 

necessary to begin the process of transforming their 

enterprises from survivalist status to economically 

sustainable ventures; ventures capable of competing 

with their more well-established formal counterparts 

active in the broad tourism environment. 

The achievement of business success amongst such 

incubator businesses allows our organisation to then 

move to the next phase of transformation, assisting 

yet another generation of new tourism sector entrants 

to become viable. Whilst we are constantly engaged 

in identifying new business promotion initiatives, our 

accelerated transformation efforts during the 2011/12 

financial year focused on the promotion of collective 

marketing and engagement in sales generation, 

initiatives which proved pleasingly successful. Such 

success was the result of the work of our Afri-Portico 

brand and efforts to introduce emerging tourism 

entrepreneurs to our secondary market segment.      

New Brand and Logo Launch

During the 2011/12 financial year we unveiled our new 

logo, an identifier which closely aligns our organisation 

with that of our symbolic mother body, South African 

Tourism, and replaces the familiar Zulu Kingdom symbol.

The decision to make such a change was taken so as 

to follow the National Brand Re-alignment Process, 

which was initiated to create a uniform tourism 

identity for South Africa. In so doing, we have become 

able to leverage off South African Tourism marketing 

initiatives and to use the new identity on our own 

marketing collateral which, in effect, enables our own 

marketing initiatives to become an extension of the 

national effort.

Whilst our logo now aligns with South African Tourism, 

we have amended our signature line to read: Zulu 

Kingdom. Exceptional. Thus, we have successfully 

managed to retain the invaluable brand equity which 

resided with our earlier Zulu Kingdom identity.

Relationship with the Media

Just as regular and sustained interaction with the 

trade and related role-players, policy-makers and 

decision-makers is a requisite part of our role and 

responsibility, so too is the need for sound media 

relations. Tourism KwaZulu-Natal has long-enjoyed a 

most cordial relationship with the media – provincial, 

national and international – and, for its part, the media 

has reacted extremely positively towards the role of 

our organisation and destination KwaZulu-Natal, its 

experiences, attributes and competitive advantages.

Exposure in the media is critical to reaching mass 

audiences in terms of awareness creation, education 

and provincial profiling, all in the name of growth and 

development. Sound media relationships are critical for 
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the development and maintenance of image-building 

and reputation management endeavours geared to the 

protection and promotion of the destination. During 

the year under review we and the province benefited 

as a direct result of the extensive exposure the media 

afforded our organisation and the work that it does 

and we, therefore, greatly look forward to building 

on this solid foundation, strengthening our working 

relationship with media representatives, so opening 

further windows of opportunity through which both the 

media and Tourism KwaZulu-Natal might benefit.         

The Way Forward

Turning to the future, the market data we assimilated 

during the 2010 FIFA World Cup, prompted us to review 

our market segmentation during the 2011/12 financial 

year, a course of action which was designed to ensure 

that the gains made during the World Cup were not lost.

Arising from this detailed process, new tourism source 

markets were identified for future focus. This, coupled 

with the opening of new King Shaka International Airport 

in May 2010 and steady growth in passenger movements 

since – topping the 5 million mark during the review 

period – heralds a bright future for tourism in KwaZulu-

Natal. However, we acknowledge the need to do more 

still if we are to control significant market share going 

forward. In view of this, we aim to step-up our close 

co-operation with our air transport counterparts in a 

concerted effort to help facilitate the establishment 

of ever greater levels of regional connectivity, opening 

our province directly to Africa and the world.

We also intend to involve ourselves in complementary 

product development initiatives in an intensive 

endeavour to fill current product gaps. We believe such 

a move will contribute appreciably in changing the 

face of our destination into the future.

Ours is South Africa’s leading domestic tourist 

destination and is rapidly growing to become an 

international destination of choice. Consequently, 

our organisation’s goal is to take full advantage of 

the sheer diversity of the experiences our destination 

has to offer and with which many around South Africa 

and the world associate us. KwaZulu-Natal is emerging 

as a tourism dream destination and is anything but 

conventional. We take pride in the fact that we are 

able to offer visitors a diversity of unforgettable 

experiences and these are attributes we collectively 

must drive in the quest to become a magnet for holiday 

visitors and tourism investors alike.

Already we are widely recognised for our warmth, 

both in terms of our idyllic year-round climate and 

the friendly, welcoming attitude of the people of our 

province. We enjoy a uniquely rich cultural heritage; 

a heritage which manifests itself through the people – 

African, Indian and White – creating a veritable melting 

pot of influences in terms of customs and traditions, 

architecture, cuisine and the like.
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This is also a place of adventure, a place of extreme 

sports and adrenalin-pumping activities, including 

white-water rafting, mountain and ice-climbing, 

bungee-jumping, getting up-close and personal with 

Africa’s Big 5 and much more. Importantly, too, 

KwaZulu-Natal is a critical trade gateway, a 21st century 

kingdom where world-class infrastructure meets global 

connectivity. Our province is home to two of Africa’s 

premier harbours, Durban – the busiest in Africa and 

Richards Bay – the deepest in Africa, together with 

the continent’s fi rst purpose-built ‘aerotropolis’, or 

airport city, Dube TradePort and home to King Shaka 

International Airport.

Of course, we have one attribute which makes our 

destination unique. The Zulu is known throughout the 

world and our province is the home of the Zulu nation; 

a nation with a proud royal legacy dating back in history 

to the Zulu King, Shaka, and beyond. Ultimately, ours 

is a fun and family-orientated destination, with a 

magnifi cent coastline of sub-tropical, sun-kissed 

beaches, with Durban’s Golden Mile the central 

hub for a wide range of exciting water-sports and 

entertainment activities.

Given the plethora of experiences at our fi nger-tips and our 

new positioning in-line with our brand, now is the time to 

re-double our efforts to bring those experiences to an ever-

wider local and international audience.

Appreciation

The furtherance of tourism promotion in KwaZulu-Natal 

is not an easy task. It requires intensity of focus and the 

dedication of all available human resources to position 

and maintain KwaZulu-Natal as a tourism destination of 

choice in the eyes of our stakeholders in South Africa 

and around the world. The active promotion of tourism 

in KwaZulu-Natal is more than merely a job. It is a 

way of life; a way of life which demands of all those 

involved the need for passion, commitment and energy 

from the highest to the lowest levels if we are to be 

successful in our quest.

Accordingly, it would be remiss of me not to thank all 

role-players across the value chain for their invaluable 

contribution to the tourism environment.

I am most thankful to Mr Michael Mabuyakhulu, MEC for 

Economic Development and Tourism, for his steadfast 

belief in our organisation and the work that we 

accomplish on behalf of KwaZulu-Natal. I would further 

thank staff members of the Department of Economic 

Development and Tourism with whom we interact 

for their ongoing assistance, encouragement and co-

operation. We greatly value such positive support.

I am especially obliged to our outgoing Chairperson, Ms 

Tholakele Dlamini, and former members of our Board 

for their time, vigour and leadership in driving Tourism 

KwaZulu-Natal forward. I wish retiring Board members well 

and take the opportunity to welcome new Board appointees 

and congratulate Mr Sadha Naidoo on becoming Chairperson 

of the Board. 

Finally, I take this opportunity to thank my Executive 

Management and staff colleagues for their efforts 

during the 2011/12 fi nancial year. Our function 

comes with a responsibility to not only the Provincial 

Government of KwaZulu-Natal, but to all the people 

of our province. Our task requires transparency of 

action and soundness of forethought. It is, therefore, 

most rewarding to know that we have in place a team 

imbued with such passion for what they do. 

Now is the time for us all to reaffi rm our commitment 

to the achievement of our vision, positioning our 

province as Africa’s leading tourism destination, 

nationally and internationally.

Ndabo Khoza

Chief Executive Offi cer
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Executive Management

The Tourism KwaZulu-Natal Executive Management team comprised 

the following members during the 2011/12 fi nancial year:

Mr N Khoza
Chief Executive Offi cer

Ms N Wasa
Chief Operating Offi cer
Departed 19 April 2012

Mr T Mathibela
General Manager: 
Tourism Development

Mr W Ngcobo  
Chief Financial Offi cer 
Contract ended on
31 January 2012

Mr S Lwanda                                    
Chief Financial Offi cer 
Appointed
30 March 2012

Ms L Dlamini 
Manager: Public 
Relations and 
Communications

Ms N Majozi 
General Manager: 
Marketing

Mr J Seymour 
General Manager:
Tourism Information 
Services
(Seconded as interim 
Chief Executive Offi cer of 
the Durban KwaZulu-Natal 
Convention Bureau)
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    The desTinaTion is widely recognised for iTs warmTh – boTh in Terms of 

our idyllic year-round pleasanT climaTe and The warm and  welcoming 

aTTiTude of The people of The province. 

Performance Information
Marketing

Strategic Objectives

•	 To	build	a	strong,	integrated	KwaZulu-Natal	tourism	

brand	and	synergy	with	sub-brands;

•	 To	defend	KwaZulu-Natal’s	domestic	market	share	

and	grow	international	arrivals;	and

•	 To	strengthen	trade	relations	with	trade	partners.

Key Performance Areas

•	 Brand	and	leisure	marketing;

•	 International	marketing;

•	 Trade	marketing;

•	 Business	tourism;

•	 Events	marketing;

•	 Tourism	Indaba;	and	

•	 Group	tourism	support.

General Manager’s Overview

The	 2011/12	 financial	 year	 saw	 the	 completion	

of	 critical	 brand	 development,	 ensuring	 national	

alignment	for	international	marketing	purposes.

In	 completing	 the	 process,	 it	 was	 found	 through	

an	 insight	 activator	 procedure	 that	 the	 province’s	

primary	 differentiator	 was	 its	 ‘Zuluness,’	 giving	 the	

destination	 prominence	 and	 a	 distinct	 competitive	

edge.	Accordingly,	it	was	agreed	that	Tourism	KwaZulu-

Natal’s	new	signature	for	the	province	should	be	‘Zulu	

Kingdom.	Exceptional.’	This	gave	effect	to	connecting	

the	past	with	the	future.

In	finalising	 the	process	of	 repositioning	the	province	

and	acknowledging	the	diversity	of	its	experiences	and	

offerings,	 a	 series	 of	 key	words,	which	 best	 embody	

the	destination,	were	agreed	upon	for	usage	in	actively	

marketing	 KwaZulu-Natal	 in	 future.	 The	 destination	

is	 widely	 recognised	 for	 its	 warmth	 –	 both	 in	 terms	

of	 our	 idyllic	 year-round	 pleasant	 climate	 and	 the	

warm	 and	 welcoming	 attitude	 of	 the	 people	 of	 the	

province.	We	enjoy	a	uniquely	 rich	cultural	heritage;	

a	 heritage	 manifested	 through	 the	 people	 –	African,	

Indian	 and	 White	 –	 and	 their	 influences	 in	 terms	 of	

customs,	traditions,	architecture,	cuisine	and	the	like.	

Central	to	the	province	is	the	Zulu	nation	and	the	Zulu	

Kingdom	has	a	proud	royal	legacy	dating	back	to	King	

Shaka	 and	 beyond.	 This	 is	 also	 a	 family-orientated	

province	in	which	family	experiences	abound.	For	fun-

seekers,	whether	in	the	sun,	the	wild,	the	water	or	in	

our	restaurants	and	night-clubs,	KwaZulu-Natal	 is	the	

place	to	be.	This	is	also	a	place	of	adventure;	a	place	

of	 extreme	 sports	 and	 exciting	 activities.	 KwaZulu-

Natal’s	beaches,	with	Durban’s	Golden	Mile	the	central	

hub,	provide	a	 range	of	 stimulating	water-sports	and	

entertainment	activities,	while	KwaZulu-Natal	is	also	a	

critical	Trade-gateway,	a	21st	century	kingdom	where	

world-class	infrastructure	meets	global	connectivity.	

Against	 this	 new	 positioning,	 Tourism	 KwaZulu-Natal	

set	 out	 to	 defend	 the	 province’s	 leadership	 position	

in	 terms	 of	 domestic	 market	 share.	 Our	 marketing	
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activities were accordingly geared towards setting 

KwaZulu-Natal apart.

The review period saw our organisation’s first usage of 

non-tourism products to cross-market the destination 

in an effort to significantly increase destination brand 

exposure in terms of the broad mass market. A hugely 

successful strategic alliance with Plascon enabled 

our organisation to expose the destination brand 

extensively nation-wide using distribution channels 

within the hardware and retail sector.

In addition and given that KwaZulu-Natal is known 

for its strong sense of culture and heritage, Tourism 

KwaZulu-Natal collaborated with the Provincial 

Department of Arts, Culture, Sports and Recreation to 

promote KwaZulu-Natal as South Africa’s ‘must visit’ 

destination. Such exposure was achieved through 

a ‘SENSES of KZN’ activation at the 2011 Tourism 

Indaba in Durban, during which delegates were able to 

experience the food, dance, music and arts and crafts 

of KwaZulu-Natal.

A second joint initiative was undertaken at the French 

trade show, TOPRESA, at which internationally-acclaimed 

singing group Ladysmith Black Mambazo assisted in 

showcasing iconic KwaZulu-Natal experiences.

In an effort to intensify domestic attention on KwaZulu-

Natal as the leading tourism destination in South Africa, 

Tourism KwaZulu-Natal participated in no fewer than 

five local exhibitions, secured – with the Department of 

Economic Development and Tourism – a series of peak 

holiday-time radio promotions and developed a major 

new activation sponsorship ahead of the Rand Easter 

Show in Gauteng. This activation set out to showcase 

the province as a beach destination and was to 

comprise a 2 500 square metre sand area strategically 

positioned to attract show-goers by creating a vibrant, 

inviting coastal atmosphere close to the Expo Centre 

Lake. The intention behind the activation was to tempt 

show visitors into holidaying at KwaZulu-Natal’s many 

beach destinations.

In addition, Tourism KwaZulu-Natal, working together 

with the Durban KZN Convention Bureau, participated 

in the inaugural Sports and Events Tourism Exchange 

in Cape Town. The purpose of this show was the 

promotion of new and existing sports and other events 

in an effort to increase tourist volumes, spend and 

length of stay within South Africa. Our organisation’s 

participation brought together five KwaZulu-Natal-

based companies, including the Durban KZN Convention 

Bureau, on an exhibition stand designed to host 

meetings with interested parties. We also hosted a 

breakfast function during which both Tourism KwaZulu-

Natal and the Durban KZN Convention Bureau delivered 

stimulating presentations for the benefit of buyers and trade 

members present. The event is owned by the Thebe Group 

of companies and following the success of the 2011 show, 

KwaZulu-Natal submitted and won the bid to host the event 

in Durban for the next four years, 2012 to 2015 inclusive.

KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority
Annual Report 2011/12 27



Performance Information
Marketing

Performance Highlights

Tourism Indaba 2011
Of the trade shows attended during the 2011/12 

financial year, the most important for Tourism KwaZulu-

Natal was Africa’s premier tourism exhibition and one 

which is regarded as the world’s third ‘must attend’ 

show, Tourism Indaba, held in Durban.

Tourism Indaba 2011 saw our organisation significantly 

step-up its presence at the show compared against 

previous years and resulted in the organisation being 

presented with a Platinum Award for Stand Design.

Successful Partnerships in 2011/12

The ultimate success of our destination marketing

efforts must be underpinned by our partners who, 

themselves, leverage available opportunities. Outstanding 

collaborations achieved by our organisation during the 

review period include:

The Innovative Standard Bank Travel Credit Card:

As a first in the tourism industry in South Africa, this 

initiative sought to explore opportunities for consumers 

to ‘travel now and pay later.’

KwaZulu-Natal Activation in Mauritius:

Another outstanding showcase in term of collaboration 

between KwaZulu-Natal trade, Tourism KwaZulu-

Natal and Air Mauritius was a food festival marketing 

activation in Port Louis, Mauritius.

Ladysmith Black Mambazo in Paris:

A partnership which resulted in local and international 

media coverage involved Tourism KwaZulu-Natal 

partnering with South African Tourism France, SAA and 

the Department of Arts, Culture, Sports and Recreation, 

during the TOPRESA trade exhibition. 

Famed singing group, Ladysmith Black Mambazo, 

participated to showcase iconic KwaZulu-Natal experiences. 

As a result of the global popularity of this group, feedback 

and media coverage received proved outstanding.

Destination Brand Promotion with Plascon:

A  significant first in the tourism industry, involved our 

organisation undertaking an initiative to use non-tourism 

products to cross-market our destination. This we 

achieved by facilitating a KwaZulu-Natal holiday prize 

and partnering with leading packaged goods company, 

Plascon, to roll-out a national promotion. In exchange, 

the KwaZulu-Natal brand was featured in more than 1 000 

stores through a range of collateral. The in-store paint 

assistants wore branded T-shirts, while additional in-

store broadsheets and leaflets were distributed in Mica, 

Builders Warehouse and Shave Paint stores.

BRICS Initiatives

In line with Tourism KwaZulu-Natal market expansion 

endeavours and efforts to introduce destination 

awareness in new markets and to become aligned with 

national and political aspirations, Tourism KwaZulu-Natal 

developed and implemented a BRICS strategy during 

the review period. The result was a high-impact hive of 

activities in Brazil, Russia, India, and China.

Targeting African Markets

African Mega Fam:

A highlight included the inroads that Tourism KwaZulu-

Natal sought to make in African markets and its successes 

through the hosting of a Mega Familiarisation during the 

Vodacom Durban July. A total of 20 trade members and 

media representatives from the SADC region, Indian 

Ocean Islands and East and West Africa were hosted on a 

familiarisation trip around KwaZulu-Natal. 

Participation in the Kenyan Association of Travel 

Agencies (KATA) AGM:

Adding to the successes in making inroads in Africa, Tourism 

KwaZulu-Natal developed a relationship with the Kenyan 

Association of Travel Agencies (KATA) which resulted in our 

organisation being the only South African destination invited 

to participate in their Annual General Meeting. 

Ladysmith Black Mambazo and the Ballet Dancers of 

the Royal Opera House:

In another innovative move to showcase the best of 
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KwaZulu-Natal’s cultural heritage, while building on a 

previously developed relationship, was a partnership with 

United Kingdom-based Company, ECCO Tours, and ballet 

dancers from the London Royal Opera House, which resulted 

in the delivery of a performance – incorporating a fusion of 

ballet and Zulu dance – at London’s Clore Studios during the 

review period.

The ECCO Tours Academy Coming to KwaZulu-Natal 

in 2012:

Tourism KwaZulu-Natal boasts a solid relationship with 

ECCO Tours and, based on this, successfully negotiated a 

partnership arrangement for the proactive promotion of 

KwaZulu-Natal through a range of platforms provided by 

ECCO Tours within the United Kingdom and other markets. 

As a result of our relationship with ECCO Tours, the 2012 

Travel Academy will be split between KwaZulu-Natal and 

Cape Town, with the first two days in our province and the 

balance in Cape Town. 

Joint Marketing Agreements with leading

Tourism Organisations:

During the period under review, Tourism KwaZulu-Natal 

undertook 11 joint marketing agreements with the following 

organisations:

United Kingdom: Africa Travel, Africa Collection, Bridge and 

Wickers, Virgin Holidays, Responsible Travel;

United States of America: SAA Vacation, Go Way Travel;

Sweden: Sydafrikaresor;

Switzerland: Knetch Reisen, Gebeco; and 

Germany: Flex, Best of Travel Group.

Marketing Platforms for Marketing KwaZulu-Natal:

Globally, Tourism KwaZulu-Natal increased the 

destination’s presence and addressed a record 29 

marketing platforms, consisting of 10 leisure/consumer, 

14 trade and five business tourism platforms. 

Division Performance

The Marketing Division achieved all targets detailed in 

the action plan.

KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority
Annual Report 2011/12 29



Performance Information
Marketing

Business
Unit

Strategic 
Objective

Measurable 
Objective

Performance 
Indicators Target Performance Result Variance

Marketing To build 
a strong, 
integrated 
KwaZulu-Natal 
tourism brand

Launch and 
roll-out of 
the new 
KwaZulu-Natal 
destination 
brand in 
alignment 
with the South 
African brand   

Launch of the 
new brand 
including 
brand 
introduction 
workshops 
with District 
Municipalities

Launch of the 
new brand 
to all
stakeholders
through 
standing 
tourism 
platforms: 
PTF, PTC and 
Trade forums

The outcomes of the 
brand development 
were approved by 
Cabinet and presented 
to stakeholders during 
Indaba and at the 
Provincial Growth 
Forum (PTF) and PTC.

Internally to ensure 
staff buy-in and to 
use the TKZN staff as 
brand ambassadors of 
the new identity and 
positioning, a ‘New 
Day’ brand identity 
launch took place 
on 9 September. The 
internal activation was 
well received by staff. 
The new material, 
featuring the new 
brand identity, began 
being phased in at the 
New Day event. The 
target was to have all 
old stock phased out.

The new brand was 
shared with the 
General Sales Agency 
(GSA) based in the UK, 
TKZN trade partners 
and applied to UK 
and Americas Trade 
material.

The new brand was 
shared with the GSA 
based in German-
speaking countries, 
TKZN trade partners 
and applied to Europe 
trade material.
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Business
Unit

Strategic 
Objective

Measurable 
Objective

Performance 
Indicators Target Performance Result Variance

Maintenance 
of the top-of-
mind brand 
awareness by
implementation
of the new 
brand identity 
and entrenching 
of brand 
positioning

Above-the-
line and 
through-
the-line 
promotion of 
the brand

The promotional 
materials developed 
included: travel guides, 
golf brochures, trade 
directories, maps, 
accommodation guide, 
wall banners and new 
promotional gear.

TKZN, in partnership 
with DEDT, promoted 
the destination during 
the festive season. 
Promotions were 
featured on uKhozi FM, 
East Coast Radio and 
Lotus FM.  

TKZN also partnered 
with the organisers of 
the Rand Easter Show 
to promote and host an 
activation at this major 
show event.

The TKZN website 
was re-skinned and 
now features the new 
brand. The Facebook 
and Twitter accounts 
also feature the new 
brand.

TKZN, in partnership 
with the SAT USA office, 
embarked on a joint 
destination promotion 
in Luxury Advisor, 
one of the prominent 
trade and consumer 
magazines in the USA.
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Unit

Strategic 
Objective

Measurable 
Objective

Performance 
Indicators Target Performance Result Variance

Maintenance 
of the top-of-
mind brand 
awareness by
implementation
of the new 
brand identity 
and entrenching 
of brand 
positioning

Above-the-
line and 
through-
the-line 
promotion of 
the brand

Luxury Advisor is an 
annual magazine with a 
distribution of
60 000 to registered 
travel agents and 
40 000 to consumers.

All the material 
produced for the JMA 
and other partners 
featured the new brand.

After the hosting of 
Bavaria TV in KwaZulu-
Natal in May 2011, 
the destination was 
featured on Fernweh, 
a travel magazine TV 
programme. 

KwaZulu-Natal was 
featured in the 
Berliner Morgenpost, 
one of the biggest 
newspapers in Germany 
with a circulation of 
200 000. The article 
was themed “Wild 
wonders in KwaZulu-
Natal” with the 
focus on iSimangaliso 
Wetland Park, turtle 
hatching experience 
and Thula Thula Game 
Reserve with elephant 
experiences.

In a move to link the 
tourism brand to the 
mass market brands, 
TKZN partnered with 
Plascon Paints to 
promote and make 
visible the new brand 
in all Plascon shops, 
Builders’ Warehouse 
and Shave Paint stores 
with a reach of more 
than 1 000 outlets in 
South Africa.
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Unit

Strategic 
Objective

Measurable 
Objective

Performance 
Indicators Target Performance Result Variance

Increase 
the level of 
application 
alignment 
between the 
national, 
provincial and 
local levels 
by (Brand) 
application 
workshops 
with 
municipalities 
or sub-
destinations

To hold four 
workshops 
with DM/
tourism 
authorities 
on brand 
application

In the year under 
review a total of 
13 workshops were 
held: one workshop 
was held at PTF and 
12 workshops were 
conducted with 
District Municipalities, 
including: eThekwini, 
iLembe, uThukela, 
uMzinyathi, Amajuba, 
uMgungundlovu, 
uMkhanyakude, 
Sisonke, Zululand, 
Ugu, uThungulu and 
Emnambithi.

To defend 
KwaZulu-
Natal’s 
domestic 
market share 
and grow 
international 
arrivals

Maintain 
KwaZulu-Natal 
market share 
on arrival or 
visits 

Participation 
in domestic 
or consumer 
shows

Four shows 
per annum

Domestically, TKZN 
participated in fi ve 
consumer shows in 
the period under 
review, namely (1) 
DSTV Getaway in 
Gauteng, (2) Bridge 
City Bridal Fair in 
Durban, (3) Beeld 
Show in Gauteng, (4) 
Sports and Events  
Exchange (SETE) in 
Cape Town and (5) 
Soweto Festival in 
Gauteng. On the 
African continent, 
TKZN participated in 
the Sanganai Tourism 
Show in Harare, 
Zimbabwe.

The other consumer 
shows in which TKZN 
participated were: In 
the UK, the Dive show.

In the USA, in the 
Travel Bazaar in New 
York through sending a 
KZN artist/ crafter to 
showcase KZN arts
and craft.

In Europe, in three 
consumer shows, 
namely Fespo in 
Zurich, Switzerland; 
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Strategic 
Objective

Measurable 
Objective

Performance 
Indicators Target Performance Result Variance

CMT in Stuttgart, 
Germany; 
Vakantiebeurs in 
Utrecht Netherlands.
In the period under 
review, TKZN 
participated in 11 
consumer shows.

Partnership 
with trade 
in domestic 
arrivals 
promotion

One Trade 
partnership 
to jointly 
promote 
and sell 
destination

During this period, TKZN 
partnered with Standard 
Bank and Thompsons. 

The main objective of 
this partnership was 
to encourage Standard 
Bank to work with 
Thompsons in getting 
domestic travellers to 
buy holidays to KwaZulu-
Natal on credit. The 
Soweto show was used 
to pilot the project.

As part of ensuring 
that there was a 
call to action and 
an opportunity for 
purchase at consumer 
shows, TKZN partnered 
with four trade 
partners at the Beeld 
Holiday Show. Two
of those had won 
participation at the 
Tourism Trade Quarterly 
Growth Forum (TQGF) 
in February and the 
rest were SMMEs 
involved in TKZN’s 
incubation programme. 

At the Mauritius 
activation, TKZN 
partnered with six 
trade organisations 
from KwaZulu-Natal.

A total of 11 
partnerships with trade 
were realised in the 
year under review to 
promote and jointly sell 
the destination. 
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Strategic 
Objective

Measurable 
Objective

Performance 
Indicators Target Performance Result Variance

Partner with 
one SAT 
country for an 
international 
campaign.

One SAT/
KwaZulu-
Natal 
campaign 
focusing 
on events 
or special 
seasons

TKZN partnered with 
SAT US and organised 
‘Gone Rural’ (SMME 
artist) to showcase 
KwaZulu-Natal arts 
and craft at the Travel 
Bazaar, held in New 
York.

TKZN partnered with 
SAT Netherlands and 
facilitated a public 
relation opportunity 
for KwaZulu-Natal in 
Columbus Magazine, 
one of the biggest 
travel magazines 
in the Netherlands. 
TKZN also hosted 
two journalists 
from the magazine 
in KwaZulu-Natal 
and the destination 
received eight pages 
of coverage.

TKZN partnered with 
SAT France during 
TOPRESA, while 
Ladysmith Black 
Mambazo was detailed 
to showcase one of 
the iconic KwaZulu-
Natal experiences. 
TKZN also partnered 
with SAT France on 
the hosting of winners 
of the TOPRESA trade 
exhibition competition 
and the four 
journalists embarked 
on an adventure tour 
of KwaZulu-Natal. 

KwaZulu-Natal was 
the guest province 
for SAT’s My Afrique 
du Sud destination 
campaign for 2011. 
Accordingly, TKZN, in 
partnership with SAT 
France, conducted a 
KwaZulu-Natal-focused 
e-learning
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Measurable 
Objective

Performance 
Indicators Target Performance Result Variance

programme with 
key trade in France. 
The purpose of this 
training was to educate 
the French trade 
about KwaZulu-Natal 
and the successful 
participants were given 
an opportunity to win 
a fam trip to KwaZulu-
Natal. 

This initiative was 
conducted through 
Promoagv.com, an 
online specialist tour 
operator.

TKZN also hosted 
winners of the Spot the 
Lion campaign in terms 
of game ranger training 
in KwaZulu-Natal.

One seasonal 
deal-driven 
consumer 
campaign

One Deal- 
driven 
campaign 
focused on 
an event or 
season

TKZN partnered with a 
leading Packaged Goods 
Company, Plascon 
Paints, in the roll-out of 
a national promotion. 

TKZN provided 
“Holidays in KwaZulu-
Natal” as prizes. The 
KwaZulu-Natal brand 
was featured in more 
than 1 000 stores 
through bunting, 
wobblers, standees and 
branded T-shirts for in-
store paint assistants. 

In addition, TKZN 
participated together 
with Value South Africa 
embarking on a joint 
KwaZulu-Natal package 
promotion during the 
FITUR trade show in 
Spain. 

Package promotion 
leaflets were 
distributed to trade and 
consumers.

KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority
Annual Report 2011/1236



Business
Unit

Strategic 
Objective

Measurable 
Objective

Performance 
Indicators Target Performance Result Variance

TKZN, in partnership 
with Emirates, 
conducted a global 
campaign for the 
Emirates airline agents 
network, involving all 
Emirates destinations, 
numbering in excess 
of 100.

To strengthen 
trade relations 
with trade 
partners

Liaison and 
information 
sharing on 
provincial 
tourism 
industry issues
To profi le 
destination 
and increase 
awareness 
through trade 
engagements 
in countries 
chosen 
according 
to the 
segmentation 
model

Four Trade 
Quarterly 
Growth 
Forum (TQGF) 
meetings. 
Hosting 400 
members per 
year 

Four TQGFs 
per year.
400 trade 
stakeholders 
per year

Two TQGF’s were held. 

The TQGF sessions 
were held on 28 July 
2011 and 3 February 
2012, attended by 
202 people. At the 3 
February meeting, 
TKZN partnered with 
FEDHASA in terms of 
co-ordination. 

The following 
tourism associations 
also delivered 
presentations: SACCI, 
FEDHASA, SATSA, CVB, 
ASATA, KWABABA and 
SAT. 

In addition, in the 
UK and the Americas 
regions, interaction 
occurred with 545 
trade and travel agents 
through training and 
SATOA membership 
participation. 

An additional 20 
members of trade and 
media from SADC, 
Indian Ocean Islands, 
East and West Africa 
were hosted and 
trained in the lead up 
to VDJ.

Furthermore, TKZN 
took the opportunity 
to participate in the  
Kenyan Association 
of Travel Agencies 
(KATA) Annual General 
Meeting,
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which was held on 25 
June. The sponsorship 
afforded TKZN a 
platform to present 
to more than 50 KATA 
members.

In the UAE, TKZN 
hosted workshops for 
more than 50 delegates 
in Abu Dhabi and Dubai, 
training travel trade 
and the travel agents of 
Lama Tours about the 
destination. 

In the Europe region, 
information sharing 
was undertaken 
through the monthly 
newsletter sent to 
the Annerkannte 
Spezialisten fur 
Afrika Reizen (ASA), 
a German-based 
Association for the 
Promotion of Tourism 
to Southern and East 
Africa with 4 000 travel 
agents contained 
in their database, 
together with 500 
media representatives.

Co-promotion 
with Emirates 
Holidays
(or similar) 
beyond 2012

Develop 
a joint 
promotion 
targeting 
the Middle 
East and 
other source 
markets 
served by 
Emirates 
Airlines

TKZN partnered with 
Emirates Holidays 
in the promotion of 
the KwaZulu-Natal 
destination through 
the sponsorship of 
the Emirates Holidays 
brochure launch. At 
this launch the target 
market included UAE 
agents as well as all 
the Emirates Holidays 
global agents who sell 
the products in their 
brochure. 

In addition, TKZN, 
in partnership with 
Emirates, hosted MICE 
buyers at a networking 
function, which took  
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place on 22 September 
2011 in Hamburg. 

Co-activity 
with Air 
Mauritius 
(2011/12) or 
similar partner

Develop a 
joint activity 
targeting the 
Mauritian 
trade in 
partnership 
with Mauritius 
Airlines.

In partnership with 
Air Mauritius, TKZN 
hosted five media 
representatives from 
Mauritius on KwaZulu-
Natal familiarisation/ 
educational trips and 
the Vodacom Durban 
July.

In addition, during 
this period, TKZN 
co-ordinated the Food 
Festival Exhibition, 
which took place 
in Mauritius. The 
exhibition included 
a KwaZulu-Natal 
networking function 
attended by more 
than 100 Mauritian 
trade representatives, 
the South African 
Ambassador based in 
Mauritius and senior 
executives from Air 
Mauritius. Also present 
was a troupe of Zulu 
Dancers and a popular 
South African chef to 
cook typical KwaZulu-
Natal food. 

The venue was 
decorated to showcase 
the province, with 
the hotel waitrons all 
branded with KwaZulu-
Natal regalia. TKZN 
partnered with six 
KwaZulu-Natal products 
during the activation.

TKZN also hosted 
the winners of the 
Air Mauritius/TKZN 
roadshow in terms of a 
seven-day holiday prize 
in KwaZulu-Natal.    

KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority
Annual Report 2011/12 39



Performance Information
Marketing

Business
Unit

Strategic 
Objective

Measurable 
Objective

Performance 
Indicators Target Performance Result Variance

Hosting of 
Tourism Indaba

Hosting of 
Tourism 
Indaba in 
Durban, 
KwaZulu-
Natal

Tourism Indaba was 
hosted between 7 and 
10 May 2011.

Joint 
Marketing 
Agreements: 
Contracting 
and activation 
through 
educationals 
or trade 
workshops  

Sign-up/ 
activate 
nine JMAs 
in source 
markets. 
Training of 
JMA partners 
one new 
itinerary 
introduced

During the period under 
review TKZN undertook 
the following JMAs:
1. Africa Travel - a 
travel agent and 
consumer e-blast 
promotion to market 
KwaZulu-Natal was 
executed in April 
and a postcard mail 
promotion was sent 
to the Africa Travel 
database of 300 000 
clients.

2. Africa Collection 
- a travel agent and 
consumer e-marketing 
promotion with 
newspaper packages 
focusing on the 
battlefields and the 
rest of KwaZulu-Natal 
was executed. 
 
3. Bridge and Wickers 
- Daily Telegraph 
newspaper advert, 
in-house brochure 
packages and Sunday 
Times newspaper 
advert, all targeted 
at consumers, were 
flighted.

4. Virgin Holidays  
- During the period 
under review, the 
following activities 
took place: Virgin 
website promotion, 
e-newsletter to the
300 000-strong Virgin 
database and Lonely 
Planet advertisement 
to consumers and 
travel agents.
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Indicators Target Performance Result Variance

Co-activity 
with Air 
Mauritius 
(2011/12) or 
similar partner

Develop a 
joint activity 
targeting the 
Mauritian 
trade in 
partnership 
with Mauritius 
Airlines.

5. Responsible Travel 
- During the period 
under review TKZN 
signed a contract with 
RT – an organisation 
focusing on responsible 
tourism, essentially 
about tourists who 
travel extensively, 
visiting ‘least visited’ 
areas with the 
intention of driving 
responsible travel. As 
part of the RT contract, 
an educational tour 
was scheduled and 
RT agents were 
hosted pre- and 
post-Indaba 2011 
to familiarise them 
with KwaZulu-Natal 
products, especially the 
Afriportico products.

6. SAA Vacation 
- introduced two new 
route itineraries and 
marketed these to 
their database. SAA 
Vacations also produced 
an e-newsletter 
promoting the new 
itineraries and mailed 
these to their 150 000 
clientele data base.

7. Knetch Reisen:  
As part of their 
50th anniversary 
celebrations, this 
organisation conducted 
a series of activities 
under the theme 
“anniversary”. 
TKZN hosted fi ve 
representatives 
of Knecht Reisen, 
accompanied by 
journalists from Radio 
Argovia, prior to the 
event in September 
2011. TKZN exhibited 
at their event and the 
destination received 
further coverage 
through
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Joint 
Marketing 
Agreements: 
Contracting 
and activation 
through 
educationals 
or trade 
workshops  

Sign-up/ 
activate 
nine JMAs 
in source 
markets. 
Training of 
JMA partners 
one new 
itinerary 
introduced

radio promotion of the 
event. Furthermore, 
Tour Link ran a radio 
competition based on 
the trip to KwaZulu-
Natal, targeting 
journalists, with the 
main prize being a trip 
to our province.

8. Gebeco:
TKZN participated in 
the Gebeco Four Cities 
Workshop (Bremen, 
Hamburg, Hannover 
and Hildesheim). The 
tour operator featured 
KwaZulu-Natal in two 
10-day packages in 
their 2011/12 brochure
 
9. Flex: 
This tour operator 
featured KwaZulu-Natal 
in an online promotion 
and a KwaZulu-
Natal tour flyer was 
distributed between 
January and February 
2012. The destination 
was further profiled 
in the TUI Suisse News 
which was distributed 
to their travel agencies. 
The tour operator B2B 
Newsletter, which 
included a provincial 
profile, was distributed 
and additionally loaded 
online in Newsnet. 
Further online banners 
were loaded on the 
TUI website, which is 
a holding company of 
Flex.

10. Best of Travel 
Group:   
The tour operator 
featured KwaZulu-
Natal in two 10-day 
packages in their 
2011/12 brochure. The 
tour operator ran a 
KwaZulu-Natal 
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advertisement 
and editorial in 
the November and 
December editions of 
Vitale Senioren, one 
of the best magazines 
for senior citizens in 
Germany. 

11. Sydafrikaressor: 
TKZN facilitated an 
educational media 
trip for two travel and 
lifestyle journalists 
from Sweden to 
KwaZulu-Natal. 

Also hosted eight 
travel agents on a 
familiarisation trip 
around the province. 
Sydafrikaresor has 
increased its online 
coverage of KwaZulu-
Natal to 10 adverts 
in Reseguiden, one of 
the top Swedish online 
travel platforms. This 
platform included a 
range of new KwaZulu-
Natal tours.

12: GoWay Travel:  
To promote and jointly 
sell the destination in 
the USA and Canada, 
Goway afforded TKZN 
an opportunity for  
destination branding 
and presentation at 
Goway Workshops. 

TKZN partnered with 
Thompsons to host the 
trade from America. 
The hosting objective 
was to educate the 
Goway travel agents 
about key offerings in 
KwaZulu-Natal.
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Profile 
destination 
via trade 
and business 
tourism 
exhibitions

Seven leisure/
trade shows

10  Leisure/Consumer 
shows were attended:  
(1) DSTV Getaway in 
Gauteng, (2) Bridge 
City Bridal Fair in 
Durban, (3) Beeld 
Show in Gauteng, (4) 
Sanganai Tourism Show 
in Harare Zimbabwe, 
(5) Soweto Festival 
in Gauteng, (6) Dive 
Show in the UK, (7) 
Travel Bazaar in New 
York, USA, (8) Fespo 
in Zurich, (9) CMT in 
Stuttgart, Germany, 
(10) Vakantiebeurs in 
Utrecht, Netherlands 

A total of 14 Trade 
shows were attended: 
(1) Tourism Indaba, in 
Durban South Africa 
(2) India multicity 
workshops, (3) 
Mauritius In-country 
Workshops, (4) SAA USA 
workshops in six cities 
(LA, St Francisco, Fort 
Lauderdale, Chicago, 
Seattle and Washington 
DC, USA, (5) Brazil 
Trade Workshops, (6) 
Argentina Embassy 
Workshops, (7) WTM 
in London, UK (8) New 
York Show in the USA, 
(9) Russia multicity 
trade workshops in 3 
cities, Kiev, Moscow 
and St. Petersburg, (10) 
TOPRESA trade show in 
Paris France, (11) SAT 
Italy Five Cities Trade 
road show, (12) ITB in 
Berlin Germany, (13) 
Fitur in Madrid, Spain, 
(14) Vakantiebeurs 
in Amsterdam, 
Netherlands. 
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Business
Unit

Strategic 
Objective

Measurable 
Objective

Performance 
Indicators Target Performance Result Variance

In total, during the 
period under review, 
the KwaZulu-Natal 
destination was profi led 
in 24 leisure and/or 
trade platforms 

Four business 
shows

Five business tourism 
shows were attended: 
(1) Meetings Africa in 
Johannesburg, South 
Africa, (2) Sports 
& Events Tourism 
Exchange in Cape 
Town, South Africa, (3) 
Americas Incentives, 
Business Travel and 
Meetings (AIBTM) in 
the USA, (4) Incentive 
travel, Meetings 
& Events (IMEX) in 
Frankfurt Germany 
and (5) European 
Incentives, Business 
Travel and Meetings 
(EIBTM) in Spain

In total, during the 
period under review, 
the KwaZulu-Natal 
destination was profi led 
in 24 business tourism 
platforms.
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Strategic Objectives

• To build and maintain a positive image of Tourism KwaZulu-

Natal and to promote KwaZulu-Natal as a preferred 

destination through stakeholder orientation, strategic event 

support and customer care service excellence recognition 

programmes;

• To increase brand awareness and positive brand associations 

through event partnership and support;

• To manage and control messages to both external and 

internal stakeholders; and

• To ensure ongoing internal communications.

Key Performance Areas

• Build and maintain the positive image of TKZN;

• Improve media exposure of the province of KwaZulu-Natal;

• Co-ordinate events supported by TKZN;

• Co-ordinate TKZN’s attendance at functions/events to 

which the organisation may be invited in order to build 

stakeholder relations;

• Ensure brand visibility at all hosted and supported 

functions/events;

• Promote and communicate organisational objectives, 

achievements and the brand;

• Champion the cause of service excellence and improved 

customer care; and

• Raise awareness around issues related to tourism.

Performance Information
Public Relations and 
Communications

        duriNg the 2011/12 

fiNaNCial year

the publiC relatioNs aNd 

CommuNiCatioNs divisioN 

worKed towards effeCtive 

delivery agaiNst its Core 

maNdate.
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 iN the Quest to maiNtaiN a positive image aNd boost the destiNatioN’s 

image, tourism Kwazulu-Natal utilised a Number of platforms to 

CommuNiCate with strategiC partNers aNd other staKeholders

Performance Information
Public Relations and Communications

General Manager’s Overview

uring the 2011/12 fi nancial year the Public 

Relations and Communications Division worked 

towards effective delivery against its core 

mandate. This involved building and maintaining 

a positive image of the Zulu Kingdom brand, 

identifying and optimally utilising media leverage 

opportunities for brand promotion, building and maintaining 

healthy internal and external stakeholder relations and 

providing effective tourist after-care services. In addition, 

we set out to promote service excellence within the 

industry, while advancing greater tourism awareness.

In the quest to maintain a positive image and boost the 

destination’s image, Tourism KwaZulu-Natal utilised a 

number of platforms to communicate with strategic partners 

and other stakeholders, both internally and externally. We 

also executed activations through the media in an effort 

to broadly paint a positive image of the destination. These 

endeavours proved especially successful with publicity 

received during the review period being worth almost 

R70 million. Additional coverage of the province was also 

generated in the United Kingdom by way of activities conducted 

by our General Sales Agencies in the United Kingdom. 

Our active participation in the extremely popular and widely 

read bi-monthly consumer publication, What, Where and 

When proved hugely benefi cial. The publication was used 

to inform readers about KwaZulu-Natal experiences, raising 

awareness about local tourism issues and, importantly, 

available events and activities within the province.

In a concerted effort to ensure an ongoing destination 

information presence in key print, radio and television 

media-types, Tourism KwaZulu-Natal hosted a number of 

national and international journalists for the purposes of 

destination profi ling, along with various VIPs who provided 

useful destination endorsement.

The media and VIP programme focused on the East3Route 

which saw participants travel north from St Lucia, crossing 

into Mozambique and then Swaziland before reverting to 

KwaZulu-Natal.

The programme created numerous opportunities for 

participating media representatives to source, compile 

and fi le a range of positive articles and programmes for 

the benefi t of their respective audiences. Gratifyingly, our 

tried-and-tested approach of providing the media a free 

rein to explore, sample and experience our products again 

paid handsome dividends with destination KwaZulu-Natal 

receiving extremely positive coverage. 

Further media support for tourism-related sporting events, 

such as the province’s three-day Duzi Canoe Marathon and 

the Amashova Durban Classic cycle race, both run between 

Pietermaritzburg and Durban, also proved most pleasing.

Tourism KwaZulu-Natal also facilitated linkages between 

the media and a variety of product owners, through which 

process owners were interviewed, affording them an ideal 

image, tourism Kwazulu-Natal utilised a Number of platforms to 
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opportunity to showcase their products to the general 

public and share their success stories through the mediums 

of print, radio and television. Such interview opportunities 

were also extended to small, medium and micro enterprise 

tourism owners participating in the massive Tourism Indaba 

2011 trade show in Durban. Through live interviews with 

uKhozi FM these enterprise owners successfully promoted 

their establishments nationally.

Our organisation believes that sustainable service excellence 

delivery within the local tourism sector is an imperative. 

We accordingly remained committed to the unrelenting 

promotion of this vital value, undertaking a number of 

interventions designed to ensure that visitors to the Zulu 

Kingdom enjoyed high quality service, leaving this province 

with a positive impression of their overall stay.

Importantly, we successfully united with key public and 

private partners in order to conduct activations designed to 

bring about increased numbers of visitors to Durban during 

the popular summer holiday season. We partnered with 

Signature Life, Ezemvelo KZN Wildlife, Durban Tourism, 

Department of Arts, Culture, Sports and Recreation and Sun 

International in promoting a range of artists – clear crowd-

pullers – known widely as ‘Durban’s finest.’ 

The year under review was, perhaps, best characterised by 

the number of provincial events for which our organisation 

displayed active support and which showed the sheer 

geographic spread of tourism experiences in KwaZulu-Natal. 

This approach ensured that areas away from the major 

metropoles also benefited from our burgeoning provincial 

tourism profile.

Performance Highlights

Media Relations and Leveraging:
An extensive media hosting initiative launched in the 

2011/12 financial year paid tremendous dividends, with 

all involved media representatives painting a gratifyingly 

positive view of destination KwaZulu-Natal.

A number of international and national media representatives, 

drawn from print, radio and television, were hosted by 

Tourism KwaZulu-Natal during the review period in order to 

secure destination profiling with integrity. Journalists were 

encouraged to deliver to their audiences their own stories 

insofar as Tourism KwaZulu-Natal provided the media free 

access to explore, sample and experience the province. This 

approach clearly provided more credibility than if Tourism 

KwaZulu-Natal had generated and distributed a range 

of media releases detailing KwaZulu-Natal’s competitive 

advantages and attributes. During the 2011/12 financial 

year, Tourism KwaZulu-Natal successfully negotiated 

and secured partnership arrangements with several key 

KwaZulu-Natal newspapers, including: 

• Independent on Saturday

• Isolezwe: Saturday edition

• The Sunday Times: Zulu edition

The objective behind this partnership was to offer 

accommodation establishments within KwaZulu-Natal 
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an opportunity to be profi led at no cost. This opportunity 

created leveraging opportunities with the media partners 

and the profi ling of no fewer than 40 KwaZulu-Natal hotels, 

lodges and B & B establishments. 

Each received an Advertising Value Estimate in excess of 

R500 000, while the destination received more than R125 000 

coverage during the course of the fi nancial year. Total exposure 

received by way of leveraged media opportunities was valued 

in excess of R68 million, and was indicative of the success of 

our positive showcasing of KwaZulu-Natal for the benefi t of a 

range of audiences, both locally and internationally.

Tourism Month (East3Route)

orld Tourism Day was created in Spain in 1979

by the United Nations World Tourism Organisation 

(UNWTO), as a means of raising awareness 

about the importance of tourism within 

communities globally. 

This special day is commemorated each year on 27 September. 

The 2011 World Tourism Day theme was ‘Tourism Linking 

Cultures’, and was designed to encourage people to travel 

within their own destinations, so improving tourism awareness 

and growth at a domestic level.

The 2011 focus centred on African cultures and looked 

to exploring how they might work together to assist in 

transforming and promoting the tourism industry. KwaZulu-

Natal’s provincial celebration took the form of a cross-border 

country excursion which saw us linking with Mozambique 

and Swaziland, with the following objectives:

• Stimulating and exploring investment opportunities in 

the north-east of the SADC region; 

• Raising the importance of tourism within domestic 

communities; and

• Raising awareness about other African cultures and 

exploring ways and means for such cultures to work 

together in an effort to transform and promote tourism.

The venture was launched in Sandton on 26 September to 

stimulate awareness and obtain widespread buy-in from 

stakeholders, while garnering support from prospective 

participants and sponsors. It is envisaged that this venture 

will become an annual event.

Public Private Partnerships

KwaZulu-Natal/Durban – Keep Jozi Warm:

t the beginning of 2011 Tourism KwaZulu-Natal was 

approached by Pandora Entertainment and Blue 

Tours with a proposal to fund a music project to be 

staged in Gauteng in July of that year.

Tourism KwaZulu-Natal’s interest in the project went 

beyond funding the project to include utilising the 

platform to help drive domestic activation by employing 

Durban artists as crowd-pullers. This was regarded as an 

opportunity to create awareness, develop interest and a 

desire amongst people to travel to KwaZulu-Natal. The 

organisation believed it fi tting to, in turn, partner with 

the Department of Arts and Culture, Durban Tourism, 

KZN Ezemvelo Wildlife and Signature Life in taking the 

campaign forward. 

The campaign enabled KwaZulu-Natal-based artists to 

perform in Johannesburg, Pretoria and Kagiso Township in 

Krugersdorp. The purpose was to entice consumers into 

escaping the cold of Gauteng by coming to KwaZulu-Natal 

and experiencing the warmth of winter here. The activation 

was also taken to Soweto’s Jabulani Mall and to the area’s 

primary tourist attraction, Vilakazi Street, to further 

encourage a broad range of tourists to consider KwaZulu-

Natal as their next holiday destination. The event proved a 

great success, evidenced by increased numbers of visitors to 

the province in December 2011. 

In addition and as a consequence of the campaign, KwaZulu-

Natal drew positive media reaction from Kaya FM, uKhozi FM 

and CNBC. The latter media-type screened the activation 

with repeats and featured it again in the channel’s year-end 

highlights package.   

Escape to Paradise:

Our Escape to Paradise activation took us, together 

with our strategic partners Durban Tourism, Ezemvelo 

KZN Wildlife, uShaka Marine World and Southern Sun, 

Performance Information
Public Relations and Communications
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to Gauteng. The activation targeted a series of malls in 

Soweto, Sandton and Tembisa and included useful one-

on-one sessions with media competitions through Kaya FM 

and a tour aboard a branded open-top bus. The activation 

was designed to put KwaZulu-Natal and organisations 

which made up the partnership fi rmly on the map, 

ensuring that Durban and the province became a top-of-

mind destination for the people of Gauteng.

New York Marathon Expo:

The primary objective of participating in the New York 

Marathon Expo was twofold. Firstly, the event provided 

an ideal opportunity to market and promote our own 

ultra-event, the Comrades Marathon, to American and 

other international athletes participating in the New York 

Marathon. The purpose was to highlight the Comrades 

Marathon as the biggest ultra-marathon in the world 

(Guinness Book of Records) and as South Africa’s best road 

race. Secondly, the event was ideal for the promotion of 

KwaZulu-Natal, home of the annual Comrades Marathon. 

In both instances, the event was a useful platform for 

the provision of comprehensive information about this 

province which the athletes and their families and friends 

could utilise in planning trips to KwaZulu-Natal.

To give effect to our promotion, Tourism KwaZulu-Natal 

was able to facilitate:

• A linkage with international travel company, 

Marathon Tours & Travel, which hosted a booth at 

the marathon expo in an effort to promote trips to 

the Comrades Marathon in 2012. Former athlete, 

Zola Budd, who was completing a duty stint at the 

Newton Shoe booth, agreed to distribute brochures 

regarding the Comrades Marathon at other races she 

was to visit in the USA;

• The launch by Gerry Louw and his American wife of 

a project to bring 1 000 Americans to the Comrades 

Marathon during the next several years. He was 

also working on an itinerary for runners scheduled 

to travel to participate in the Comrades Marathon. 

He was introduced to contacts from Phinda, Durban 

Tourism and Ezemvelo KZN Wildlife to assist him in 

fi nalising his itinerary and for future packages on 

which he aims to work;

• The conclusion of a successful networking 

endeavour. The team made extremely valuable 

contacts across the spectrum, some of which have 

already been utilised to advantage.

The New York Marathon visit was a great public relations 

success, indicating that there is no replacement for direct 

interaction with primary customers, being – in this case 

– runners and future travellers. Given that the New York 

Marathon attracts marathon and ultra-marathon runners 

from across the world, evidenced by the wide variety of 

athletes who visited our stand, participation in the ING 

New York City Marathon Health and Fitness Expo also 

proved a great platform to assist in growing KwaZulu-

Natal ‘s market share in the United Kingdom. 

Impressively, the 2011 Comrades Marathon drew a record 

1 387 international entries.
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World Golfers Championship in KwaZulu-Natal:

Tourism KwaZulu-Natal partnered with the Department 

of Economic Development and Tourism in hosting the 

2011 World Golfers Championship at Fairmont Zimbali 

Hotel and Resorts between 30 October and 5 November 

last year. Other key partners included iLembe District 

Municipality and Trade & Investment KwaZulu-Natal. 

The event was staged in KwaZulu-Natal for the first time 

as a result of South African company, WEGESA’s winning 

bid for the three-year hosting of the tournament. The 

award of the tournament followed Tourism KwaZulu-

Natal’s review period hosting of key delegates conducting 

a site visit to ascertain that the proposed golf courses 

were of world standard. They were not to be disappointed 

and on completion of their tour, identified four different 

courses for the event.

 

The 2011 World Golfers Championship attracted participants 

from 32 countries and resulted in more than 192 bed nights 

in terms of post-event tours and numerous pre-event tours 

by family and friends travelling with participants.

The event is to be hosted in KwaZulu-Natal in 2012 and 

again in 2013.

Rand Easter Show Media Coverage:

In an effort to intensify destination presence domestically, 

Tourism KwaZulu-Natal participated in the Rand Easter Show 

in Gauteng. This provided an opportunity to leverage and 

secure media interest through an activation designed to 

position KwaZulu-Natal as a top-of-mind tourism destination 

in the eyes of Gauteng consumers. The destination received 

positive coverage on Kaya FM, which broadcast from the 

organisation’s exhibition stand, CNBC Africa, Soweto TV, The 

New Age and SABC TV’s Shift Programme. The MEC for the 

Department of Economic Development and Tourism was also 

invited to be a panel member on a live SABC 1 broadcast.

Annual Report

Tourism KwaZulu-Natal’s effective co-ordination of the 

2010/11 Annual Report resulted in this flag-ship document 

being undertaken, finalised and produced in a timely manner, 

ahead of submission for tabling before the Legislature.

Division Performance
The Public Relations and Communications Division achieved 

all targets detailed in the action plan.   

Performance Information
Public Relations and Communications
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Business
Unit

Strategic 
Objective

Measurable 
Objective

Performance 
Indicators Target Performance Result Variance

Image- 
Building

To build and 
maintain 
positive image 
of TKZN and 
to promote 
KwaZulu-Natal 
as a preferred 
destination 
through 
stakeholder 
orientation, 
strategic 
event support, 
customer care 
programme 
featuring 
tourist safety 
promotion  

Driving 
awareness and 
favourable 
perceptions of 
the destination 
through 
hosting 
relevant media
representatives,
travel opinion-
makers, trade 
partners, 
special-needs/
UA
representatives,
prospective 
clients at key 
attractions 
and events, 
including the 
Tourism Month 
celebration

Hosting of 
strategically 
selected 
stakeholders

Tourism Month 
hosting, 
promoting 
a new 
experience

Eight

One

To achieve the 
objective, TKZN hosted 
at least fi ve celebrities 
from Gagasi FM, uKhozi 
FM, Sunday Times and 
Isolezwe which resulted 
in brand endorsement 
and of KwaZulu-Natal. 
Through Facebook and 
Twitter they kept their 
followers informed 
about the province 
which resulted in 
positive image-building. 

Hosted a total of 
eight media and trade 
groups from Germany, 
Switzerland, the 
Netherlands, Argentina, 
Brazil, Thailand, USA, 
China and Sweden.

Organised two Fam 
trips for SAT offi cials 
based in USA and 
Australian offi ces.

• USA Country Manager, 
Ms Sthu Zungu, 
explored the Midlands 
area
• Australia and New 
Zealand Marketing 
Assistant, Margot 
Abrahams, explored
Zululand and Durban. 

Co-ordinated Indaba 
pre and post-tours 
to familiarise buyers 
attending Indaba with 
KwaZulu-Natal products 
in order that they 
could develop packages 
consisting of sampled 
experiences.

Project-managed an 
East3Route tourism 
expedition that saw 
participants travelling 
from KwaZulu-Natal 
to Mozambique and 
Swaziland before 
returning to their 
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Business
Unit

Strategic 
Objective

Measurable 
Objective

Performance 
Indicators Target Performance Result Variance

respective countries, 
thus creating a route 
that will be marketed 
domestically and 
internationally. 

During the expedition 
the province hosted 
relevant media, travel 
opinion-makers, trade 
partners and other key 
stakeholders.

Image- 
Building

To build and 
maintain 
positive image 
of TKZN and 
to promote 
KwaZulu-Natal 
as a preferred 
destination 
through 
stakeholder 
orientation, 
strategic 
event support, 
customer care 
programme 
featuring 
tourist safety 
promotion 

Driving 
awareness 
and positive 
perception 
of KwaZulu-
Natal regions 
through the 
support of 
community 
events 
representing 
local 
heritage and 
attractions, 
and through 
leveraging 
high-impact 
national or
internationally-
organised 
events for 
maximised 
publicity

Support 
KwaZulu-Natal 
regional events 
and leveraging 
nationally/ 
internationally 
organised 
high-publicity 
events 

18 To continue driving 
awareness, TKZN 
provided financial 
and technical support 
to the following 18 
provincial events; 
Midmar Mile Swimming; 
Amashova Cycling; 
Vodacom Durban 
July; Dusi Canoeing; 
Comrades Marathon; 
MTN Jazz Festival; 
UCI MTB Cycling; 
Splashy Fen; Sardine 
Festival; World Golfers 
Championship; Drak 
Challenge; Newcastle 
Air Show; Fort 
Nottingham Highland 
Games; Ballito Prawn 
Festival; Encounter East 
Griqualand  Festival; 
Royal  Agricultural 
Show.

TKZN leveraged on 
the Reed Dance event 
by hosting journalists, 
exposing them to the 
event and thus creating 
public awareness of the 
event and Zulu culture.

TKZN leveraged on a 
partnership with the 
Comrades Marathon 
Association in terms 
of an exhibition and 
activation at the New 
York Marathon in 
November 2011. This 
resulted in an increase 
in the number of 
international
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Business
Unit

Strategic 
Objective

Measurable 
Objective

Performance 
Indicators Target Performance Result Variance

athletes participating 
in the 2012 Comrades 
Marathon.

Driving 
awareness 
and positive 
perception 
through briefs 
and  press 
releases 
fi ltered to 
media on 
provincial 
tourism 
activity and 
performance

Quarterly 
briefs or media 
releases 

Four A media briefi ng took 
place during a visit by 
the Deputy Minister of 
Tourism on her quest to 
drive township tourism. 
It was held at the 
Elangeni Hotel and was 
followed by a tour to 
Umlazi.

Another media 
briefi ng was held at 
the Sandton ICC on 26 
September 2011 when 
Swaziland, Mozambique 
and KwaZulu-
Natal, launched the 
East3Route. This was 
in relation to the 2011 
world tourism theme 
by UNWTO ‘Linking 
Cultures’ as KwaZulu-
Natal and TKZN worked 
towards linking South 
Africa, Swaziland and 
Mozambique.

Two press releases were 
generated regarding:
• East3Route launch; 

and
• Mauritius In Country 

activation

Driving 
awareness 
and positive 
perceptions 
through 
stakeholder/
trade 
information 
sessions or 
media briefi ngs 
to share 
provincial 
tourism 
successes or 
organisational 
achievements

Stakeholder 
sessions 
with tourism 
leadership 

Four Participated in two 
sessions and, on 
another two platforms, 
contributed content for 
presentation to Tourism 
Trade Quarterly Growth 
Forum, in order to keep 
stakeholders informed 
and updated about 
issues pertaining to 
TKZN’s plans, activities 
and achievements.
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Business
Unit

Strategic 
Objective

Measurable 
Objective

Performance 
Indicators Target Performance Result Variance

Image- 
Building

To build and 
maintain 
positive image 
of TKZN and 
to promote 
KwaZulu-Natal 
as a preferred 
destination 
through 
stakeholder 
orientation, 
strategic 
event support, 
customer care 
programme 
featuring 
tourist safety 
promotion 

Driving 
awareness 
and positive 
perception 
relating to 
safety and 
customer 
care through  
gateway point 
distribution 
of tourism 
information 
and safety tips 
brochures

Customer-care 
campaigns and 
interventions, 
such as 
tourism 
ambassador 
allocation for 
key events or 
high season 

Three 
toll-gate 
campaigns

Co-ordinated four toll-
gate campaigns in Mooi 
River, Oribi and Tongaat 
Plaza in partnership 
with the Toll Reach 
company during;
• Easter Campaign: 

School Holidays
• Winter Campaign
• September School 

break
• Summer Magic Run

Distributed safety 
tip brochures and 
WWW at tollgates and 
establishments in KZN.

Distributed safety 
tip brochures at 
Golela border Gate 
to KwaZulu-Natal, 
in partnership with 
the Border Control 
Operations Co-
ordination Committee, 
with the objective 
of informing tourists 
of ways to remain 
safe while enjoying 
holidaying in KwaZulu-
Natal.

Deployed ambassadors 
during major holidays 
and events, including 
the December festive 
season and Tourism 
Indaba, to assist with 
the safety of tourists 
in the province and to 
be the eyes-and-ears 
of the police in dealing 
with the safety of 
tourists.
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Business
Unit

Strategic 
Objective

Measurable 
Objective

Performance 
Indicators Target Performance Result Variance

Promoting 
a positive 
image through 
effi cient 
management 
of the after-
care tourist 
support and 
successful 
handling of 
service-related 
issues to 
the tourist’s 
satisfaction 
or according 
to approved 
case by case 
resolution 
standards 
(excludes 
criminal cases)

Resolution of 
service-related 
complaints or 
issues 

100% 
resolution

Assisted tourists who 
needed help with lost 
documentation through 
the Department 
of Home Affairs, 
hospital visits and 
accommodation and 
adhered to a 24-hour 
turn-around time 
in responding to all 
reported complaints.
Maintained an 
updated database of 
reported complaints 
and resolved cases, 
including positive 
feedback received from 
complainants.

Promoting 
a positive 
image for the 
destination by 
supporting and 
encouraging 
service 
excellence,  
recognition 
and awards 
across the 
various types 
of tourism 
operations or 
services  

Response 
facilitation, 
tourist support 
and after-care 
programme 
in cases of 
emergency 

90% customer 
satisfaction

Participated in a 
review of the Service 
Excellence  awards 
with National 
Department of Tourism. 
The process is ongoing 
and the awards will be 
launched in September 
2012 and only then will 
TKZN begin working on 
the provincial awards 
which will be aligned to 
the national awards.

Ratio of 
positive 
publicity 
generated 
from hosting, 
media 
briefi ngs, press 
releases,
communication
releases,
platforms 
extolling 
KZN tourism 
attributes 
or provincial 
tourism 
initiatives and 
success

Ratio of 
positive 
publicity 
generated 
from the 
programme 
(for each 
element there 
should be 
publicity; and 
every piece 
of negative 
publicity to be 
cancelled out 
by number of 
positive ones)

M 1:1 Received positive 
media coverage as 
opposed to negative 
coverage.  With the 
allocated budget of 
R706 670 for image-
building KwaZulu-Natal 
generated over 
R65 865 557 of 
coverage, an increase 
from the previous 
year’s total coverage 
valued at R53 647 473.
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Business
Unit

Strategic 
Objective

Measurable 
Objective

Performance 
Indicators Target Performance Result Variance

Event 
Support

To increase 
brand 
awareness 
through events 

Increase 
product and 
destination 
awareness 
through 
support of 
events spread 
across the 
province

Destination 
attributes 
awareness 
(appropriate 
brand 
association) 
measured at 
(x 15) hosted 
events

12 Tourism Information 
Services  research team 
conducted surveys at 
the following events: 
Splashy Fen Music 
Festival; Amashova 
Durban Classic; 
Ballito Prawn Festival; 
COP17; Dusi Canoe 
Marathon; Comrades 
Marathon; International 
Confederation of 
Midwives: 29th 
Triennial Congress 
(ICC survey); Indaba; 
Midmar Mile; Newcastle 
Air show and Vodacom 
Durban July. Results 
and recommendations 
were shared with 
organisers to assist in 
growing the event in 
anticipation of there 
being an opportunity to 
do so. 

Optimise 
destination 
brand 
awareness 
through 
participation 
in targeted 
high-profile 
events for 
leveraged 
media 
exposure

Destination 
brand 
awareness 
promoted 
through three 
high-profile 
events 

Three Used the opportunity 
for destination brand 
awareness at the 
following high-profile 
events:
• TKZN Indaba 

breakfast;
• East3Route;
• Gauteng Rand Easter 

Show.

Promote 
destination 
brand 
awareness 
and positive 
image in key 
domestic and 
international 
markets, by 
facilitating 
targeted 
exhibitions or 
activations

Destination 
brand 
awareness 
among event 
activation 
participants

Six Attended six shows 
in promoting the new 
brand.
Soweto Festival: 
partnered with 
uKhozi FM for an 
Outside Broadcast and 
competition at the 
show.

Partnered with 
Comrades Marathon 
Association for 
an exhibition and 
activation at the 2011 
New York Marathon. 
This resulted in 
increased number of 
international athletes 

Performance Information
Public Relations and Communications
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Business
Unit

Strategic 
Objective

Measurable 
Objective

Performance 
Indicators Target Performance Result Variance

participating in the 2012 
Comrades Marathon.

Attended the Emirates 
Brochure Launch 
in Dubai to create 
awareness about the 
province and brand. 
TKZN presence at 
supported events 
was shown by way of 
banners.

Attended ITB, World 
Travel Market and 
Meetings Africa to 
continue creating 
awareness about brand 
KwaZulu-Natal and 
managing MEC’s diary, 
manning the stand and 
attending to questions 
and distribution of 
KwaZulu-Natal material.

Supporting 
tourism safety 
and awareness 
workshops 
hosted in 
partnership 
with Tourism 
Development 
Division

Minimum of 
three utilised 
awareness 
workshops

Three Partnered with 
Tourism Development 
Division and DEDT 
in undertaking four 
initiatives to share and 
discuss the importance 
of tourist safety in the 
province
• Sisonke District 

Municipality
(Ixopo and 
uMzimkhulu);

• iLembe District 
Municipality
(KwaDukuza and 
Mandeni);

• uMkhanyakude 
District Municipality

Communi-
cations

To ensure 
ongoing 
internal
communications

Co-ordinate 
staff 
information 
sessions 
for staff 
update and 
major event 
activation

Staff 
information 
sessions and 
major event 
activation

Four Co-ordinated the 
hosting of four 
quarterly staff sessions 
for the Chief Executive 
Offi cer within the 
year to keep staff 
informed about TKZN 
plans, activities and 
achievements in order 
to keep staff motivated 
and informed. This 
included competitions 
where staff members 
win prizes.
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Business
Unit

Strategic 
Objective

Measurable 
objective

Performance 
Indicators Target Performance Result Variance

Communi-
cations

Facilitated a staff 
activation during 
Tourism Indaba to
provide staff members 
who are not involved 
with Indaba activities 
an understanding of 
what Indaba is all 
about, ensuring that 
they come to have 
an appreciation for 
organisational events, 
even if not directly 
involved themselves.

Rotational 
hosting of staff 
during certain 
events, such 
as MTN Jazz, 
Amashova, 
Reed Dance, 
Comrades 
and Sardine 
Festival

Staff hosting 
at TKZN-
supported 
events

Four Hosted staff at six 
TKZN-supported events, 
namely; Amashova 
Durban Classic cycle 
race, Sardine Festival, 
MTN Jazz Festival, 
Vodacom Durban July, 
Dusi Canoe Marathon 
and Midmar Mile in an 
effort to familiarise 
staff with events.

Hosting and 
co-ordinating 
corporate 
events 

Successful 
facilitation of 
four Corporate 
Events 

Four  Hosted internal 
stakeholders at the 
following events:
• Women’s Day;
• Secretary’s Day;
• Spar Ladies 

Challenge;
• World AIDS Day;
• Heritage Day.

This was for the 
purposes of team-
building, keeping 
staff entertained and 
enjoying their work, 
while looking forward 
to activities, all as a 
means of improving 
work quality and 
enhancing  motivation.

Optimise the 
intranet as a
communication
channel and 
explore other 
user-friendly 
methods for 
internal
communications

Effective 
application 
of technology 
for efficient 
intranet and 
web uploading

12 Updated the intranet 
continuously to keep 
staff informed about 
events, activities 
and the role played 
by TKZN in carrying 
out its mandate of 
marketing, promoting 
and  developing 
tourism locally and 
internationally.

Performance Information
Public Relations and Communications
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Business
Unit

Strategic 
Objective

Measurable 
Objective

Performance 
Indicators Target Performance Result Variance

To manage 
and control 
messages to 
both external 
and internal 
stakeholders 
to build and 
maintain 
a positive 
image of the 
Zulu Kingdom 
brand amongst 
consumer and 
stakeholders

Production of 
Annual Report 

Production of 
Annual Report 
to refl ect TKZN 
performance

One Co-ordinated the 
production of the 
Annual Report and 
submitted a completed 
report refl ecting TKZN 
2011/2012 performance 
to DEDT MEC. The 
document informs the 
principals how we, as 
an organisation, used 
the budget allocated to 
us to drive the mandate 
and meet set targets. 

Production of 
WWW

Production 
of WWW to 
promote 
KwaZulu-Natal 
experiences 
throughout 
Districts

Six Prepared and submitted 
content for six issues of 
the WWW magazine to 
the publishers, to keep 
the public informed 
about the activities 
taking place in the 
province and also things 
to see and do while 
visiting the province.

Production 
of Ezakithi 
newsletter

Production 
of Ezakithi 
newsletter to 
refl ect key 
activities and 
events

Four Compiled and 
distributed four issues 
of internal newsletter 
to staff to keep them 
informed about the 
plans, activities and 
achievements  of the 
organisation.

Website 
update

Website 
updates 
to capture 
attention of 
consumers/ 
tourists

12 Updates on events 
were undertaken 
continuously 
throughout the 
year with Tourism 
Information Services 
Division.
Management of and 
posting of material 
to the website is a 
Tourism Information 
Services responsibility 
and divisions provide 
information to the 
division for posting.

Intranet 
updates

Intranet 
updates 
to capture 
attention of 
staff

12 Updated the intranet 
continuously to keep 
the staff informed 
about events, activities 
and the role played 
by TKZN in carrying 
out its mandate of 
marketing, promoting 
and  developing 
tourism locally and 
internationally.
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Business
Unit

Strategic 
Objective

Measurable 
Objective

Performance 
Indicators Target Performance Result Variance

Media Briefings Media Briefings Three A media briefing took 
place during a visit by 
the Deputy Minister of 
Tourism on her quest to 
drive Township Tourism. 
It was held at the 
Elangeni Hotel and was 
followed by a tour to 
Umlazi.

Another media 
briefing was held at 
the Sandton ICC on 26 
September 2011 when 
Swaziland, Mozambique 
and KwaZulu-
Natal launched the 
East3Route. This was 
in relation to the 
2011 world tourism 
theme by UNWTO 
‘Linking Cultures’ as 
KwaZulu-Natal and 
TKZN worked towards 
linking KwaZulu-
Natal, Swaziland and 
Mozambique.

A further media briefing 
took place during a visit 
by the Deputy Minister 
of Tourism to celebrate 
International Women’s 
Day at KwaHlabisa in 
March 2012.

Performance Information
Public Relations and Communications
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Performance Information
Tourism Information Services

        duriNg the 

period uNder review, 

tourism iNformatioN 

serviCes CoNtiNued 

worKiNg Closely with 

the departmeNt of 

eCoNomiC developmeNt 

aNd tourism

Strategic Objectives

• To conduct research, collate international and local sector 

information to guide strategy and monitor programmes and 

performance of KwaZulu-Natal’s tourism sector;

• To develop and maintain databases, benchmark and monitor 

KwaZulu-Natal’s products and destination management 

practices against international best practice guidelines and 

standard; and

• To provide accessible and user-friendly tourist information 

through strategic contact points and to disseminate 

promotional material in accordance with demands of 

Tourism KwaZulu-Natal’s operational units.

Key Performance Areas

• Research, information and knowledge management;

• Information office services;

• Distribution;

• Database development and maintenance;

• E-Marketing; and

• Quality assurance/benchmarking in terms of Destination 

Management Best Practice.

KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority
Annual Report 2011/12 63



  our orgaNisatioN’s google raNKiNg, iN terms of searCh result returNs 

for Key terms related to tourism Kwazulu-Natal, is regarded as very good. 

Performance Information
Tourism Information Services

General Manager’s Overview

uring the period under review, Tourism 

Information Services continued working closely 

with the Department of Economic Development 

and Tourism to ensure the re-alignment of 

certain responsibilities between the two entities 

in order to negate any duplication of roles and 

responsibilities. 

In this regard, Tourism Information Services assisted in the 

relocation of the function of registering provincial tourism 

service providers and tourist guides to the Department of 

Economic Development and Tourism in May 2011.

In addition, Tourism Information Services provided intensive 

training of Department of Economic Development and 

Tourism staff in terms of the registration process and 

procedures. The web portal continued to perform very well 

from both a design and a user perspective. 

Tourism KwaZulu-Natal’s website grader ranks the portal 

at a 98% level in terms of design and layout and the user 

rate again grew signifi cantly during the past fi nancial year. 

Tourism KwaZulu-Natal’s Google ranking, in terms of search 

result returns for key terms related to Tourism KwaZulu-

Natal, is ‘very good.’

The Tembe elephant webcam located on our site, a joint 

venture with Ezemvelo KZN Wildlife and Tembe Elephant 

Park, remained a major draw-card for visitors to the site 

during the review period.

Performance Highlights

Research
A number of important pieces of research were completed 

during the 2011/12 fi nancial year which will assist in guiding 

the future of tourism in KwaZulu-Natal. These included:

• An Economic Impact Assessment of the COP17 event 

on KwaZulu-Natal. Tourism KwaZulu-Natal, working 

in conjunction with the University of KwaZulu-Natal 

and Tourism Durban, undertook a comprehensive 

economic impact assessment survey of this major 

event in terms of its impact on the province. The 

event generated substantial economic benefi ts 

for KwaZulu-Natal, and for Durban in particular, 

enabling the primary holiday season to commence 

earlier than usual. It also resulted in appreciably 

increasing the profi le of both city and province; 

• By constantly tracking the performance of King 

Shaka International Airport, Tourism Information 

Services ascertained that passenger movements 

exceeded the 5-million mark for the fi rst time in 

2011. This was a major milestone for the airport 

and the province; 

• Tourism Information Services researchers attended 

two international conferences, so enhancing the 

understanding of a number of research issues. 

Tourism KwaZulu-Natal researchers participated 

in the second International Conference on the 

Measurement and Economic Analysis of Regional 

for Key terms related to tourism Kwazulu-Natal, is regarded as very good. 
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Tourism, held in Bilbao, Spain, between 27 and 

29 October 2011. The conference was organised 

by the Basque Government’s Ministry of Industry, 

Innovation, Trade and Tourism (via Basquetour, 

the Basque Tourism Agency), the Spanish General 

Secretariat for Tourism and Domestic Commerce 

and the United Nations World Tourism Organisation. 

Attendance enabled Tourism KwaZulu-Natal to 

benchmark itself against international best practice 

in terms of the measurement of regional tourism; 

•	 The	research	manager	attended	and	presented	

a poster at the Ecotourism and Sustainable 

Tourism Conference in the USA between 19 

and 24 September 2011. Attendance paved the 

way for useful networking with ecotourism and 

sustainability experts from around the world, 

while	using	the	opportunity	to	raise	the	profile	of	

KwaZulu-Natal. 

•	 Contributions	were	made	to	national	research	

endeavours by way of serving on the national 

Research Information and Knowledge Management 

Committee, with the Tourism KwaZulu-Natal 

representative chairing the sub-committee 

developing national and provincial tourism 

performance indicators.

Information Services
•	 During	the	review	period,	the	organisation	established	

a tourist information desk within the new Golela border 

terminal.	Given	the	high	volume	of	traffic	through	

this border post, the new desk will assist greatly in 

disseminating information about KwaZulu-Natal and 

addressing tourist-related enquiries; and

•	 Our	organisation’s	Information	officers	manned	

prominently-located information desks at more than 19 

shows and events during the review period, as well as at 

the docking of the Queen Mary 2 and every docking of 

the MSC Sinfonia cruise liner.

E-marketing
•	 While	our	web	portal	performed	well	and	the	user	rate	

continued to grow dramatically, we were pleased to note 

that the organisation’s Facebook page also attracted 

significant	interest.

Division Performance

The Tourism Information Services Division achieved all 

targets detailed in the action plan.
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Performance Information
Tourism Information Services

Business
Unit

Strategic 
Objective

Measurable 
Objective

Performance 
Indicators Target Performance Result Variance

Research 
and
Knowledge
Manage-
ment

The collection,
analysis and 
reporting 
of key 
information 
to guide and 
monitor the 
strategies and 
programmes of
Tourism 
KwaZulu-
Natal.
Measuring the 
overall
performance 
of the 
KwaZulu-Natal 
tourism sector 
and specific 
Tourism 
KwaZulu-Natal 
activities

Reports 
produced and
presentation 
thereof, in line 
with 2011/12
Research Plan

United Nations 
World Tourism 
Organisation 
(UNWTO), 
World Travel 
and Tourism 
Council 
(WTTC), 
South African 
Tourism 
(SAT), Travel 
and Tourism 
Research 
Association 
(TTRA) and 
Statistics 
South Africa 
(STATSSA) 
tourism sector 
performance 
figures

Compilation 
of annual 
tourism sector 
statistics 
brochure

Core metrics 
of tourism 
sector 
performance

Annual statistics 
brochure completed, 
printed, distributed and 
uploaded onto website.

Core metrics provided 
on a quarterly basis 
to the Executive 
Committee.

Tourism sector 
occupancy 
figures and air 
traffic figures

Securing hotel 
occupancy 
figures, air 
passenger 
arrival 
figures, 
analysing and 
sharing with 
the Executive 
Committee

Monthly hotel 
occupancies and 
monthly air passenger 
arrivals obtained and 
reported to Executive 
Committee.

Event impact 
assessments

Event impact 
assessment 
surveys of 
events sup-
ported by 
Tourism Kwa-
Zulu-Natal in 
accordance 
with the an-
nual research 
action plan

All seven tracking 
events surveyed. Ad 
hoc surveys 
undertaken. 
Completed reports up-
loaded onto website.

Newcastle 
Air Show 
replaced 
Sani2C due 
to 
capacity 
constraints, 
Reed 
Dance 
replaced 
with COP17 
Conference 
survey 
which was 
under-
taken as a 
critical ad 
hoc event 
survey.
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Business
Unit

Strategic 
Objective

Measurable 
Objective

Performance 
Indicators Target Performance Result Variance

Information
Offi ce 
Services

Provision of a 
professional 
tourism
informa-
tion service 
through gate-
way, key
market offi ces 
and tempo-
rary desks at 
shows, exhibi-
tions and
key events

Increase in 
the level of 
utilisation 
of Tourism 
KwaZulu-
Natal’s
information 
offi ce services. 
Improvement 
in the level 
of training of 
information 
offi cers

Utilisation 
of service in 
terms of walk-
ins to offi ces, 
telephone, 
postage, 
email and fax 
enquiries.

5% increase 
in level of 
enquiries 
dealt with

14% increase. Target 
exceeded

Training 
offered as 
per training 
plan and/or 
educationals 
attended 
to ensure 
minimum 
training 
received 
by 100% of 
information 
offi cers

Annual 
training needs 
fulfi lled 
according to 
plan

Four educationals 
completed. 

Distribution Effective
distribution of
KwaZulu-
Natal’s 
marketing
material

Distribution
levels in line 
with
distribution 
plan

Level and 
nature
of distribution 
of
KwaZulu-
Natal’s 
marketing
collateral

10% increase 
in
distribution 
levels

Distributed 
734 042 against 
699 088 in 2010/11, 
an increase of 4%.

Insuffi cient 
budget to 
increase 
distribution 
of collateral

Knowledge 
manage-
ment 
system, 
including 
product 
manage-
ment 
system

Maintenance 
and further
development 
of Tourism 
KwaZulu-
Natal’s 
strategic data 
sets and
systems

Level of 
update of
Tourism 
KwaZulu-
Natal’s tourism 
information 
system and 
email fora

100% updated 
product 
management 
system 
database

100%  or more 
of database 
updated

Approaching 100% 
update of database

Benchmark-
ing/
Quality
Assurance 
in terms of
Destination
Manage-
ment
Best 
Practice

Run four 
mass email 
awareness 
campaigns per 
year

Awareness 
of grading 
campaign

Grading is a Tourism 
Grading Council of 
South Africa (TGCSA) 
responsibility. 

Tourism 
Information 
Services 
works 
together 
with the 
KwaZulu-
Natal Master 
Assessor on 
this.
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Performance Information
Tourism Information Services

Business
Unit

Strategic 
Objective

Measurable 
Objective

Performance 
Indicators Target Performance Result Variance

Report 
generated 
on level of 
awareness 
of grading 
amongst 
registered 
tourism 
establishments

Grading is a TGCSA 
responsibility.

Tourism 
Information 
Services 
works 
together 
with 
KwaZulu-
Natal’s 
master 
assessor on 
this. 

Report 
generated 
on increase 
in number of 
graded 
establishments
in KwaZulu-
Natal

Numbers of 
establishments 
obtained from 
Provincial Master 
Assessor and shared 
with EXCO.

E-
Marketing

Maintenance
and further
development 
of TKZN’s 
network
of websites, 
web camera 
and email on
demand 
services

User rates of
these systems.
Maintenance
and further
development 
of Destination 
Management
System 

User rates and 
level of down-
time of these 
systems

Destination 
Manage-
ment System 
and other 
e-marketing 
tool 
maintenance

• TKZN’s web portal 
performed well from 
both a design and 
user perspective. The 
current rating of web 
portal is 98% in terms 
of its marketing 
effectiveness;

• The up-time rate 
of the website has 
been within the 
90% service level 
agreement.
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Performance Information
Tourism Development

        the tourism 

developmeNt 

departmeNt 

uNdertooK a raNge 

of iNterveNtioNs 

aNd projeCts all 

geared towards 

the faCilitatioN 

of demaNd-driveN 

produCt developmeNt

Strategic Objectives

• To facilitate tourism investment in conjunction with the 

provincial trade and investment agencies;

• To implement tourism safety and awareness plan; 

• To provide strategic business advice and support for the 

development of tourism Broad-Based Black Economic 

Empowerment within the province; and

• To develop and implement infrastructure and community 

tourism projects.

Key Performance Areas

• Tourism infrastructure;

• Safety and awareness;

• Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment and Small, 

Medium and Micro Enterprise advisory services;

• Tourism Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment and 

Small, Medium and Micro Enterprise skills development; and

• Destination development.
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 TOURISM HAS BEEN IDENTIFIED AS A SECTOR CAPABLE OF STIMULATING 

ECONOMIC ACTIVITY IN RURAL NODES. ACCORDINGLY, TOURISM DEVELOPMENT IN 

KWAZULU-NATAL REMAINS A CRUCIAL COMPONENT OF THE PROVINCIAL GROWTH 

STRATEGY.

Performance Information
Tourism Development

General Manager’s Overview

he Tourism Development Department undertook 

a range of interventions and projects all geared 

towards the facilitation of demand-driven product 

development, assisted in facilitating tourism 

investment and championed the transformation 

of the tourism sector in KwaZulu-Natal during the 

2011/12 fi nancial year.

Performance Highlights

Destination Development
Tourism has been identifi ed as a sector capable of 

stimulating economic activity in rural nodes. Accordingly, 

tourism development in KwaZulu-Natal remains a crucial 

component of the provincial growth strategy.

Our community-based tourism projects show great 

potential, although there exist a series of notable challenges 

in terms of implementing certain projects due to issues 

of land ownership and inadequate basic infrastructure 

requirements. These factors impacted on the overall success 

of the community-based project programme. In addressing 

these challenges, Tourism Development continued 

working closely with both public and private stakeholders 

in a common effort to identify solutions to such issues. 

District Municipalities remained our organisation’s key 

stakeholders in dealing with community issues, while the 

Tourism Development Division concentrated on facilitating 

comprehensive business plans, concepts and Environmental 

Impact Assessments for community tourism development. 

These business plans have been used in terms of various 

platforms, such as securing funding, case studies and 

securing investors keen on funding tourism projects. 

Transformation
Tourism KwaZulu-Natal has in place an ambitious Provincial 

Transformation Plan. This is intended to assist in accelerating 

the transformation of the local tourism industry and aligning 

provincial plans to the national plan, with the view to 

advancing the objectives of the Broad-Based Black Economic 

Empowerment (B-BBEE) ideal.

During the review period, we continued implementing 

projects aimed at promoting B-BBEE as part of our 

commitment to assisting previously-marginalised members 

of society in their efforts to actively participate in KwaZulu-

Natal’s tourism sector. This was achieved by the active 

promotion of their product offerings. 

Importantly, and whilst acknowledging that its role is 

primarily facilitation, our skills development programmes 

have benefi ted many emerging enterprises, while raising 

awareness of the importance of tourism as a catalyst for 

development and growth.

The implementation of the 2011/12 Tourism Mentorship 

Programme proved a resounding success, allowing small 

emerging operators and hoteliers to benefi t from the skills, 

contacts, experience and expertise of established businesses. 

Our skills development programme, implemented in 

ECONOMIC ACTIVITY IN RURAL NODES. ACCORDINGLY, TOURISM DEVELOPMENT IN 
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partnership with the Tourism Enterprise Partnership and 

the Department of Economic Development and Tourism, 

ensured that owners of small emerging enterprises became 

skilled and confident people, sharing the Zulu Kingdom’s 

vision for exceptional excellence.

During the period under review, our incubator programme 

for emerging tour operators was implemented successfully, 

both domestically and internationally. 

Of the 16 participating emerging tour operators, 10 

benefited from international exposure on a rotational 

basis in the identified secondary markets of Mexico, Korea 

and Turkey. We also took the opportunity to introduce 

four operators to participate in key source markets in the 

Netherlands and in New York, working in partnership with 

South African Tourism and our own Marketing Division. These 

marketing opportunities were at the Vakantibeurs Show and 

the New York Times Show, held in January and March 2012, 

respectively.

Critically, too, significant achievements were recorded in 

secondary market initiatives during the COP17 Conference 

held in Durban at the end of 2011. A number of business 

transactions occurred between emerging tour operators 

who were part of the secondary market activities in Mexico. 

Most importantly, in October 2011, our emerging tour 

operators successfully hosted a tour operator from Mexico 

and, as a result, successful business transactions were 

completed during the COP17 Conference as a consequence 

of this business linkage.

Investment Promotion
With regard to investment promotion, KwaZulu-Natal 

was the venue for the inaugural 2011 Hotel Investment 

Conference in May 2011. The Tourism Business Council 

of South Africa, Tourism KwaZulu-Natal and Trade & 

Investment KwaZulu-Natal collaborated to provide 

resources and support towards the successful hosting of the 

2011 Hospitality Investment Conference Africa (HICA). This 

is a strategic event which seeks to bring together investors, 

key tourism and hospitality decision-makers in KwaZulu-

Natal. The conference placed emphasis on job creation, 

particularly in the hotel investment sector, while providing 

two days of business-generating networking opportunities 

involving participating local and international captains of 

industry.

Tourism KwaZulu-Natal intends to continue working with 

its partners in a bid to host another Hospitality Investment 

Conference Africa immediately prior to hosting the 2012 

Tourism Indaba.

Importantly, working in conjunction with Trade & 

Investment KwaZulu-Natal, Tourism KwaZulu-Natal stepped 

up efforts to widely market KwaZulu-Natal as a world-class 

and tremendously viable trade and investment destination. 

Our organisation’s participation in the Arab African 

Investment Forum in Atlantis, Dubai, in November 2011, 

presented an ideal opportunity to profile KwaZulu-Natal 

as a preferred investment destination and allowed us to 

inform prospective investors about the range of investment 

opportunities available within the province. Critically, this 
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event enabled us to gain a keen understanding about the 

prevailing investment climate, particularly as it impacts on 

Arab countries. 

Aviation
The advent of the King Shaka International Airport has 

assisted in positioning KwaZulu-Natal in a great space 

as regards marketing to a variety of different markets of 

potential tourism investments.

KwaZulu-Natal hosted the 41st Annual General Meeting and 

Conference of the Airlines Association of Southern Africa 

in October 2011. Key issues discussed included the future 

transformation of the aviation industry in view of evolving 

technology on which Africa must capitalise, environmental 

challenges and the industry’s changed regulatory environment. 

It is considered critical that the organisation remain well-

informed about aviation-related matters impacting on 

the performance of the fledgling King Shaka International 

Airport, which effectively constitutes the gateway to 

KwaZulu-Natal and SADC countries.

Cruise Tourism
The cruise industry is in constant search of new destinations 

and experiences for the discerning cruiser. With two of 

Africa’s major harbours, there can be no doubt that KwaZulu-

Natal has the potential to contribute significantly to efforts 

to expand and enhance tourist figures in the province.

KwaZulu-Natal has positioned itself as a premier cruise 

tourism destination and during the review period we 

continued making the most of opportunities to showcase 

this province’s competitive advantages in a concerted 

effort to assist in growing cruise tourism. In addition, and 

as a member of the Cruise Indian Ocean Association, the 

organisation presented details of the impact on the local 

economy of Indian Ocean cruise tourism offerings at the 

International Ports Association Conference, held in Korea 

during May 2011.  

Tourism KwaZulu-Natal also participated at the Seatrade 

Miami event in March 2012, indicating to international 

participants that new infrastructure developments, such as 

the King Shaka International Airport and a number of hotel 

investments had come on-stream in the province ahead of 

the 2010 FIFA World Cup tournament.  

Such investment projects have facilitated the effective 

servicing of the largest incoming charters for cruise 

operations. 

The inaugural Sea Trade Africa Cruise Forum, held in May 

2011, provided the perfect platform to introduce leading 

cruise line executives to the vast potential of cruise tourism 

in South Africa and across the continent, demonstrated by 

the fact that Durban has hosted the Queen Mary 2, the 

flagship of the world’s most respected fleet of luxury ocean 

liners, twice in consecutive seasons and that the city has 

become Mediterranean Shipping Company’s home port base 

for two of its cruise liners.   

Other 2011/12 tourism-related achievements include the 

following:

Tourism Black Economic Empowerment
and Small, Medium and Micro Enterprise 
Advisory Services
• A total of 39 Small, Medium and Micro Enterprises 

(SMMEs) participated in the 2011 Tourism Indaba;

• Five SMMEs were nominated as finalists for the 2011 

Emerging Entrepreneur of the Year Award (ETEYA);

• Some 20 public-private tourism mentorship programme 

partnerships were successfully implemented;

• Six training interventions were conducted in partnership 

with Tourism Enterprise Partnership (TEP)

• A total of 60 businesses were provided with tourism-

related information, in conjunction with TEP; 

• Five advisory services and compliance workshops were 

facilitated;

•  A total of 549 individuals were provided with business 

advisory services information; and

• Some 11 enterprises participated in secondary markets 

interventions.

Youth in Tourism
• Tourism KwaZulu-Natal participated in the National 

Tourism Career Expo, held in September 2011. More than 

Performance Information
Tourism Development
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17 000 school children attended the show;

• Tourism KwaZulu-Natal also participated in the Future 

Leaders’ Conference, held between 29 and 31 July 2011. 

More than 10 000 young people attended the event, 

of which number in excess of 100 were presented with 

detailed information about tourism; and

• A presentation was undertaken at St Lucia on 6 

December 2011 for the benefit of KwaZulu-Natal’s youth. 

This formed part of a ‘My School Cultural Adventure’ 

initiative, led by the Department of Arts and Culture.  

Women in Tourism
• Tourism KwaZulu-Natal provided information and advice 

to more than 500 women and young people during a 

women’s empowerment function at Nkandla. This was 

undertaken in partnership with the Premier’s Office; and

• Information was also provided to a women’s 

empowerment group, Zimele Community Self-reliance, 

in Pietermaritzburg.

Universal Access Initiatives
• Tourism KwaZulu-Natal attended the World Deaf 

Federation Conference between 18 and 24 July 2011. 

The conference addressed such issues as equal access 

to deaf education, sign language and deaf studies, 

achieving legal recognition for deaf people’s lives and 

the like.

Division Performance

The Tourism Development Division achieved all targets 

detailed in the action plan.
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Business
Unit

Strategic 
Objective

Measurable 
Objective

Performance 
Indicators Target Performance Result Variance

Tourism 
Develop-
ment

To facilitate 
tourism invest-
ment,  in con-
junction with 
the provincial 
trade and 
investment 
agencies

Investment
concepts 
developed

Number of 
investment 
concepts 
developed

Five Five business concepts 
developed:
- Ophathe Hotel/Lodge

development;
- Mangeni Falls Tourism

Project;
- La Circle Hotel

development;
- Ashburton Hotel

development; and
- Esigodlweni saMnini

project, where an EIA
was facilitated and
completed.

Investment 
concepts 
package

Level of 
success in 
packaging 
investment 
projects, as 
recommended

Three Three investment 
concepts packaged:
- Nonoti Beach Resort 

development;
- Thukela Lifestyle 

Development; and
- La Circle Hotel 

development.

Investment 
marketing 
brochures 
produced

Number of 
brochures 
produced

100 50 brochures and 50 
electronic disc bro-
chures developed for 
investment promotion.

Missions 
attended for 
investment 
promotion

Number of 
missions 
attended for 
investment 
promotion

Two Three missions at-
tended for investment 
promotion.

Project-managed Hotel 
Investment Conference 
(HICA) 2011 in Durban, 
in partnership with 
Trade & Investment 
KwaZulu-Natal and the 
Department of Economic 
Development and 
Tourism. Participated in 
HICA 2011 in Morocco, in 
partnership with Trade & 
Investment KwaZulu-Natal.

Participated in United 
Arab Emirates Mission 
in Dubai, in partnership 
with Trade & Invest-
ment KwaZulu-Natal.

Participated in the World 
Health Tourism Congress 
Durban 2011. Thukela 
Lifestyle development 
was launched and mar-
keted for investment.

Performance Information
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Business
Unit

Strategic 
Objective

Measurable 
Objective

Performance 
Indicators Target Performance Result Variance

To implement 
the Tourism 
Safety and 
Awareness 
Plan

Facilitation of 
Tourism Safety 
and Awareness 
workshops and 
distribution 
of safety tips 
brochures

Number of 
Tourism Safety 
and Awareness 
workshops 
facilitated

Three Tourism Safety 
and Awareness 
Workshops:
The fi rst Tourism 
Safety and Awareness 
workshop was held 
in Hluhluwe on 28 
July 2011 and was 
a joint initiative 
with the Umhlosinga 
Development Agency 
and the Department of 
Economic Development 
and Tourism.  A total 
of 49 stakeholders 
attended the 
workshop.

59 stakeholders 
attended the second 
Tourism Safety and 
Awareness workshop 
held on 17 November 
2011 in Ixopo and was 
a joint initiative with 
the Department of 
Economic Development 
and Tourism and 
Sisonke District 
Municipality.

15 stakeholders 
attended the third 
Tourism Safety and 
Awareness workshop 
held on 9 March 2012 
at the iLembe District 
Municipality and was 
a joint initiative with 
the iLembe Enterprise 
and the Department of 
Economic Development 
and Tourism.

49 stakeholders 
attended the fourth 
Tourism Safety and 
Awareness workshop 
held in uMzimkhulu, 
in the Sisonke District 
Municipality.
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Business
Unit

Strategic 
Objective

Measurable 
Objective

Performance 
Indicators Target Performance Result Variance

Tourism 
Develop-
ment

Safety and Awareness 
Roadshows:
On 29 July 2011, a 
Tourism Safety and 
Awareness Roadshow 
was held in eManguzi.  
Some 300 people 
attended the event. 
Speakers discussed 
the importance of 
promoting a safe 
environment for 
tourists.

On 10 March 2012, a 
Tourism Safety and 
Awareness Roadshow 
was held in Mandeni, 
in partnership with 
iLembe Enterprise and 
the Department of 
Economic Development 
and Tourism. Some 450 
people attended the 
event.

Number of 
individuals and 
stakeholders 
attended the 
Tourism Safety 
and Awareness 
workshops and 
roadshows

300 A combined total 
of 922 tourism 
stakeholders attended 
both the Tourism 
Safety and Awareness 
workshops and Tourism 
Safety and Awareness 
roadshows.

Tourism safety 
tips brochures 
produced with 
a population-
proportionate 
percentage 
featuring UA 
needs

10 000 20 000 Safety tips 
pamphlets were 
produced and 
distributed throughout 
the province. 
Additional brochures 
were distributed 
during the COP17 
event, which took 
place in Durban 
during November and 
December 2011. 
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Business
Unit

Strategic 
Objective

Measurable 
Objective

Performance 
Indicators Target Performance Result Variance

To facilitate 
the 
development 
of infrastruc-
ture and 
implementation 
of community 
tourism 
projects

Community
- owned

projects
facilitated

Community-
owned 
projects 
facilitated

One IsiBhubhu Project:
Phase one of IsiBhubhu 
project was completed 
ahead of hand-over to 
the Royal Household.

National Department 
of Tourism approved 
R10 million for the 
funding of phase two 
of the project.

Nonoti Beach Resort:
The Environmental 
Impact Assessment 
for the project 
was underway and 
was packaged for 
investment.

Tourism routes 
developed 
with min.1x UA 
friendly

Tourism Routes 
developed 
with min.1x UA 

Two East3Route: 
The East3route 
between KwaZulu-
Natal, Mozambique 
and Swaziland was 
successfully launched 
in Johannesburg and 
tested by a delegation 
of stakeholders from 
the participating three 
countries between 24 
and 27 October 2011.

R22 Elephant Coast 
Route:
A feasibility study for 
a proposed R22 Route 
was complete, with 
the study indicating 
that the route would 
be feasible.

Universal Access: 
Tourism KwaZulu-
Natal attended the 
World Deaf Federation 
Conference between 
18 and 24 July 2011. 
The conference 
addressed such issues 
as equal access to 
deaf education, sign 
language and deaf 
studies, achieving legal 
recognition for deaf 
people’s lives and the 
like.
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Tourism Development

Business
Unit

Strategic 
Objective

Measurable 
Objective

Performance 
Indicators Target Performance Result Variance

Tourism 
Develop-
ment

Successful roll- 
out of tourism 
signage in key 
tourism route 
as approved

Units of tourism 
signage erected

100 Tourism signage for 
the gateway to the 
Central and Northern 
Drakensberg was 
completed. A total of 
20 gateway signs were 
manufactured and 
erected.

Tourism signage 
to and from King 
Shaka International 
Airport, along the 
M4, were erected 
ahead of COP17. A 
total of 106 signs were 
manufactured and 
erected for King Shaka 
International Airport 
within the eThekwini 
municipal area by 
eThekwini Municipality 
and Tourism KwaZulu-
Natal.

Job creation 
opportunity

Number of 
temporary and 
permanent jobs 
created

100 A total of 126 
temporary jobs were 
created during the 
construction of phase 
one of the IsiBhubhu 
project.

To provide 
strategic 
business 
advice and 
support for the 
development 
of tourism 
Black Economic 
Empowerment 
within the 
province

Advisory 
services and 
compliance  
workshops 
facilitated

Number of 
advisory 
services and 
compliance 
workshops 
facilitated

Number of 
individuals 
and tourism 
stakeholders 
taking part 
in business 
workshops

Three 

200

A total of 549 
individuals were 
provided with tourism 
business advisory 
services using 
various platforms, 
such as the Mayoral 
Business Development 
Committee within 
eThekwini Municipality, 
bimonthly business 
advisory services held 
at Tourism KwaZulu-
Natal and Tourism 
Enterprise Partnership 
and the Zululand 
District Municipality.

Number of 
individuals 
provided 
with tourism 
information

200 A total of 549 
individuals were 
provided with business 
advisory services 
information.
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Business
Unit

Strategic 
Objective

Measurable 
Objective

Performance 
Indicators Target Performance Result Variance

Training 
interventions 
provided

Number 
of training 
interventions 
provided

Number of 
individuals 
provided with 
training 
interventions
 

Four

40

Six training 
interventions were 
facilitated.

Nine tour operators 
were trained in 
Advanced Pricing and 
Packaging. The training 
was provided by a 
global business expert 
from the Netherlands. 
He also spent a full day 
with each tour operator 
to identify individual 
challenges to be 
addressed in each of
the businesses. 

Such mentorship 
interventions were held 
between 3 and 7 July 
2011.  

Some 17 historically 
disadvantaged 
individuals working as 
tour operators were 
trained with regard to 
packaging and pricing 
on 26/27 July 2011.

A total of 30 Small, 
Medium and Micro 
Enterprise (SMME) 
business people were 
extended trained 
regarding exhibitions, in 
preparation for Tourism 
Indaba 2012.

One mentorship 
programme was 
facilitated, in 
partnership with 
Tourism Enterprise 
Partnership, the 
Department of 
Economic Development 
and Tourism, SATSA and 
FEDHASA. 
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Tourism Development

Business
Unit

Strategic 
Objective

Measurable 
Objective

Performance 
Indicators Target Performance Result Variance

A total of 20 
partnerships were 
created.

Tourism KwaZulu-
Natal, working in 
partnership with 
Tourism Enterprise 
Partnership, trained 
477 historically 
disadvantaged SMME 
owners with regard to 
the Tourism Enterprise 
Partnership tourism 
toolkits, covering:
- Tourism marketing

channel;
- Legalities;
- Human resources;
- Tourism awareness;
- Quality assurance and

customer care; and
- Putting the customer

first.
Number of 
enterprises 
assisted with 
grading or UA 
compliance

Five Facilitated star 
grading for five 
accommodation 
establishments.  
Remained in constant 
contact with District 
Municipalities with a 
view to ensuring that 
SMMEs were appraised 
of new grading 
criteria.

Mentorship 
Programme 
facilitated

Mentorship 
Programme 
facilitated

Number of 
enterprises 
participated in 
the mentorship 
programme

One

15

One Tourism 
Mentorship 
Programme was 
facilitated in 
partnership with 
Tourism Enterprise 
Partnership, 
the Department 
of Economic 
Development and 
Tourism, Ezemvelo 
KZN Wildlife, 
FEDHASA and SATSA.

A total of 20 incubator/ 
mentorship partnerships 
were successfully 
facilitated in 
partnership with
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Business
Unit

Strategic 
Objective

Measurable 
objective

Performance 
Indicators Target Performance Result Variance

Tourism Enterprise 
Partnership, the 
Department of 
Economic Development 
and Tourism, Ezemvelo 
KZN Wildlife, FEDHASA 
and SATSA.

Secondary 
market 
interventions 
facilitated

Number of 
secondary 
market 
interventions 
facilitated

Number of 
enterprises 
participated 
on the 
secondary 
market 
interventions

Three

Two

Five market access 
opportunities 
were created for 
business linkages, 
with 11 historically 
disadvantaged 
tour operators 
participating. These 
included:
- Turkey, (East

Mediterranean 
International Travel
and Tourism) 
09 - 12 Feb 2012;

- Korea, (4th BITF) 
02 – 05 Sept 2011; 

- Mexico, (FITA) 
22 - 25 Sept 2011; 

- Netherlands,
(Vakantiebeurs)
10 -15 Jan 2012; and 

- New York, (NY Times
Travel Show) 
02 - 04 March 2011.

A total of 11 
enterprises 
participated in the 
secondary market 
interventions.

Malule Safaris, Kuhle 
Tours and Township Vibe 
Tours participated in the 
2011 FITA in Mexico in 
September 2011.

Dumie Tours and 
Madlula Tours 
participated in the 
Busan International 
Tourism Exhibition in 
Korea in September 
2011. 
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Business
Unit

Strategic 
Objective

Measurable 
Objective

Performance 
Indicators Target Performance Result Variance

Sanchia Guest House 
and Thembela Tours 
participated in the 
Vakantibeurs Show 
held in the Netherlands 
in January 2012.

Ntandokazi Tours and 
African Wild Travel 
attended the EMITT 
in Turkey, held in 
February 2012.

Syavaya Tours and City 
of Choice participated 
in the New York Times 
Show in March 2012.

All these platforms 
were aimed at 
linking KwaZulu-
Natal’s emerging 
tour operators with 
established tour 
operators in Eastern 
European, Dutch 
and North and South 
American markets with 
a view to increasing 
the number of tour 
operators selling 
KwaZulu-Natal 
internationally.
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Performance Information
Corporate Services

        the Corporate 

serviCes divisioN 

is geared towards 

eNsuriNg the improved 

aNd effiCieNt use of 

resourCes

Strategic Objectives

• To provide an enabling environment which ensures that the 

skills, knowledge and attributes of employees are applied 

to realise maximum benefits; and

• To oversee statutory and regulatory compliance, including 

financial management.

Key Performance Areas

• Development and enhancement of organisational capacity 

by facilitating the attendance of executive and middle 

management at the leadership programme;

• Provide quality and timely reporting to the Department 

of Economic Development and Tourism as per the funding 

agreement.

KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority
Annual Report 2011/12 83



  the Corporate serviCes divisioN aCCordiNgly plaCes great emphasis 

oN the iNterNal developmeNt of sKills at both exeCutive aNd middle 

maNagemeNt levels through the faCilitatioN of worKshops.

Performance Information
Corporate Services

General Manager’s Overview

he Corporate Services Division is geared 

towards ensuring the improved and 

effi cient use of resources, compliance with 

statutory and external requirements and the 

achievement of sound administrative and 

fi nancial management.

To this end, we strive to make certain that policies 

and procedures are in places that ultimately direct 

the management of fi nancial resources and general 

operations, while assisting the entity to meet its 

strategic business objectives. TKZN acknowledges that 

a skilled labour pool is critical to the realisation of the 

strategic organisational objectives. 

The Corporate Services Division accordingly places 

great emphasis on the internal development of skills 

at both executive and middle management levels 

through the facilitation of workshops tailored to suit 

the operational needs of the organisation and its 

various divisions, together with the identifi cation of 

appropriate leadership programmes for management. 

As part of the organisation’s funding agreement, the 

Department of Economic Development and Tourism 

requires that we submit accurate and timely fi nancial 

reports which effectively refl ect the prudent utilisation 

of available fi nancial resources. 

Performance Highlights

Leadership Programme for Executive and 
Middle Management
The organisation introduced a Leadership Development 

Programme in the 2008/09 fi nancial year. This 

programme remained ongoing and during the 2011/12 

fi nancial year was extended to include members of our 

organisation’s middle management structure. 

A 2011/12 training target of 22 was set and this was 

achieved by fi nancial year-end.

This essentially provided the organisation with a pool 

of better skilled and knowledgeable employees, greatly 

assisting our organisation meet its strategic objectives, 

provide for succession planning and lay the foundation 

for continuity of work-fl ow.

Training Workshops Attended
Given the need to continuously work towards enhancing 

our business operations, the organisation regularly sets 

out to identify training interventions which are both 

relevant and appropriate to our day-to-day activities. 

Employees are identifi ed to attend such training as an 

effi cient method of ensuring up-skilling and improved 

production effi ciencies, while reducing the skills gap. 

A 2011/12 training target of eight was set, which

was achieved.

oN the iNterNal developmeNt of sKills at both exeCutive aNd middle 

KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority
Annual Report 2011/1284



Timely Submission of Financial Reports
The funding agreement with the Department of 

Economic Development and Tourism requires that 

monthly financial reports be submitted. Such reporting 

ensures absolute accountability on the part of TKZN and 

facilitates rapid decision-making by the department, 

as well as providing for an effective monitoring system 

designed to ensure budget execution remains within 

approved limits.

A 2011/12 training target of 12 reports was set, at a 

rate of one per month. This was achieved by financial 

year-end.

Division Performance
The Corporate Services Division achieved all target 

detailed in the action plan.
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Corporate Services

Business
Unit

Strategic 
Objective

Measurable 
Objective

Performance 
Indicators Target Performance Result Variance

Human
Resources 
and 
Adminis-
tration

To provide 
an enabling 
environment 
which ensures 
that the skills, 
knowledge 
and attributes 
of employees 
are applied 
to realise 
maximum 
benefits

Identify 
talents, skills 
gaps and 
strengths 

Number 
of training 
workshops 
attended

8 Nine varying training 
interventions and 
workshops were 
undertaken during the 
year under review.

Ensure 
management 
of succession 
planning

Attendance 
of Executive 
and Senior 
Management 
leadership 
development 
programmes  

22 Four leadership 
programmes were 
undertaken during the 
year under review.

Three senior 
management and 
one executive 
management 
leadership programme 
were carried out.  

The senior 
management 
programme 
is nearing its 
end and had 
to be put 
on hold, so 
as to be on 
par with the 
session for 
executive 
management. 

Nonetheless, 
the
executive 
management 
programme 
had not 
taken place 
for two 
quarters 
due to the 
unavailability 
of executive 
managers. 

Financial 
Manage-
ment

To oversee 
statutory and 
regulatory 
compliance

Submission of 
reports

Number 
of reports 
submitted

12 Three reports 
per quarter were 
submitted to 
the Department 
of Economic 
Development and 
Tourism on the dates 
specified.

Submission 
of financial 
reports

Timely 
submission 
of financial 
reports, as 
per deadlines 
stipulated in 
the Transfer 
Funding 
Agreement with 
the Department 
of Economic 
Development 
and Tourism

12 Three reports per 
quarter detailing 
financial projected 
cash flow were 
submitted to 
the Department 
of Economic 
Development and 
Tourism on the dates 
specified.
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Position Advertised Department Date 
vacated Date filled

Information
Officer

September
2010

Tourism 
Information 
Services

August 
2010

July
2011

Information
Officer

September
2010

Tourism 
Information 
Services

September
2010

July
2011

Supply Chain 
Management 
Assistant 

March
2011
 

Corporate 
Services

March
2011

July 2011  
(Internal 
Appointment)

Administrative
Assistant: 
Corporate
Services

July
2011

 

Corporate 
Services

July
2011

October 2011  
(Internal 
Appointment)

Human 
Resource and 
Administration 
Manager 

February 
2011

 

Corporate 
Services

April 
2010

December 
2011  
(Internal 
Appointment)

Human 
Resource 
Officer

December 
2011

Corporate 
Services

December 
2011

March 
2012

Receptionist October 
2011

Corporate 
Services

October 2011 April
2012

Chief Financial 
Officer

February 
2012

Corporate 
Services

January April
2012

Department Vacancies Employment

CEO'S Office 0 0

Corporate Services 7 7

Tourism Development 0 0

Tourism Information Services 2 2

Marketing 0 0

Public Relations and Communications 0 0

Nature of Disciplinary Action Number

Verbal Warning 4

Written Warning 1

Final Written Warning 0

Dismissal 1

Human Resources Report

List of New Recruits and Terminations

Labour Relations 
Misconduct and Disciplinary Actions
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Human Resources Report

Terminations

Appointments

African Males Qualifications Number

Top Management 1

Total 1

African Females Qualifications Number

Senior Management 1

Skilled Technical and Academically Qualified 2

Total 3

African Males Qualifications Number

Mid-Management 1

Skilled Technical and Academically Qualified 3

Total 4

Indian Females Qualifications Number

Skilled Technical and Academically Qualified 1

Total 1
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Staff Complement as at 31 March 2012

African Females Qualifications Number

Top Management 1

Senior Management 3

Professionally Qualified, Experienced 
Specialist and Mid-Management 3

Skilled Technical and Academically Qualified 18

Semi-Skilled and Discretionary 
Decision-Making 2

Unskilled and Defined 
Decision-Making 1

Total 28

African Males Qualifications Number

Top Management 1

Senior Management 1

Professionally Qualified, Experienced 
Specialist and Mid-Management 4

Skilled Technical and Academically Qualified 17

Unskilled and Defined Decision-Making 1

Total 24

White Females Qualifications Number

Professionally Qualified, Experienced 
Specialist and Mid-Management 1

Total 1
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Staff Complement as at 31 March 2012

White Males  Qualifications Number

Senior Management 1

Professionally Qualified, Experienced 
Specialist and Mid-Management 1

Total 2

Coloured Females Qualifications Number

Professionally Qualified, Experienced 
Specialist and Mid-Management 1

Total 1

Coloured Males Qualifications Number

Professionally qualified & Experienced 
Specialist & Mid-management 1

Total 1

TOTAL NUMBER OF STAFF 59

Indian Females Qualifications Number

Skilled technical and academically qualified 2

Total 2

Indian Males Qualifications Number

Total 0

Human Resources Report
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Equity Targets and Employment Equity Status as at 31 March 2012

Occupational Levels  

Male

African Coloured Indian White

Current Target Current Target Current Target Current Target

Top Management 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0

Senior Management 1 1 0 0 0 0 1 1

Professionally Qualified, 
Experienced Specialists 
and Mid-Management

4 4 0 0 0 0 1 1

Skilled Technical 
and Academically 
Qualified Workers, 
Junior Management, 
Supervisors, Foremen 
and Superintendents

17 17 1 1 0 0 0 0

Semi-Skilled and 
Discretionary 
Decision-making

0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0

Unskilled and defined 
decision-making 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total permanent 24 24 1 1 0 1 2 2

TOTAL 24 24 1 1 0 1 2 2

KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority
Annual Report 2011/12 91



Human Resources Report

Equity Targets and Employment Equity Status as at 31 March 2012

Occupational Levels  

Female

African Coloured Indian White

Current Target Current Target Current Target Current Target

Top Management 1 2 0 0 0 0 0 0

Senior Management 3 3 0 0 0 0 0 0

Professionally Qualified, 
Experienced Specialists 
and Mid-Management

3 3 1 1 0 0 1 1

Skilled Technical 
and Academically 
Qualified Workers, 
Junior Management, 
Supervisors, Foremen and 
Superintendents

18 18 0 0 2 2 0 0

Semi-Skilled and 
Discretionary 
Decision-making

2 2 0 0 0 0 0 0

Unskilled and defined 
decision-making 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total permanent 28 29 1 0 2 2 1 1

TOTAL 28 29 1 0 2 2 1 1
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Ocupational level Total current Total target Grades 

Top Management 3 3 2-4

Senior Management 5 4 5-6

Professionally Qualified, Experienced
Specialists and Mid-Management 10 12 7-8

Skilled Technical and Academically Qualified 
Workers, Junior Management, Supervisors, 
Foremen and Superintendents

38 38 9-12

Semi-Skilled and Discretionary 
Decision-making 3 3 13-14

Unskilled and Defined Decision-making 2 2 15-16

Total permanent 61 62

TOTAL 61 62
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 KWAZULU-NATAL TOURISM AUTHORITY ACKNOWLEDGES THAT THE ANNUAL 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE MEMBERS OF THE 

AUTHORITY. THE AUDITOR-GENERAL IS RESPONSIBLE FOR INDEPENDENTLY 

AUDITING AND REPORTING ON THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

Statement of Responsibility
for the year ended 31 March 2012 

he Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act 

No. 1 of 1999), as amended, requires the 

Accounting Authority to ensure that the Public 

Entity keeps full and proper records of the 

fi nancial affairs of the Public Entity.  

It also requires that the Annual Financial Statements 

fairly present the state of affairs of the Public Entity, its 

business, its fi nancial results, its performance against 

pre-determined objectives and its fi nancial position as 

at the end of each fi nancial year in terms of Generally 

Recognised Accounting Practices (GRAP).

KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority (Authority) acknowledges 

that the Annual Financial Statements are the responsibility 

of the members of the Authority. 

The Auditor-General is responsible for independently 

auditing and reporting on the Annual Financial Statements.

The Annual Financial Statements have been prepared 

in accordance with statements of GRAP. These Annual 

Financial Statements are based on appropriate 

accounting policies, supported by reasonable and 

prudent judgements and estimates.

The members have reviewed the Public Entity’s 

budgets and cashfl ow forecasts for the year ended 31 

March 2012. 

On the basis of this review and in view of the current 

fi nancial position, as well as the existing borrowing 

facilities, the members have every reason to believe, 

and the auditors concur, that the Public Entity will be a 

going concern in the year ahead and have continued to 

adopt the going concern basis in preparing the Annual 

Financial Statements.

To  enable the members to meet the above responsibilities, 

the Board sets standards and implements systems 

of internal controls and risk management that are 

designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, 

assurance against material misstatements and losses. 

The Public Entity maintains internal fi nancial controls 

to provide assurance regarding:

• The safeguarding of assets against unauthorised use or 

disposition; and

• The maintenance of proper accounting records and 

the reliability of fi nancial information used within the 

business or for publication.

In the opinion of members, based on information 

available to date, the Annual Financial Statements 

fairly present the fi nancial position of the KwaZulu-

Natal Tourism Authority at 31 March 2012 and the 

results of its operations and cashfl ow information for 

the year and that the Code of Corporate Governance 

has been adhered to.

The Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 

31 March 2012, set out on pages 108 to 131, were 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE MEMBERS OF THE 
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approved by the Accounting Authority in terms of 

section 51(1) (f) of the Public Finance Management 

Act, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999), as amended and are 

signed on its behalf by:

S Naidoo
Chairperson: 
KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority

Date: 31 July 2012 

N Khoza
Chief Executive Offi cer 

Date: 31 July 2012 

N Khoza
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 these iNClude maNagemeNt proCesses aimed at miNimisiNg aNy CoNfliCt 

of iNterest aNd the implemeNtatioN of a Code of CoNduCt, together with 

safety, health aNd eNviroNmeNtal issues faCed by the authority.

Corporate Governance Report
for the year ended 31 March 2012 

he Board of the KwaZulu-Natal Tourism 

Authority (Authority) is responsible for 

the establishment of a risk management 

approach, development of fraud prevention 

policies, effectiveness of internal audit

and audit committee as well as other 

governance structures.

These include management processes aimed 

at minimising any confl ict of interest and the 

implementation of a Code of Conduct, together with 

safety, health and environmental issues faced by

the Authority. 

Conversely, Management is responsible and 

accountable to the Board for the design, 

implementation and monitoring of the above-

mentioned processes and for integrating them into the 

day-to-day activities of the Authority.

In line with this approach, appropriate governance 

structures have been established to deal with such 

issues, as indicated in greater detail below.

Human Resources and
Compensation Committee

The Human Resources and Compensation Committee 

comprises a minimum of three members, including the 

Chairperson, nominated from members of the Board.

The Committee’s primary functions include reviewing 

and recommending to the Board the following:

• Issues relating to human resources management 

and planning, including recruitment and selection, 

training, performance management and succession 

planning, while also reporting to the Board in terms 

of the implementation of such strategies;

• Reviewing and approving proposals for the general 

adjustment of standard conditions of service, 

including matters relating to leave, housing, motor 

vehicles, bonuses, incentives, the pension fund and 

provident fund, medical aid and other conditions of 

service applicable to the organisation;

• Reviewing salary scales and determining overall 

compensation, including annual increments and 

bonuses, while taking into account applicable 

performance targets;

• Reviewing and approving changes in the 

organisational structure;

• Ensuring that the organisation has in place 

programmes and policies for the attraction 

and retention of Executives of high calibre to 

successfully give leadership to the organisation in 

their respective areas of responsibility; 

• Performance management of the Human Resources 

and Compensation Committee;

• Annual performance plan activities within the scope 

of the Committee; and

• Reviewing and evaluating the adequacy of these 

Terms of Reference on, at least, an annual basis.

of iNterest aNd the implemeNtatioN of a Code of CoNduCt, together with 
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Audit and Risk Committee

The Audit and Risk Committee comprises a minimum 

of four members, including the Chairperson, 

nominated from members of the Board.

The primary functions of the Committee include 

reviewing and recommending to the Board the 

following:

Financial Statements -
The Audit and Risk Committee shall:

• Examine and review the Annual Financial 

Statements and interim financial reports with 

management and the external auditors before 

filing with regulators, and consider whether such 

documentation is complete and consistent with 

information known to members of the Committee 

and reflects appropriate accounting principles;

• Review, with management and the external 

auditors, the results of the audit, inclusive of any 

difficulties encountered; and

• Review, with management and the external 

auditors, all matters which are required to be 

communicated to stakeholders under generally 

accepted auditing standards.

Internal Controls -
The Audit and Risk Committee shall:

• Consider the effectiveness of the organisation’s 

 internal control system, including information 

technology security and control;

• Understand the scope of the internal and external 

auditor’s review of internal control over financial 

reporting and obtain reports on significant findings 

and recommendations, together with management’s 

responses;

• Review control procedures followed by the 

management;

• Review controls designed to ensure that assets are      

safe guarded;

• Review the fraud prevention plan implemented to 

prevent and detect fraud;

• Review risk management and related policies; and

• Review compliance with the prescribed accounting 

frame work.

Internal Audit - 
The Audit and Risk Committee shall monitor, guide and 

supervise the functioning of internal audit, ensuring 

that the roles and functions of external and internal 

audit are sufficiently clarified and co-ordinated so as 

to provide an objective overview of the operational 

effectiveness of the organisation’s systems of internal 

control and reporting.

These include:

• Annually reviewing and approving the Internal Audit 

Charter to ensure adherence to best practice;

• Approving the three-year Internal Audit Strategy 
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 and Annual Operational Plans and the reviewing of  

 performance against said plans;

• Reviewing the adequacy of corrective action taken 

in response to significant internal audit findings;

• Reviewing Internal Audit Plans to ensure that areas 

of high risk are identified and mitigation strategies 

developed;

• Meeting separately with the Chief Audit Executive 

to discuss matters which the Committee believes 

should be discussed privately;

• Reviewing significant matters reported by way of 

the internal audit function;

• Assessing the adequacy of the performance of the 

internal audit function;

• Reviewing co-operation and co-ordination between 

the internal and external audit functions;

• Reviewing any significant disagreements or 

differences of opinion between Management and 

the internal audit function;

• Evaluating the independence and effectiveness of 

internal auditors; and

• Reviewing the effectiveness of the internal audit 

function, including compliance with the Institute 

of Internal Auditor’s International Standards for the 

Professional Practice of Internal Auditing.

External Audit -
The Audit and Risk Committee shall be responsible for: 

• Reviewing the external auditor’s proposed audit 

scope and approach, including the co-ordination of 

the audit effort with internal audit;

• Reviewing and confirming the independence of the 

external auditors by obtaining statements from 

the auditors regarding relationships between the 

auditors and the organisation, including non-audit 

services and discussing the relationships with the 

auditors;

• Reviewing the external auditor’s observations, as 

presented in management reports and the adequacy 

of management’s responses; and

• Meeting separately and on a regular basis with 

the external auditors to discuss any matters 

which the Committee or auditors believe should 

be discussed privately.

Compliance -
The Audit and Risk Committee shall be responsible for: 

• Reviewing the effectiveness of the system for 

monitoring compliance with laws and regulations 

and the results of Management’s investigations and 

follow-up of any instances of non-compliance;

• Reviewing processes for communicating the Code 

of Conduct to the Authority’s personnel and for 

monitoring compliance therewith; and

• Obtaining regular updates from Management 

and the organisation’s legal counsel regarding 

compliance matters.

Reporting Responsibility -
The Audit and Risk Committee shall be responsible for: 

• Reporting regularly to the Board with regard to the 

Audit and Risk Committee’s activities, issues and 

related recommendations; and

• Providing an open channel of communication 

between internal audit, the external auditors and 

Executive Management.

Other Responsibilities -
The Audit and Risk Committee shall be responsible for: 

• Performing other activities related to the Charter, 

as requested by the Accounting Authority;

• Instituting and overseeing special investigations, as 

required;

• Reviewing and assessing the adequacy of the Audit 

Committee Charter Annually;

• Confirming annually that all responsibilities outlined 

in the Charter have been executed; and

• Evaluating, on a regular basis, the performance of 

the Committee and its individual members.

Marketing and Tourism 
Development Committee
 
The Marketing and Tourism Development Committee 

comprises a minimum of three members, including the 

Chairperson, nominated from members of the Board.

The primary functions of this Committee include reviewing 

and recommending to the Board the following:

Corporate Governance Report
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Marketing -
• Overall marketing strategy, (including Public 

Relations, Communications, Tourism Information 

and Research);

• Annual overall marketing budgets;

• Progress in terms of the implementation of the 

Annual Performance Plan; and

• Relevant policies pertaining to:

• Brand Management;

• Advertising and promotional campaigns;

• Events marketing and sponsorship;

• Domestic and international marketing;

• Strategic marketing tools; and

• Public Relations.

Tourism Development -
• Recommending budget allocations to tourism 

development activities undertaken by the Authority;

• Guiding and reviewing business plans submitted by 

Management pertaining to tourism development 

activities;

• Recommending budget and business plan reviews 

for development activities every three months;

• Recommending development policies pertaining to 

all functional activities of the Tourism Development 

Division; and

• Making recommendations to the Board regarding 

any matter pertaining to tourism development, 

within KwaZulu-Natal.

Chairperson’s Committee 
 
The Chairperson’s Committee comprises the following 

and the Board Chairperson shall be the Chairperson of 

the Committee:

• Board Chairperson;

• Board Deputy Chairperson;

• Chairpersons of Committees; and

• Chief Executive Officer.

This Committee seeks to achieve the following 

objectives:

• To act on behalf of the Board as and when specific 

delegations are conferred upon it by the Board;

• To act on behalf of the Board when, in exceptional 

circumstances, it is not possible or practical to 

convene a meeting of the Board; and

• To advise and assist the Chairperson of the Board 

on the preparation of the agenda for the Board 

meeting by identifying issues and proposals 

requiring Board resolution and approval.
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         PROPER RISK MANAGEMENT WILL ENSURE THAT BEST PRACTICE  IS IMPLEMENTED 

AND THAT THE CORE FUNCTION OF THE ENTITY REMAINS THE FOCAL POINT, SO 

CONTRIBUTING ENORMOUSLY TO SERVICE DELIVERY.

Report of the Audit and Risk Committee
for the year ended 31 March 2012 

The Tourism KwaZulu-Natal’s Audit and 
Risk Committee report for the year 
ended 31 March 2012 is presented 
below:

Audit and Risk Committee Responsibility

he function of the Audit and Risk Committee 

is, primarily, to assist the Board in discharging 

its duties as they relate to the safeguarding of 

assets, the effective management of liabilities 

and working capital, the operation of 

adequate systems and the process of internal 

control, together with the preparation of 

fi nancial reports and the Annual Financial Statements. 

The Committee reports that it has complied with its 

responsibilities arising from Section 50(1) of the Public 

Finance Management Act and Treasury Regulations. 

The Audit and Risk Committee also reports that it has 

adopted appropriate formal Terms of Reference, as 

per its Audit Committee Charter, and has regulated its 

affairs in compliance with this Charter in the discharge 

of its responsibilities as contained therein.

Audit and Risk Committee Members 
and Attendance

The Audit and Risk Committee for the 2011/12 fi nancial 

year comprised the members detailed in the table 

below and met four times, as per its approved Terms 

of Reference.

Risk Management

As part of ongoing efforts to further improve governance, 

the Audit and Risk Committee reviewed the Risk 

Management Strategy which was developed by Provincial 

Internal Audit. The Committee made recommendations 

regarding the implementation of the strategy. 

The Committee is of the opinion that once the risk 

management process has been rolled-out, it will 

signifi cantly improve the strategic management and 

corporate governance of the entity. We believe that 

strategy, risk performance and sustainable service 

delivery are inseparable. 

Proper risk management will ensure that best practice 

is implemented and that the core function of the entity 

remains the focal point, so contributing enormously 

to service delivery. The Audit and Risk Committee will 

constantly monitor the roll-out of risk management in 

order to ensure that the process reaches maturity within 

a reasonable time.

Name of Member
Number 
of Meetings 
Attended 

Ms NZ Qunta 4

Ms Y Bacus 2

Mr Z Gwala 3

Ms N Kheswa 2

Mr M Zakwe (Independent Member) 2
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Internal Audit

Internal Audit operated within an annual and three-year 
rolling plan approved by the Audit and Risk Committee.
The audit coverage included mainly cyclical audits 
and focused on areas considered to be important. The 
results of these audits were presented to Management 
for response and fi ndings resolution, as well as to the 
Audit and Risk Committee for fi nal review.

The Effectiveness of Internal Controls

The system of controls is designed to provide cost-
effective assurance that assets are safeguarded and that 
liabilities and working capital are effectively managed. 
In line with the Public Finance Management Act and 
King III Report on Corporate Governance requirements, 
internal audit provides for the Audit Committee and 
Management process, as well as the identifi cation of 
corrective actions and suggested enhancements to 
controls and processes.

Governance Processes and Accountability

The Audit and Risk Committee reports that it has 
adopted appropriate formal Terms of Reference as its 
Charter, has regulated its affairs in compliance with 
this Audit Committee Charter and has discharged all its 
responsibilities as contained therein. The Audit and Risk 
Committee reviewed quarterly reports and is satisfi ed 
that controls are in place to monitor spending patterns. 
The quarterly reports were submitted to the Board and 
the Department of Economic Development and Tourism, 

in terms of the Transfer Funding Agreement.

Evaluation of Annual Financial Statements

The Audit Committee has:
• Reviewed and discussed the audited Annual Financial 

Statements to be included in the annual report with 
the Auditor-General and the Board; and

• Reviewed signifi cant adjustments resulting from the audit.

Subsequent Events

Subsequent to the fi nancial year end, the MEC for 
Economic Development and Tourism appointed six new 
Board Members and re-appointed one Board Member, 
effective 01 July 2012, following the term of offi ce of 
10 Board Members coming to an end on 30 June 2012. 
Details of the new Board Members are included on page 9.

Appreciation

Our sincere appreciation and thanks are extended to all 
those who attended our meetings for their contribution 
and to the Chief Executive Offi cer and management as 
a whole for their support and useful interaction during 
the year under review. The Audit Committee concurs 
with and accepts the Auditor-General’s conclusions on 
the Annual Financial Statements and is of the opinion 
that the audited Annual Financial Statements be accepted 
and read together with the report of the Auditor General.

Ms NZ Qunta
Signed on behalf of the Audit and Risk Committee 
31 May 2012
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Report of the Auditor-General
for the year ended 31 March 2012 

Report of the Auditor-General to the 
KwaZulu-Natal Provincial Legislature on 
KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority Report 
on the financial statements 

Introduction
1. I have audited the financial statements of the 

KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority set out on pages 

108 to 131, which comprise the statement of financial 

position as at 31 March 2012, the statement of financial 

performance, statement of changes in net assets and 

the cash flow statement for the year then ended, 

and the notes, comprising a summary of significant 

accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Accounting Authority’s responsibility for 
the financial statements
2. The accounting authority is responsible for the 

preparation and fair presentation of these financial 

statements in accordance with South African Standards 

of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (SA 

Standards of GRAP) and the requirements of the Public 

Finance Management Act of South Africa, 1999 (Act No. 

1 of 1999) (PFMA), and for such internal control as the 

accounting authority determines is necessary to enable 

the preparation of financial statements that are free 

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor-General’s responsibility
3. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
financial statements based on my audit.  I conducted my 
audit in accordance with the Public Audit Act of South 
Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA), the General 
Notice issued in terms thereof and International Standards 
on Auditing.  Those standards require that I comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance that the financial statements 
are free from material misstatement.

4. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain 
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation 
of the  financial statements in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 

effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of the financial statements. 

5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit 
opinion.

Opinion
6. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, 
in all material respects, the financial position of KwaZulu-
Natal Tourism Authority as at 31 March 2012, and its 
financial performance and cash flows for the year then 
ended in accordance with the SA Standards of GRAP and 
the requirements of the PFMA.

Emphasis of matter
7. I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not 
modified in respect of this matter.

Irregular expenditure
8. As disclosed in note 25 to the financial statements, 
irregular expenditure amounting to R338 000 was incurred by 
the entity in the period, as a result of the contravention of the 
supply chain management (SCM) policy and legislation.

Restatement of corresponding figures
9. As disclosed in note 26 to the financial statements, the 
corresponding figures for 31 March 2011 have been restated 
as a result of an error discovered during 2011/12 financial 
year in the financial statements of KwaZulu-Natal Tourism 
Authority at, and for the year ended, 31 March 2011.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND 
REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
10. In accordance with the PAA and the General Notice 
issued in terms thereof, I report the following findings 
relevant to performance against pre-determined 
objectives, compliance with laws and regulations and 
internal control, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion.

Pre-determined objectives
11. I performed procedures to obtain evidence about the 
usefulness and reliability of the information in the annual 
performance report as set out on pages 26 to 86 of the 
annual report. 

12. The reported performance against pre-determined 
objectives was evaluated against the overall criteria of 
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usefulness and reliability. The usefulness of information 
in the annual performance report relates to whether it 
is presented in accordance with the National Treasury 
annual reporting principles and whether the reported 
performance is consistent with the planned objectives. 
The usefulness of information further relates to whether 
indicators and targets are measurable (i.e. well defined, 
verifiable, specific, measurable and time bound) and 
relevant as required by the National Treasury Framework 
for managing programme performance information.

The reliability of the information in respect of the 
selected programmes is assessed to determine whether 
it adequately reflects the facts (i.e. whether it is valid, 
accurate and complete).

13. There were no material findings arising from the 
audit of the annual performance report concerning the 
usefulness and reliability of the information.

Compliance with laws and regulations
14. I performed procedures to obtain evidence that the 
entity has complied with applicable laws and regulations 
regarding financial matters, financial management and 
other related matters. My findings on material non-
compliance with specific matters in key applicable laws 
and regulations as set out in the General Notice issued in 
terms of the PAA are as follows:

Annual financial statements
15. The financial statements submitted for auditing were 
not prepared in all material respects in accordance with the 
requirements of section 55(2) of the PFMA. The material 
misstatements identified by the auditors on capital assets, 
current assets and liabilities were subsequently corrected.

Procurement and contract management 
16. Goods and services with a transaction value of between 
R10 000 and R200 000 were procured without obtaining 
written price quotations from at least three different 
prospective providers as per the requirements of SCM 
regulation 17(a), 17(c) and Practice Note 8 of 2007/08. 

Expenditure management
17. Management did not ensure implementation of 
sufficient controls to prevent, detect, report and deal with 
irregular expenditure. 

Internal control
18. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the 
financial statements, performance report and compliance 
with laws and regulations. The matters reported below 

under the fundamentals of internal control are limited to 
the significant deficiencies that resulted in the basis for the 
opinion, the findings arising from the audit of compliance 
with laws and regulations included in this report. 

Leadership
19. Management has not implemented oversight 
responsibilities over the financial statement preparation and 
compliance with SCM regulations.

Financial and performance management
20. Management has not implemented adequate controls 
to ensure that the financial statements are prepared in 
accordance with the Standards of GRAP. 

21. Management did not implement controls to ensure that 
reasons for deviations from SCM policies comply with SCM 
legislation and are documented and approved before the 
expenditure is incurred.

OTHER REPORTS 
Investigation
22. An investigation was completed during the year into 
financial misconduct.

Agreed-upon procedures engagements
23. As requested by the entity, an engagement was 
conducted during the year under review concerning 
KwaZulu-Natal Isibhubhu project in evaluating the 
accuracy and occurrence of the income and expenditure 
and validity of the information recorded in the project 
report. The report covered the period March 2008 to March 
2011 and was issued on 26 March 2012.

Pietermaritzburg
31 July 2012

KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority
Annual Report 2011/12 105



   THE KWAZULU-NATAL TOURISM AUTHORITY, TRADING AS TOURISM KWAZULU-

NATAL, IS A STATUTORY BODY RESPONSIBLE FOR THE DEVELOPMENT, MARKETING 

AND PROMOTION OF TOURISM IN KWAZULU-NATAL. 

Accounting Authority’s Report
for the year ended 31 March 2012 

Report by the Accounting Authority 
to the Executive Authority and the 
Provincial Legislature of the Republic of 
South Africa.

General review of the state of affairs

or the fi nancial year 2011/12, the KwaZulu-

Natal Tourism Authority (the Authority) 

received a grant of R84 381 000 (2010/11: 

R71 444 000) from the Provincial Department 

of Economic Development and Tourism.

A further amount of R20 574 000 (2010/11: R4 868 000) 

was received in the form of other income. An amount 

of R12 481 000 spent on projects was recognised as 

both income and expenditure in terms of Generally 

Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) No. 23. Thus, 

the total income for the Authority was R117 436 000 

(2010/11: R100 637 000). The net surplus for the 

fi nancial year was R6 397 000 (2010/11: (R5 218 000)). 

After taking into account the opening accumulated 

defi cit of R5 218 000, this has resulted in the 

accumulated surplus of R1 179 000 at the end of the 

fi nancial year. One member of the Board, Ms N Freysen-

Pretorius, resigned from the Board during the period under 

review. The Committees of the Board continued to play 

their oversight roles and are constituted as follows:

• Audit and Risk Committee;

• Human Resources and Compensation Committee;

• Marketing and Tourism Development Committee; and

• Chairperson’s Committee.

The terms of reference for Board Committees 

remained the same throughout the year under review 

and are detailed in the Corporate Governance Report. 

The Authority’s Annual Action Plan was, to a large 

extent, implemented satisfactorily.  Further details 

are contained under the section dealing with 

performance information.

Services Rendered by the Authority

The KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority, trading as 

Tourism KwaZulu-Natal, is a statutory body responsible 

for the development, marketing and promotion of 

tourism in KwaZulu-Natal. It was established in 1997 

in accordance with the KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Act 

No. 11 of 1996, as amended. The Authority reports to 

the KwaZulu-Natal Provincial Legislature, through the 

Department of Economic Development and Tourism.  

Business Address

Registered offi ce:  Suite 303 Tourist Junction 

 160 Monty Naicker Road

 Durban

 4001

Postal Address:  P O Box 2516 

 Durban

 4000
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Bankers:  First National Bank

External Auditors:  Auditor-General

Internal Auditors:  Internal Audit Unit – KwaZulu-Natal  

 Provincial Treasury

New or Proposed Activities

There were no new activities embarked upon during 

the period under review. Furthermore, there are no 

proposed activities for the upcoming fi nancial year.

Events After the Reporting Date

Subsequent to the fi nancial year end, the MEC for 
Economic Development and Tourism appointed six new 
Board Members and re-appointed one Board Member, 
effective 01 July 2012, following the term of offi ce of 
10 Board Members coming to an end on 30 June 2012. 

Details of the new Board Members are included on page 9.

Performance Information

In terms of the KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Act, the 

Authority must develop an annual tourism promotion, 

marketing and development action plan. This action 

plan must provide clear indications of goals and 

objectives for the planning period. Such a plan was 

developed for the 2011/12 fi nancial year. Progress 

reports were tabled at each Board and Committee 

meeting of the Authority. 

Furthermore, the Authority reported to the 

Department of Economic Development and Tourism 

on a quarterly basis regarding progress towards the 

achievement of the stated outputs and objectives, in 

line with the Memorandum of Agreement entered into 

between the two parties.  

A detailed report on the activities of the Authority is 

included under a separate section of the Annual Report.  

Approval

The Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 

31 March 2012, set out on pages 108 to 131, were 

approved by the Accounting Authority in terms of 

section 51(1) (f) of the Public Finance Management 

Act, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999), as amended and are 

signed on its behalf by:

S Naidoo
Chairperson: 
KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority

N Khoza
Chief Executive Offi cer 
N Khoza
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 THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS HAVE BEEN PREPARED ON AN ACCRUAL 

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND ARE IN ACCORDANCE WITH HISTORICAL COST 

CONVENTION, UNLESS SPECIFICALLY STATED OTHERWISE.

Accounting Policies
for the year ended 31 March 2012 

1. Basis of Preparation

he Annual Financial Statements have been 

prepared in accordance with Generally 

Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP), 

issued by the Accounting Standards Board 

in accordance with Section 55 of the Public 

Finance Management Act (Act No. 29 of 1999) 

and the Public Finance Management Act (Act No. 1 of 

1999) as amended (PFMA).

Accounting policies for material transactions, events 

or conditions not covered by the GRAP reporting 

framework have been developed in accordance with 

paragraphs 7, 11 and 12 of GRAP 3 and the hierarchy 

approved in Directive 5 issued by the Accounting 

Standards Board.

The Annual Financial Statements have been prepared 

on an accrual basis of accounting and are in 

accordance with historical cost convention, unless 

specifi cally stated otherwise. The principal accounting 

policies adopted in the preparation of these fi nancial 

statements are set out below. Assets, liabilities, 

revenues and expenses have not been offset, except 

where offsetting is required or permitted by a 

Standard of GRAP.

The accounting policies are applied consistently with 

those used to present the previous year’s fi nancial 

statements, unless explicitly stated. The details of 

any changes in accounting policies are explained in 

the relevant policy.

2. Going Concern

The Public Entity will be a going concern in the year(s) 

ahead and, as such, the Authority continues to adopt 

the going concern basis in preparing the Annual 

Financial Statements.

3. Currency

These fi nancial statements are presented in South 

African Rand since that is the currency in which the 

majority of the entity’s transactions are denominated.

4. Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that future 

economic benefi ts will fl ow to the enterprise and 

these benefi ts can be measured reliably. Revenue 

arising from registration levies is recognised in full 

upon becoming a member or renewal of membership, 

net of Value-Added Taxes. The licensing, as well as 

acceptance of such registration by the Authority, 

records membership upon receipt of payment and 

submission of registration application forms. 

Membership is renewed annually for tourism 

establishments and bi-annually for tour guides. 

Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis, 

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND ARE IN ACCORDANCE WITH HISTORICAL COST 

KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority
Annual Report 2011/12108



taking into account the principal outstanding and the 

effective interest rate over the period to maturity.

5. Irregular and Fruitless and Wasteful 
Expenditure

Irregular expenditure means expenditure incurred 

in contravention of, or not in accordance with, a 

requirement of any applicable legislation, including:

• The PFMA; or

• Any provincial legislation providing for procurement 

procedures in that provincial government.

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure means expenditure 

that was made in vain and would have been avoided 

had reasonable care been exercised. All irregular and 

fruitless and wasteful expenditure is charged against 

income in the period in which it is incurred.

6. Foreign Currencies

Transactions in currencies other than the entity’s 

reporting currency (Rand) are initially recorded 

at the rates of exchange ruling on the dates of 

the transactions. Gains and losses arising from the 

settlement of such transactions are recognised in the 

Statement of Financial Performance.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 

currencies are translated at the rates of exchange 

ruling on the Statement of Financial Position. 

Unrealised differences on monetary assets and 

liabilities are recognised in the Statement of Financial 

Performance in the period in which they occurred. 

7. Retirement Benefit Costs

The entity operates a defined contribution plan, the 

assets of which are generally held in separate trustee-

administered funds. The plans are generally funded 

by payments from the entity. Payments to defined 

contribution retirement benefit plans are charged to 

the statement of financial performance in the year to 

which they relate.

8. Taxation

The entity operated on funds derived from 

Government Grants. In terms of a directive issued by 

the South African Revenue Service, the receipts and 

accruals of the KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority are 

exempt from Income Tax.

9. Unusual Items

All items of income and expense arising in the 

ordinary course of business are taken into account 

in arriving at income before taxation. Where items 

of income and expense are of such size, nature or 

incidence that their disclosure is relevant to explain 

the performance of the entity, they are separately 

disclosed and appropriate explanations are provided.
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10. Property, Plant and Equipment

Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at 

cost less accumulated depreciation.

Depreciation is charged so as to write-off the cost or 

valuation of assets over their estimated useful lives 

using the straight-line method on the following basis:

• Computer software  50,0%

• Office Equipment

 •  Photographic    16,6%

 •  Dictaphones   33,3%

 •  Perforating equipment  16,6%

 •  Television   16,6%

 •  Surveyors equipment  20,0%

• Computer hardware  33,3%

• Office furniture   16,6%

• Office fittings and alterations 16,6%

• Videos    50,0%

The useful lives of assets are assessed on an annual 

basis and where there are significant differences from 

the original estimates, the useful lives are revised and 

depreciation adjusted accordingly. 

All adjustments arising from changes in estimates are 

applied prospectively.

 

The gain or loss arising from the disposal or 

retirement of an asset is determined as the difference 

between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount 

of the asset and is recognised in income.

11. Intangible Assets

Trademarks and Patents
Expenditure on trademarks and patents is recognised 

as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Internally-generated Intangible Assets
(Research and Development Costs) 
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an 

expense in the period in which it is incurred. Where

no internally-generated intangible asset can be 

recognised, development expenditure is recognised as 

an expense in the period in which it is incurred. 

12. Impairment

At each reporting date, the entity reviews the 

carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets 

to determine whether there is any indication that 

those assets may be impaired. If any such indication 

exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is 

estimated in order to determine the extent of the 

impairment loss (if any). 

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to 

be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount 

of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. 

Impairment losses are immediately recognised as 

an expense, unless the relevant asset is carried at a 

revalued amount under another standard, in which 

case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation 

decrease under the standard.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, 

the carrying amount of the asset is increased to 

the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, 

but so that the increased carrying amount does not 

exceed the carrying amount that would have been 

determined had no impairment loss been recognised 

for the asset in prior years. 

A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income 

immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at 

a revalued amount under another standard, in which 

case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a 

revaluation increase under that other standard.

13. Borrowings

In terms of section 66(3)(c) of the Public Finance 

Management Act, 1999, a Public Entity may only 

through the Minister of Finance borrow money or, in 

the case of the issue of a guarantee, indemnity or 

security, only through the Minister of Labour, acting 

Accounting Policies
for the year ended 31 March 2012 
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with the concurrence of the Minister of Finance.

In terms of section 32.1.1 of the Treasury Regulations, 

a Public Entity may borrow money for bridging 

purposes with the approval of the Minister of Finance, 

subject to certain conditions.

14. Leasing

Finance leases, as per the Treasury Regulations, refers 

to a contract that transfers the risks, rewards, rights 

and obligations incident to ownership to the lessee 

and is recorded as a purchase of equipment by means 

of long-term borrowing;

All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The entity as a Lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a 

straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The entity as a Lessee
Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to 

income on a straight-line basis over the term of the 

relevant lease.

15. Financial instruments

Recognition
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised 

in the entity’s Statement of Financial Position when 

the entity becomes a party to the contractual 

provisions of the instrument.

Measurement on Initial Recognition
The principal financial assets and financial liabilities 

of the entity are short-term in nature and their costs/

nominal amounts approximate their fair values.

Subsequent Measurement
Financial assets and financial liabilities are carried

at amortised cost. 

However, due to the short- term nature of the entity’s 

principal financial assets and financial liabilities, the 

effects of discounting is not material and the carrying 

amounts, as stated below, approximate their fair 

values.

Financial Assets
The entity’s principal financial assets are trade 

receivables and cash and cash equivalents.

• Trade receivables – Trade receivables are stated at 

their nominal amount as reduced by appropriate 

allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts; and

• Cash and cash equivalents – Cash and cash 

equivalents are stated at nominal amount.

Financial Liabilities
The entity’s principal financial liabilities are accounts 

payable.

• Trade payables – Trade and other payables are 

stated at their nominal amount.
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16. Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the entity has a 

present obligation as a result of a past event and 

it is probable that this will result in an outflow of 

economic benefits that can be estimated reliably. 

The provisions are accounted for as per GRAP 19. 

Contingent liabilities are recognised when the entity 

has a present obligation as a result of a past event and 

it is probable that this will result in an outflow of 

economic benefits that can be estimated reliably. 

Contingent liabilities are accounted for as per GRAP 19.

17. Comparative Figures

Where necessary, comparative figures have been 

adjusted to conform to changes in presentation in the 

current year.

18. Cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, 

short-term investments with financial institutions 

and the amount deposited with financial institutions 

as part of the entity’s current account. Funds 

under administration in respect of special projects 

are deposited with financial institutions and are 

accounted for as such. Cash and cash equivalents are 

stated at nominal value.

19. Non-exchange Revenue

The guidance contained in the ‘GRAP Reporting 

Framework’ issued by National Treasury has been 

applied in the treatment of non-exchange revenue. 

In applying this framework, the option chosen is to 

formulate an accounting policy in line with GRAP 23, of 

which this paragraph forms the preamble to the policy.

Transfers
An inflow of resources from a non-exchange 

transaction recognised as an asset is recognised as 

revenue, except to the extent that a liability is also 

recognised in respect of the same inflow.

Transfers received in respect of projects to which 

conditions are attached, are treated as liabilities and 

subsequently recognised as revenue in the periods 

that expenditure has been incurred, in accordance 

with the project business plans. Transfers received for 

future projects are, in substance, receipts in advance 

and are recorded as liabilities and recognised as 

revenue during periods when project activities 

are undertaken. 

Services in Kind
Services in kind are neither recognised as revenue 

nor assets.

Accounting Policies
for the year ended 31 March 2012 
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Project Funds
The entity receives funds by way of conditional 

grants for special projects, including poverty relief 

projects. Furthermore, a separate bank account is 

usually opened for each project. Project funds have 

been accounted for as non-exchange transactions in 

accordance with the aforementioned policy.

Government Grants
Government grants have been accounted for as 

non-exchange transactions in accordance with the 

aforementioned policy.

20. Employee Benefits

Short-term Employee Benefits
Short-term employee benefits include wages, salaries, 

paid annual leave and bonuses and are accounted for 

as required by International Accounting Standard (IAS) 

- IAS 19 “Employee benefits”.

21. Related Parties

Transactions with key management personnel are 

disclosed in the Annual Financial Statements in the 

form of a note, as required by IAS 24 “Related party 

disclosures”. These transactions relate to short-term 

employee benefits and are in accordance with IAS 19 

above.

22. Presentation of Budget Information

The guidance contained in the ‘GRAP Reporting 

Framework’ issued by National Treasury has been 

applied in presenting budget information in the Annual 

Financial Statements. In applying this framework, the 

option chosen is to present reconciliation between the 

budgeted surplus/deficit to the surplus/deficit as per 

the Statement of Financial Performance in the Notes 

to the Annual Financial Statements, in accordance 

with Annexure A of the framework.

23. Events after the Reporting Date

Management considers all information pertaining 

to the entity that comes to light during the period 

between the financial year-end and the date that the 

financial statements are authorised for issue. 

The Annual Financial Statements are amended to 

reflect any ‘adjusting events’ that are identifiable 

and quantifiable as well as disclosures for those 

adjusting events that cannot be quantified and those 

non-adjusting events after the reporting date that are 

material, where non-disclosure could influence the 

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the 

financial statements.

24. Standards issued but not 
yet effective

The following standards, that have been issued, are 

not yet effective:

• GRAP 23

• GRAP 24

The entity has applied the GRAP framework issued by 

National Treasury in dealing with the aforementioned 

standards. 

Management has assessed that in complying with 

National Treasury’s Framework for GRAP, the entity 

has complied with the minimum requirements.
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Notes
2012

R’000
2011

R’000

Revenue

Grants and Transfers 1 84 381 71 444

Other Income 2 20 574 4 868

Project transfers 23 12 481 24 325

Total revenue 117 436 100 637

Expenditure

Administrative Expenses 3 4 438 4 905

Staff Costs 4 24 064 22 635

Marketing Expenses 5 61 913 45 005

Tourism Development Expenses 6 3 309 3 026

Other Operating Expenses 7 3 569 5 387

Bad debts 633  -   

SARS write-off 10  -   2 153

Provision for VAT claimable 10  -   3 290

Depreciation 8 632 789

Project Expenditure 23 12 481 24 325

Total expenditure 111 039 111 515

Net Surplus/(Deficit) for the year 6 397 (10 878)

Accumulated (deficit)/surplus at the beginning of the year  (5 218) 5 600

Prior period adjustment - 60

Accumulated surplus/(deficit) at the end of the year 9 1 179 (5 218)

Statement of Financial Performance
for the year ended 31 March 2012 
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Notes
2012

R’000
2011

R’000

Assets

Non-Current Assets

Intangible Asset  35   65

Property, plant and equipment 8 1 828 2 425

1 863 2 490

Current Assets

Receivables 10 33 761 4 850

Cash and cash equivalents 11 12 419 8 309

46 180 13 159

Total assets 48 043 15 649

Reserves and liabilities

Reserves 9 1 179 (5 218)

Current Liabilities

Trade and other payables 13 45 375 19 554

Provisions 12 1 489 1 313

46 864 20 867

Total Reserves and Liabilities 48 043 15 649

Statement of Financial Position
for the year ended 31 March 2012 

KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority
Annual Report 2011/12 115



 Notes
2012

R’000
2011

R’000

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash Receipts from customers  75 921  71 444 

Cash paid to suppliers and employees (71 687) (83 569)

Cash generated/(utilised by) from operations 14  4 234 (12 125)

Interest received  123 58

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities  4 357 (12 067)

Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisition of:

Property, plant and equipment  (247)  (496) 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  4 110 (12 563)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year  8 309  20 872 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year  12 419  8 309 

Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 31 March 2012 
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Notes
2012

R’000
2011

R’000

Accumulated Surplus/(Deficit)

Balance at 1 April 9 (5 218) 5 600

Net (deficit)/surplus for the year 9 6 397 (10 878)

Prior period adjustment - rounding off balances -   60

Balance at 31 March 1 179 (5 218)

Statement of Changes in Net Assets
for the year ended 31 March 2012 
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Final Budget
2011/12

R’000

Actual Outcome
2011/12

R’000

Variance

R’000

Outcome as 
% of 

Final Budget

Revenue

Grant and transfers  84 381  84 381 -  -   

Other Income  139  20 574  (20 435)  (147) 

Project Transfers  12 481  12 481  –    -   

Total revenue 97 001  117 436  (20 435) 0,21

Expenses

Administrative Expenses 4 343 4 438  (95) 0,02 

Staff Costs 24 370 24 064  306  0,01 

Marketing Expenses 48 055 61 913  (13 858) 0,29 

Tourism Development Expenses 2 766 3 309  (543) 0,20 

Other Operating Expenses 3 896 3 569  327 0,08

Bad Debts  -   633 (633)  -   

Depreciation 1 090  632 458 0,42 

Project Expenditure 12 481 12 481  –    –   

Total expenses  97 001  111 039  (14 038) 0,14 

Surplus  - 6 397 - -

Comparison of Actual Expenditure to Budget 
for the year ended 31 March 2012 
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2012
R’000

2011
R’000

1. Grants and transfers

Provincial Department of Economic Development & Tourism 84 381 71 444

2. Other Income

Interest income  123  58 

Sundry income  20 429  4 648 

Marketing recoveries  9 685  4 311 

PR and Comms recoveries  6 264  250

Tourism Development recoveries 442 -

VAT recoveries 3  945 -

Other 93 87

Registration Levies 22 162

Total 20 574  4 868 

3. Administrative expenses

General and administratives expenses  256  511 

Auditor's Remuneration

- Audit Fees  865  1 278 

Travel and Subsistence  647  575 

Rentals in respect of operating leases  2 351  2 410 

- Buildings  2 234  2 201 

- Plant, machinery and equipment  117  209 

Directors' emoluments  143  105 

Net foreign exchange (gains)/losses  176  26 

Total  4 438  4 905 

4. Staff Costs

Basic salaries 21 490 20 510

Temporary 139 12

Defined provident fund contribution plan expenses 2 435 2 113

Total 24 064 22 635

Total number of employees as at 31 March 2012 59 57

5. Marketing Expenses

Marketing activities 37 156 31 477

Image building 19 756 9 457

Research and information services 5 001 4 071

Total 61 913 45 005

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2012 
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2012
R’000

2011
R’000

6. Tourism development expenses

Project management unit 1 457 1 053

Tourism investment promotion 1 576 1 609

Small business support  -   168

Tourism awareness campaigns 276 196

Total 3 309 3 026

7. Other operating expenses

Staff training and development 689 800

Consultants, contractors and special services 426 198

Legal fees 80 110

Maintenance, repairs and running costs 62 84

- Property and buildings 62 84

Entertainment expenses 1 23

Other 2 311 4 172

Total 3 569 5 387

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2012 
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2012 

Gross Carrying  Value Accumulated Depreciation

Net 
Carrying 

Value

8. Property, 
plant and
equipment

2012

Office Furniture 1 826  -    196   1 630 724  236  63   897 733

Office Equipment 297  11  97   211 229  14  89   154 57

Office Fittings 
& Alterations 2 363  -    35   2 328 1 627  173  26   1 774 554

Computer 
Hardware 1 241  187  301   1 127 722  130  209 643 484

Total 5 727  198  629   5 296 3 302   553 387   3 468 1 828

2011

Office Furniture 1 627 26 188  15 1 826 829 (247) 157  15 724 1 102

Office Equipment 274 8 40  25 297 187 29 38  25 229 68

Office Fittings
& Alterations 2 207 2 154  -   2 363 1 341 95 191  -   1 627 736

Computer 
Hardware 2 572 78 109  1 518 1 241 1 747 183 310  1 518 722 519

Total 6 680 114 491  1 558 5 727 4 104 60 696  1 558 3 302 2 425

8.1 Intangible 
Assets

2012

Computer 
Software 193 49  -   242 128  79  -   207 35

Total 193 49 - 242 128 79 - 207 35

2011

Computer 
Software  2 950 73  -    2 830 193 2 792 73  93  2 830 128 65

Total  2 950 73  -    2 830 193 2 792 73 93 2 830 128 65
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2012 

2012
R’000

2011
R’000

9. Reserves

Accumulated surplus at the beginning of the year (5 218) 5 600

Net surplus/(deficit) for the year 6 397 (10 878)

Adjustment  -   60

Accumulated surplus at the end of the year 1 179 (5 218)

The accumulated surplus was not budgeted for and will be utilised for the purpose
it was intended for. The Authority has requested consent from the Department of
Economic Development and Tourism to carry this accumulated surplus to future years

10. Receivables

Receivables 30 918 3 570

Less: Provision for impairment (531) (2 537)

30 387 1 033

SARS - VAT  2 913 6 502

Less: Provision for impairment  -   (3 290)

 2 913 3 212

Staff advances 19 31

Staff advances - impaired (19) -

- 31

Other 191 218

Prepaid lease debtor - 111

Rental deposits 270 245

Total 33 761 4 850

The provision for impairment has been determined by reference to the
Authority’s policy of management of debts, past default experience and the
current economic environment.  

The Authority considers the carrying amount of receivables approximates
to their fair value.  

11. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank 10 720 2 935

Cash on hand 5 5

Short-term investments 1 694 122

Projects funds  -   5 247

Total 12 419 8 309

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are held with registered banking institutions with maturities of three months 
or less and that are subject to insignificant interest rate risk. The carrying amount
of these assets approximates to their fair value.
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2012 

Notes 2012
R’000

2011
R’000

13. Trade and other payables

Trade payables 9 253 4 992

SARS - PAYE  483 189

Accruals  15 843 2 172

Accrued lease liability  172  82 

Projects funds 13.1/23 19 624 12 119

Total 45 375 19 554

The Authority considers that the carrying amount of trade and 
other payables approximates to their fair value.

13.1 Projects Funds Annexure A

Made up as follows:

Project funds bank accounts - 5 247

Project funds in debtors 11 485 -

Cash in the Authority's bank accounts  8 139 6 872

Total 19 624 12 119

Provision for
leave pay

R’000

Accrual for
annual bonuses

R’000

Total

R’000

12. Provisions

Opening balance 01 April 2011 1 122 191 1 313

Utilisation of provision during the year (942) (810) (1 752)

Provisions made during the year 1 103 825 1 928

Closing balance 31 March 2012  1 283  206  1 489 

The leave pay and bonus provision relates to the
Authority’s estimated liabilities arising as a result
of services rendered by employees.    
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2012 

2012
R’000

2011
R’000

14. Reconciliation of surplus/(deficit) to cash generated from operations  

Net surplus/(deficit) for the year 6 397 (10 878)

Adjusted for:

- Depreciation 553 696

- Amortisation 79 93

- SARS write-off  -   2 153

- Loss on disposal of asset 242 -

- Straight-lining of leases  -   (30)

- Interest received (123) (58)

Operating cashflows before working capital changes 7 148 (8 024)

Working capital changes

- Increase in receivables 28 911 (1 041)

- Increase/(decrease) in payables 18 492 (4 412)

- Increase in projects funds 7 505 1 352

Cash generated from/(utilised in) operations 4 234 (12 125)

15. Employee Benefits

15.1 Short-term employee benefits
The cost of short-term employee benefits is expensed in the income statement in the reporting period when
the payment is made. Short-term employee benefits that give rise to a present legal or constructive obligation
is deferred until they can be reliably measured and then expensed. Details of these benefits and potential
liabilities are disclosed in the financial statements and are not recognised in the income statement.

15.2 Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised and expensed as and when the payment is made.

15.3 Retirement benefits

The KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority contributes to the Old Mutual Orion Provident Fund. Membership is
compulsory for all permanent employees. The fund is a Defined Contribution Fund.  The Authority contributes
15% of the pensionable remuneration. The employees do not contribute to this fund. The Authority’s
contribution to the fund was R2 434 534 (2011 - R2 112 520). None of the members of the Board are members
of the Fund.   

15.4 Medical benefits

The KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority provides medical benefits for its employees through Discovery Health
Benefit Plans. These benefits are funded by employee contributions since the Authority works on the total cost 
of employment. No provision is made for medical benefits in the financial statements of the Authority.
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2012 

Fees for 
Services

R

Other

R

Total

R

16. Board Members’ Emoluments and 
Executive Management Remuneration 

Board members’ Emoluments

NAME

Ms T Dlamini (Chairperson of the Board)  30 150  3 705  33 855 

Ms N Kheswa  5 025  1 108  6 133 

Ms S Maharaj  6 030  295  6 325 

Mr S Mshengu  8 040  1 373  9 413 

Mr S Naidoo (Deputy Chairperson of the Board)  33 969  3 704  37 673 

Ms NZ Qunta  10 854  3 075  13 929 

Mr K Pretorius  5 025  3 119    8 144 

Ms N Freysen-Pretorius  3 216  259  3 475 

Mr M Zakwe (Independent Audit Committee Member)  2 010  1 676  3 686 

Prof AT Nzama  6 030  7 505  13 535 

Mr T Mzileni  6 030  1 001  7 031 

Total  116 379  26 820  143 199 

Basic 
Salary

Performance 
Related Pay

Provident Fund
& Medical Aid

Total
Remuneration

Executive Management Remuneration 

Designation

Chief Executive Officer
(01 April 2011 to 31 March 2012) 1 108 886  -   190 058 1 298 944

Chief Operating Officer
(01 April 2011 to 31 March 2012) 945 258  -   142 051 1 087 309

Chief Financial Officer
(01 April 2011 to 31 January 2012) 728 009  -   85 259 813 268

Total 2 782 153  -   417 368 3 199 521

17. Contingent Liabilities

There is a contingent liability of R6,397 million as 
a result of the surplus funds not returned to the 
Provincial Treasury
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2012
R’000

2011
R’000

18. Operating lease agreements  

Authority as lessee

At the balance sheet date the Authority had outstanding commitments under
non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

Up to 1 year 793 1 857

 1 to 5 years 1 049 2 264

Total 1 842 4 121

At the balance sheet date the Authority had outstanding leases commitments in  
respect of office equipment which fall due as follows: 

Up to 1 year 140 140

1 to 5 years 47 187

Total 187 327

All the above lease agreements in respect of the equipment are not renewable at  
the end of the lease term and the Authority does not have the option to acquire  
the equipment. These lease agreements do not impose any restrictions. 

Authority as lessor

At the balance sheet date the Authority had contracted with sub-tenants for the  
following minimum future lease payments: 

Up to 1 year 50 47

1 to 5 years 53 97

Total 103 144

19. Capital Commitments 

Commitments in respect of Projects to be finalised: Isibhubhu -  5 247 293 

20. Subsequent Events

Subsequent to the financial year end, the MEC for Economic Development and Tourism 
appointed six new Board Members and re-appointed one Board Member, effective 01 July 2012, 
following the term of office of 10 Board Members coming to an end on 30 June 2012. Details of 
the new Board Members are included on page 9.
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2012
R’000

2011
R’000

21. Related Party Transactions  

Related party transactions were entered into with the Department of 
Economic Development and Tourism and Trade & Investment KwaZulu-Natal. 

Department of Economic Development and Tourism

Grant 84 381 71 444

The transactions as per partnership agreement with Tourism KwaZulu-Natal
for the Annual Indaba Event 11 277 7 319

Other Projects 9 991 -

Total as at 31 March 105 649 78 763

Trade & Investment KwaZulu-Natal

The transactions resulting in joint agreements of events
benefiting both organisations 693 750 250 000

Total as at 31 March 693 750 250 000

An amount of R693 750 was paid during the year under review. 

22. Financial instruments
In the course of the Authority’s business operations it is exposed to currency, credit and liquidity risk. The 
Authority has developed a comprehensive risk management process to monitor and control these risks. The risk 
management process relating to each of these risks is discussed under the relevant headings below.

Currency risk
The Authority undertakes certain transactions denominated in foreign currencies, hence exposures to exchange rate 
fluctuations. However, due to the relatively small number of transactions, the Authority does not take any forward 
foreign exchange contracts. Financial asset and liabilities that are denominated in foreign currencies as at year end 
are translated using the spot rate at year end. The volume of foreign transactions is small and is not expected to 
have a material effect on the Annual Financial Statements.

Credit risk
Financial assets, which potentially subject the Authority to the risk of non-performance by counter-parties
and thereby subject the Authority to concentrations of credit risk, consists mainly of cash and cash equivalents
and trade receivables.

The Authority limits its treasury counter-party exposure by only dealing with well-established financial 
institutions with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies. The Authority does not 
expect any treasury counter-parties to fail to meet their obligations, given their high credit rating.

Credit risk with respect to trade receivables is limited due to the large number of debtors comprising the 
Authority’s debtors base and their dispersion across different industries and geographical areas. The
Authority does not have any significant exposure to any individual debtor or counter-party. Accordingly,
the Authority does not consider there to be any significant concentration of credit risk, which had not been
adequately provided for. Trade receivables are presented net of the allowance for impairment.
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Fair values
The Authority’s financial instruments consist mainly of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and trade 
payables. No financial asset was carried at an amount in excess of its fair value and fair values could be reliably 
measured for all financial assets and that are available-for-sale or held-for-trading. 

The following methods and assumptions are used to determine the fair value of each class of financial instruments:

Cash and cash equivalents
The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents approximates fair value due to the relatively short-term maturity
of this financial asset.

Trade receivables
The carrying amount of trade receivables, net of provision for impairment approximates fair value due to the 
relatively short-term maturity of this financial asset.

Trade payables
The carrying amount of trade payables approximates fair value due to the relatively short-term maturity of this
financial liability.

Liquidity risk

The Authority manages liquidity risk through proper management of working capital, capital expenditure and actual 
versus forecasted cashflows. Adequate reserves and liquid resources facilities are also maintained. 

Maturity profile

The maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities at balance sheet date are as follows:  

1 year 
or less
R’000

Total

R’000

Year ended 31 March 2012

Assets

Cash 12 419 12 419

Receivables 33 761 33 761

Total financial assets 46 180 46 180

Liabilities

Trade and other payables 45 375 45 375

Total financial liabilities 45 375 45 375

Net assets 805 805

Percentages (%) 100,0% 100,0%
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Accum 
Year 
2011

Interest 
Received

Other 

Income
Funding

Received
Government

Grant

Balance 

Sheet 

Re-
Allocations

Actual
Expenditure Transfers

Accum 
Year 
2012

23. Accumulated  
project funds 
as at 
31 March 2012 
(Annexure A)

Project Name

Anglo Boers  9 892  -  -    -  -  -  -  -  9 892 

CEO's Projects  79 132  -  -    -  -  -  51 010  -  28 122 

Community 
Tourism  2 166 940  -  -    -  -  - 2 470 736  - (303 796) 

Isibhubhu  5 247 292  914  -    -  5 248 193  13 

KZN Cultural 
Village  4 615 642  -  4 470 756  144 886 

Convention 
Bureau

 
- 

  
- 

 
240 522 (240 522) 

Special 
marketing 
Projects  -   14 485 023  14 485 023 
Indaba
Marketing 
Project  -      5 500 000  -  5 500 000 

Total 12 118 898 914  -   19 985 023  -    -    12 481 217  -    19 623 618 

A separate bank account is only opened when the agreement so requires. In other cases, project funds are deposited 
into the main bank account, with a project liability being opened as to monitor project expenditure.   
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2012
R’000

2011
R’000

24. Reconciliation of budget surplus with the surplus in 
the statement of financial performance 

Net surplus/(deficit) per the statement of financial performance 6 397 (10 878)

Adjusted for:

(Decrease)/increase in staff costs (306) 1 194

Increase in marketing expenses 13 858 5 259

(Decrease)/increase in other operating expenses (327) 3 402

SARS write-off  -   2 153

Provision for VAT claimable  -   3 290

Bad debts  633  -   

Net increases other 180 (107)

Increase in other income (20 435) (4 313)

Net surplus per approved budget  -    -   

25. Irregular expenditure

Opening balance 605 378

Current expenditure 338 227

Expenditure ratified by Board  (793)   -

150   605

The irregular expenditure resulted from instances where the procurement 
process was not followed and single suppliers were used instead of inviting 
prospective suppliers to quote

26. Prior Period Error
Being the restatement of the property, plant and equipment balances to 
correctly reflect the review of the useful lives done in the prior year, as 
this was not processed correctly

Property, plant and equipment - Cost

Balance as previously reported 5 613

Adjustment of the useful lives of property, plant and equipment 114

Restated balance at 31 March 2011 5 727
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2011
R’000

Property, plant and equipment - Accumulated depreciation

Balance as previously reported 3 242

Adjustment of the useful lives of property, plant and equipment 60

Restated balance at 31 March 2011 3 302

Intangible assets - Cost

Balance as previously reported 120

Adjustment of the useful lives of property, plant and equipment 73

Restated balance at 31 March 2011 193

Intangible assets - Accumulated amortisation

Balance as previously reported 55

Adjustment of the useful lives of property, plant and equipment 73

Restated balance at 31 March 2011 128

Deficit for the year

Balance as previously reported (5 272)

Adjustment of the useful lives of property, plant and equipment 54

Restated balance at 31 March 2011 (5 218)
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Acronyms

AMG     

Advance Management Group

APTA     

Association for Promotion of Tourism to Africa

BARSA      

Board of Airline Representatives of South Africa

BEE     

Black Economic Empowerment

BOTG      

Best of Travel Group

CB     

Convention Bureau

DEDT     

Department of Economic Development and

Tourism 

DM     

District Municipality

EIA     

Environmental Impact Assessment

ETEYA      

Emerging Entrepreneur of the Year Award 

FEDHASA    

Federated Hospitality Association of South Africa

FIFA     

Federation International Football Association

GSA     

General Sales Agency

HDI     

Historically Disadvantaged Individuals

ICC     

International Convention Centre

IT     

Information Technology

IT     

Incentives Travel

ITB     

International Tourism Bourse

JMA     

Joint Marketing Agreement

KSIA     

King Shaka International Airport

KZN     

KwaZulu-Natal 

ME     

Meeting & Exhibition 

MEC     

Member of Executive Council

MICE     

Meetings Incentives Conferences and Exhibition

NDT     

National Department of Tourism 

SA     

South Africa 

SACCI     

Southern African Association for the Conference 

Industry

SAPS     

South Africa Police Service

SAT     

South African Tourism

SATOA     

Southern African Tour Operator Association

SATSA      

Southern Africa Tourism Services Association

SITE     

Society of Incentive Travel Executives

SMME     

Small, Medium and Micro Enterprise

SWC     

Soccer World Cup

TEP     

Tourism Enterprise Partnership

TGCSA     

Tourism Grading Council of South Africa 

TKZN     

Tourism KwaZulu-Natal 

TQGF     

Tourism Quarterly Growth Forum

UK     

United Kingdom

UNWTO    

United Nations World Tourism Organisation

US/USA     

United States of America

WWW     

What Where and When
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